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SECTION I – GENERAL 

 

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS  
 

This Red Herring Prospectus uses certain definitions and abbreviations which, unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, shall 

have the meaning as provided below. References to any legislation, act, regulation, rule, guideline or policy shall be to such 

legislation, act, regulation, rule, guideline or policy, as amended, supplemented or re-enacted from time to time, and any reference to 

a statutory provision shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to time under that provision. 

 

The words and expressions used in this Red Herring Prospectus but not defined herein, shall have, to the extent applicable, the 

meaning ascribed to such terms under the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the Securities Contracts 

Regulation Act, 1992(“ SCRA”), the Depositories Act or the rules and regulations made there under. 

 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms used in of the sections “Statement of Special Tax Benefits”, “Financial Information of the 

Company” and “Main Provisions of the Articles of Association” on page 73, 122 and 239 respectively, shall have the meaning 

ascribed to such terms in such sections. 

 

General Terms 
 

Terms Description 

“MFL”, “the Company”, “our 
Company”, “Issuer” and “Macfos 
Limited”      

Macfos Limited, a Company incorporated in India under the Companies Act,2013, having its 
Registered office at S. No. 78/1, Sumant Building, Dynamic Logistics Trade Park, Dighi, 
Bhosari Alandi Road, Pune – 411-015, Maharashtra, India.  

“we”, “us” and “our”  Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies refers to our Company. 

“you”, “your” or “yours”  Prospective investors in this Offer 

 

Company related and Conventional terms 
 

Term Description 

AOA / Articles / Articles of 
Association 

Articles of Association of our Company, as amended, from time to time 

Audit Committee The Audit Committee of our Board constituted in accordance with Section 177 of the 
Companies Act and as described in the chapter titled “Our Management” beginning on page 
107 of this Red Herring Prospectus. 

Auditors/ Statutory Auditors  The Statutory Auditors of our Company being M/s. Kishor Gujar & Associates (Firm 
Registration No. as 116747W).     

Bankers to our Company ICICI  Bank Limited 

Board of Directors / the Board / 
our Board 

The Board of Directors of our Company, including all duly constituted Committees thereof. 
For further details of our Directors, please refer to section titled "Our Management" 
beginning on page 107 of this Red Herring Prospectus.  

Chief Financial Officer/ CFO  The Chief Financial Officer of our Company being Mr. Binod Prasad 

CIN Corporate Identification Number 

Companies Act / Act The Companies Act, 2013 and amendments thereto and erstwhile Companies Act 1956 as 
applicable 

Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer 

The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of our Company being Mr. Sagar Subhash 
Gulhane (M. No.: A67610)   

Depositories National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL). 

Depositories Act The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time. 

DIN Directors Identification Number. 

Director(s) / our Directors The Director(s) of our Company, unless otherwise specified. 

DP/ Depository Participant A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act 

DP ID Depository’s Participant’s Identity Number 

Equity Shareholders/ 
Shareholders 

Persons/ Entities holding Equity Shares of our Company. 
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Equity Shares Equity Shares of the Company of Face Value of Rs. 10/- each unless otherwise specified in the 
context thereof. 

Executive Directors  Executive Directors are the Managing Director & Whole-time Directors of our Company. 

Fugitive economic offender  Shall mean an individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under section 12 of the 
Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018 (17 of 2018) 

GIR Number General Index Registry Number. 

HNI High Net worth Individual 

HUF  Hindu Undivided Family 

IBC The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 

Independent Director An Independent Director as defined under Section 2(47) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as 
defined under the Listing Regulations. For details of our Independent Directors, see “Our 

Management” on page 107 of this Red Herring Prospectus.  

Ind AS or Indian Accounting 
Standards 

Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 

ISIN International Securities Identification Number. In this case being INE0OLH01013 

IT Act The Income Tax Act, 1961 as amended till date. 

JV/ Joint Venture  A commercial enterprise undertaken jointly by two or more parties which otherwise retain their 
distinct identities. 

Key Management Personnel/ 
KMP 

Key Management Personnel of our Company in terms of Regulation 2(1)(bb) of the SEBI 
Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013. For details, see section titled “Our Management” 
on page 107 of this Red Herring Prospectus. 

LLP Limited Liability Partnership 

MOA / Memorandum / 
Memorandum of Association 

Memorandum of Association of Macfos Limited as amended from time to time. 

MD or Managing Director The Managing Director of our Company, Mr. Atul Maruti Dumbre  

Materiality Policy The policy adopted by our Board on January 12, 2023 for identification of Group Companies, 
material outstanding litigation and material outstanding dues to creditors, pursuant to the 
disclosure requirements under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 as amended from time to 
time.  

Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee 

The nomination and remuneration committee of our Board constituted in accordance with 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 as described in the chapter titled "Our Management" 
beginning on page 107 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus 

Non-Executive Director A Director not being an Executive Director. 

NRIs / Non-Resident Indians A person resident outside India, as defined under Foreign Exchange Management Act , 1999 
and who is a citizen of India or a Person of Indian Origin under Foreign Exchange 
Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident Outside India) Regulations, 
2000. 

Peer Review Auditor  Independent Auditor having a valid Peer Review certificate in our case being M/s. Kishor 
Gujar& Associates (Firm Registration No. as 116747W).     

Promoter(s) Shall mean promoters of our Company i.e. Atul Maruti Dumbre, Binod Prasad and 
Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan. For further details, please refer to section titled "Our 

Promoters & Promoter Group" beginning on page 118 of this Red Herring Prospectus.   

Promoter Group  Includes such Persons and companies constituting our promoter group covered under 
Regulation 2(1) (pp) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 as enlisted in the section “Our 

Promoters and Promoter Group” beginning on page 118 of this Red Herring Prospectus.  

Person or Persons Any Individual, Sole Proprietorship, Unincorporated Association, Unincorporated 
Organization, Body Corporate, Corporation, Company, Partnership, Limited Liability 
Company, Joint Venture, or Trust or any other entity or organization validly constituted and/or 
incorporated in the jurisdiction in which it exists and operates, as the context requires. 

RBI Act The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as amended from time to time. 

Registered Office of our 
Company 

The Registered Office of our Company situated at S. No. 78/1, Sumant Building, Dynamic 
Logistics Trade Park, Dighi, Bhosari Alandi Road, Pune – 411-015, Maharashtra, India. 

Reserve Bank of India / RBI  Reserve Bank of India constituted under the RBI Act. 

Restated Financial Information Restated financial statements of our Company which comprise the restated statement of assets 
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and liabilities as at and for the period ended September 30, 2022 and financial years ended 
March 31, 2022,2021 and 2020 and the statement of profit and loss and for the period ended 
September 30, 2022 and financial years ended March 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 and the 
summary of significant accounting policies, read with annexures and notes thereto and the 
examination reports thereon and other financial information for the financial years then ended, 
prepared in terms of the requirements of Section 26 of the Companies Act, the SEBI ICDR 
Regulations and the Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) 
issued by the ICAI, as amended from time to time and included in the section titled “Financial 
Information” on page 122 of this Red Herring Prospectus. 

RoC/ Registrar of Companies Registrar of Companies, Pune, Maharashtra, PCNTDA Green Building, Block A, 1st & 2nd 
Floor, Near Akurdi Railway Station, Akurdi, Pune - 411044 Maharashtra 

Shareholders  Shareholders of our Company from time to time.  

Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee 

Stakeholders’ relationship committee of our Company constituted in accordance with Section 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as described in the chapter titled "Our Management" 
beginning on page 107 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus  

Sub- Account Sub- accounts registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign 
Institutional Investor) Regulations, 1995, other than sub-accounts which are foreign corporate 
or foreign individuals.  

Subscriber to MOA Initial Subscribers to MOA & AOA being Atul Maruti Dumbre, Binod Prasad, Nileshkumar 
Purshottam Chavhan and Jayesh Jain. 

 
Offer Related Terms 
 

Terms Description 

Abridged Prospectus Abridged prospectus means a memorandum containing such salient features of a prospectus as 
may be specified by the SEBI in this behalf 

Acknowledgement Slip The slip or document issued by the Designated Intermediary to an applicant as proof of 
registration of the Application. 

Allocation/ Allocation of 
Equity Shares 

The Allocation of Equity Shares of our Company pursuant to Offer of Equity Shares to the 
successful Applicants. 

Allotment/Allot/Allotted Unless the context otherwise requires, means the allotment of Equity Shares, pursuant to the 
Offer to the successful applicants. 

Allotment Advice Note or advice or intimation of Allotment sent to the Applicants who have been allotted 
Equity Shares after the Basis of Allotment has been approved by the Designated Stock 
Exchanges 

Allottee (s) A successful applicant to whom the Equity Shares are allotted. 

Anchor Investor(s) A Qualified Institutional Buyer, applying under the Anchor Investor Portion in accordance 
with the requirements specified in the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Red Herring 
Prospectus and who has Bid for an amount of at least � 200 lakhs. 

Anchor Investor Allocation Price The price at which Equity Shares will be allocated to the Anchor Investors in terms of the Red 
Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus, which will be decided by our Company in consultation 
with the Book Running Lead Managers during the Anchor Investor Bid/ Offer Period. 

Anchor Investor Application Form The application form used by an Anchor Investor to make a Bid in the Anchor Investor Portion 
and which will be considered as an application for Allotment in terms of the Red Herring 
Prospectus and Prospectus 

Anchor Investor Bid/ Offer Period One Working Day prior to the Bid/ Offer Opening Date, on which Bids by Anchor Investors 
shall be submitted and allocation to the Anchor Investors shall be completed. 

Anchor Investor Offer Price The final price at which the Equity Shares will be Allotted to the Anchor Investors in terms of 
the Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus, which price will be equal to or higher than the 
Offer Price but not higher than the Cap Price. 
The Anchor Investor Offer Price will be decided by our Company, in consultation with the 
Book Running Lead Managers 

Anchor Investor Portion Up to 60% of the QIB Portion which may be allocated by our Company, in consultation with 
the Book Running Lead Managers, to the Anchor Investors on a discretionary basis in 
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 
One-third of the Anchor Investor Portion shall be reserved for domestic Mutual Funds, subject 
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to valid Bids being received from domestic Mutual Funds at or above the Anchor Investor 
Allocation Price, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

Application Supported by Block 
Amount (ASBA) 

An application, whether physical or electronic, used by all applicants to make an application 
authorizing a SCSB to block the application amount in the ASBA Account maintained with 
the SCSB. 
Pursuant to SEBI Circular dated November 10, 2015 and bearing Reference No. 
CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 which shall be applicable for all public issues opening on 
or after January 01, 2016, all the investors shall apply through ASBA process only. 

ASBA Account Account maintained by the ASBA Investor with an SCSB which will be blocked by such 
SCSB to the extent of the Application Amount of the ASBA Investor. 

ASBA Application Location(s)/ 
Specified Cities 

Locations at which ASBA Applications can be uploaded by the SCSBs, namely Mumbai, New 
Delhi, Chennai, Kolkata and Ahmedabad. 

ASBA Bidder Any prospective investor(s) / Bidder (s) in this Offer who apply(ies) through the ASBA 
process except Anchor Investor. 

ASBA Form/ Bid cum 
Application 

An Application form (with or without UPI ID, as applicable), whether physical or electronic, 
used by Bidders which will be considered as the application for Allotment in terms of the Red 
Herring Prospectus or the Prospectus. 

Bankers to the Offer/ Public Offer 
Bank/ Sponsor Bank 

Banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as Bankers to an Offer and with 
whom the Public Offer Account will be opened, in this case being Axis Bank Limited 

Banker to the Offer Agreement Agreement dated January 20, 2023 entered into amongst the Company, the selling 
shareholders, Book Running Lead Manager, the Registrar, Sponsor Bank/Banker to the Offer. 

Basis of Allotment The basis on which the Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful applicants under the Offer 
and which is described in the chapter titled “Offer Procedure” beginning on page 212 of this 
Red Herring Prospectus. 

Bid An indication to make an offer during the Bid/ Offer Period by a Bidder (other than an Anchor 
Investor) pursuant to submission of the ASBA Form, or during the Anchor Investor Bid/ Offer 
Period by an Anchor Investor, pursuant to submission of the Anchor Investor Application 
Form, to subscribe to or purchase the Equity Shares at a price within the Price Band, including 
all revisions and modifications thereto as permitted under the SEBI ICDR Regulations and in 
terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and the Bid cum Application Form. The term “Bidding” 
shall be construed accordingly. 

Bid Amount The highest value of optional Bids indicated in the Bid cum Application Form and in the case 
of Retail Individual Bidders Bidding at Cut Off Price, the Cap Price multiplied by the number 
of Equity Shares Bid for by such Retail Individual Bidder and mentioned in the Bid cum 
Application Form and payable by the Retail Individual Bidder or blocked in the ASBA 
Account upon submission of the Bid in the Offer. 

Bid Lot [�] equity shares and in multiples of [�] equity shares thereafter. 

Bid/ Offer Closing Date Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, the date after which the 
Syndicate, the Designated Branches and the Registered Brokers shall not accept the Bids, 
which shall be notified in all editions of Business Standard, an English national newspaper, all 
editions of Business Standard, a Hindi national newspaper and Pune Edition of 
Rashtrasanchar, a  Marathi daily  newspaper (Marathi being  the  regional  language  of 
Maharashtra,  where  our  Registered  Office  is located), each with wide circulation, and in 
case of any revision, the extended Bid/ Offer closing Date also to be notified on the website 
and terminals of the Syndicate, SCSB’s and Sponsor Bank, as required under the SEBI ICDR 
Regulations. 

Bid/ Offer Opening Date Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, the date on which the 
Syndicate, the Designated Branches and the Registered Brokers shall start accepting Bids, 
which shall be notified in all editions of Business Standard, an English national newspaper, all 
editions of Business Standard, a Hindi national newspaper and Pune Edition of 
Rashtrasanchar, a  Marathi daily  newspaper (Marathi being  the  regional  language  of 
Maharashtra,  where  our  Registered  Office  is located), each with wide circulation, and in 
case of any revision, the extended Bid/ Offer Opening Date also to be notified on the website 
and terminals of the Syndicate and SCSBs, as required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

Bid/ Offer Period Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, the period between the Bid/ 
Offer Opening Date and the Bid/ Offer Closing Date or the QIB Bid/ Offer Closing Date, as 
the case may be, inclusive of both days, during which Bidders can submit their Bids, including 
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any revisions thereof. Provided however that the Bidding/ Offer Period shall be kept open for a 
minimum of three Working Days for all categories of Bidders. 

Bidder/ Applicant Any prospective investor who makes a bid pursuant to the terms of the Red Herring 
Prospectus and the Bid-Cum-Application Form and unless otherwise stated or implied, which 
includes an ASBA Bidder and an Anchor Investor 

Bidding The process of making a Bid. 

Bidding/ Collection Centers Centers at which the Designated intermediaries shall accept the ASBA Forms, i.e. Designated 
SCSB Branches for SCSBs, specified locations for syndicates, broker centers for registered 
brokers, designated RTA Locations for RTAs and designated CDP locations for CDPs. 

Book Building Process/ Book 
Building Method 

Book  building  process,  as  provided  in  Part  A  of  Schedule  XIII  of  the  SEBI  ICDR 
Regulations, in terms of which the Offer is being made 

BRLM / Book Running Lead 
Manager 

Book Running Lead Manager to the Offer in this case being Hem Securities Limited, SEBI 
Registered Category I Merchant Banker. 

Broker Centers Broker Centres notified by the Stock Exchanges, where the investors can submit the 
Application Forms to a Registered Broker. The details of such Broker Centers, along with the 
names and contact details of the Registered Brokers are available on the websites of the Stock 
Exchange. 

Business Day Monday to Friday (except public holidays). 

CAN or Confirmation of 
Allocation Note  

The Note or advice or intimation sent to each successful Applicant indicating the Equity which 
will be allotted, after approval of Basis of Allotment by the designated Stock Exchange.  

Cap Price The higher end of the price band above which the Offer Price will not be finalized and above 
which no Bids (or a revision thereof) will be accepted. 

Client Id Client Identification Number maintained with one of the Depositories in relation to Demat 
account 

Collecting Depository Participants 
or CDPs 

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996, registered with SEBI 
and who is eligible to procure Applications at the Designated CDP Locations in terms of 
circular no. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 issued by SEBI 

Controlling Branches of the 
SCSBs 

Such branches of the SCSBs which coordinate with the LM, the Registrar to the Offer and the 
Stock Exchange. 

Cut Off Price The Offer Price, which shall be any price within the Price band as finalized by our Company 
in consultation with the BRLM. Only Retail Individual Bidders are entitled to Bid at the Cut-
off Price. QIBs (including Anchor Investor) and Non-Institutional Investors are not entitled to 
Bid at the Cut-off Price. 

Demographic Details The demographic details of the applicants such as their Address, PAN, name of the applicants 
father/husband, investor status, Occupation and Bank Account details. 

Depository / Depositories A depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996 as amended from time to time, being NSDL 
and CDSL. 

Depository Participant A Depository Participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996. 

Designated Date The date on which the instructions are given to the SCSBs to unblock the ASBA Accounts 
including the accounts linked with UPI ID and transfer the amounts blocked by SCSBs as the 
case may be, to the Public Offer Account in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and the 
aforesaid transfer and instructions shall be issued only after finalization of the Basis of 
Allotment in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange. 

Designated SCSB Branches Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Application Form from the 
Applicant and a list of which is available on the website of SEBI at 
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes. Recognized-
Intermediaries or at such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time 

Designated CDP Locations Such locations of the CDPs where Applicant can submit the Application Forms to Collecting 
Depository Participants. 
The details of such Designated CDP Locations, along with names and contact details of the 
Collecting Depository Participants eligible to accept Application Forms are available on the 
website of the Stock Exchange i.e. www.bseindia.com 

Designated RTA Locations Such locations of the RTAs where Applicant can submit the Application Forms to RTAs. 
The details of such Designated RTA Locations, along with names and contact details of the 
RTAs eligible to accept Application Forms are available on the websites of the Stock 
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Exchange i.e. www.bseindia.com 

Designated 
Intermediaries/Collecting Agent 

An SCSB’s with whom the bank account to be blocked, is maintained, a syndicate member (or 
sub-syndicate member), a Stock Broker registered with recognized Stock Exchange, a 
Depositary Participant, a registrar to an Offer and share transfer agent (RTA) (whose names is 
mentioned on website of the stock exchange as eligible for this activity) 

Designated Stock Exchange SME Platform of BSE Limited(“BSE SME”)  

DP ID Depository Participant’s Identity Number 

Draft Red Herring Prospectus  Draft Red Herring Prospectus dated January 19, 2023 issued in accordance with Section 26 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 

Eligible NRI A Non-Resident Indian in a jurisdiction outside India where it is not unlawful to make an offer 
or invitation under the Offer and in relation to whom this Red Herring Prospectus will 
constitute an invitation to subscribe for the Equity Shares. 

Equity Shares Equity Shares of our Company of face value Rs.10.00 each 

Electronic Transfer of Funds Refunds through NACH, NEFT, Direct Credit or RTGS as applicable. 

Eligible QFIs QFIs from such jurisdictions outside India where it is not unlawful to make an issue or 
invitation under the Offer and in relation to whom the Prospectus constitutes an invitation to 
purchase the Equity shares issued thereby and who have opened Demat accounts with SEBI 
registered qualified depositary participants. 

Escrow Account(s) The account(s) to be opened with the Escrow Collection Bank and in whose favour the Anchor 
Investors will transfer money through NACH/direct credit/ NEFT/ RTGS in respect of the Bid 
Amount when submitting a Bid. 

FII/ Foreign Institutional Investors Foreign Institutional Investor as defined under SEBI (Foreign Institutional Investors) 
Regulations, 1995, as amended) registered with SEBI under applicable laws in India. 

First/ Sole Bidder/Applicant Bidder(s) whose name shall be mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form or the Revision 
Form and in case of joint bids, whose name shall also appear as the first holder of the 
beneficiary account held in joint names. 

Floor Price The lower end of the Price Band, subject to any revision(s) thereto, at or above which the 
Offer Price and the Anchor Investor Offer Price will be finalised and below which no Bids will 
be accepted 

Foreign Venture Capital Investors Foreign Venture Capital Investors registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Foreign Venture 
Capital Investor) Regulations, 2000. 

FPI / Foreign Portfolio 
Investor 

A Foreign Portfolio Investor who has been registered pursuant to the of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014, provided that any 
FII or QFI who holds a valid certificate of registration shall be deemed to be a foreign 
portfolio investor till the expiry of the block of three years for which fees have been paid as 
per the SEBI (Foreign Institutional Investors) Regulations, 1995, as amended 

Fulfillment Centre Our Warehouse facility situated at Pune.  

General Information Document 
(GID) 

The General Information Document for investing in public issues prepared and issued in 
accordance with the circulars (CIR/CFD/DIL/12/2013) dated October 23, 2013, notified by 
SEBI and updated pursuant to the circular (CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015) dated 
November 10, 2015 and (SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL/CIR/P/2016/26) dated January 21, 2016 and 
(SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/22) dated February 15, 2018 notified by the SEBI. 

Listing Agreement The Equity Listing Agreement to be signed between our Company and the Stock Exchange. 

Mandate Request Mandate Request means a request initiated on the RII by sponsor bank to authorize blocking 
of funds equivalent to the application amount and subsequent debit to funds in case of 
allotment. 

Market Maker  Member Brokers of BSE who are specifically registered as Market Makers with the BSE(SME 
platform.). In our case, Hem Securities Limited is the sole Market Marker  

Market Making Agreement The Market Making Agreement dated January 20, 2023 between our Company, Book Running 
Lead Manager and Market Maker. 

Market Maker Reservation Portion The reserved portion of 1,16,400 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each at an Offer price of Rs. [�] each 
aggregating to Rs. [�] Lakhs to be subscribed by Market Maker in this Offer. 

Mutual Funds A mutual fund registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996, as 
amended from time to time 

Mutual Fund Portion 5% of the Net QIB Portion (other than anchor allocation), which shall be available for 
allocation to Mutual Funds only on a proportionate basis, subject to valid Bids being received 



7 

at or above the Offer Price. 

Net Offer The Offer (excluding the Market Maker Reservation Portion) of 22,11,600 equity Shares of 
Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. [�] per Equity Share (the “Offer Price”), including a share 
premium of Rs. [�] per equity share aggregating to Rs. [�] Lacs. 

Non-Institutional Bidders All  Bidders  that  are  not  QIBs,  RIBs or Eligible  Employees  Bidding  in  the  Employee 
Reservation  Portion and who have Bid for Equity Shares, for an amount of more than � 
200,000 (but not including NRIs other than Eligible NRIs) 

Non-Institutional Portion The portion of the Offer being not less than 15% of the Offer, consisting of 3,32,400 Equity 
Shares, which shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Non Institutional 
Investors, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the  Offer Price. 

Offer/Public Offer/Offer 
size/Initial Public Offer/Initial 
Public Offering/ IPO/Issue/Issue 
Size 

The Initial Public Offer of upto 23,28,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at Offer price of Rs. 
[�]/- per Equity share, including a premium of Rs. [�]/- per equity share aggregating to Rs. [�] 
lakhs comprising of offer for sale of upto 23,28,000 Equity shares aggregating to Rs. [�] 
lakhs. 

Offer Agreement The Offer Agreement dated January 12, 2023 between our Company, Selling Shareholders, 
Jayesh Jain, Atul Maruti Dumbre, Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan, Binod Prasad and Book 
Running Lead Manager, Hem Securities Limited. 

Offer Proceeds Our Company will not receive any proceeds from the Offer. 

Offered Shares Offer of upto 23,28,000 Equity shares aggregating to Rs. [�] lakhs being offered for sale by 
the selling shareholders in the offer 

Overseas Corporate Body/ OCB  Overseas Corporate Body means and includes an entity defined in clause (xi) of Regulation 2 
of the Foreign Exchange Management (Withdrawal of General Permission to Overseas 
Corporate Bodies (OCB’s) Regulations 2003 and which was in existence on the date of the 
commencement of these Regulations and immediately prior to such commencement was 
eligible to undertake transactions pursuant to the general permission granted under the 
Regulations. OCBs are not allowed to invest in this Offer. 

Pay-in-Period The period commencing on the Bid/Issue Opening date and extended till the closure of the 
Anchor Investor Pay-in-Date. 

Price Band Price Band of a minimum price (Floor Price) of � [�] and the maximum price (Cap Price) of � 
[�] and includes revisions thereof. The Price Band will be decided by our Company and 
Selling Shareholders in consultation with the BRLM and advertised in two national daily 
newspapers (one each in English and in Hindi) with wide circulation and one daily regional 
newspaper with wide circulation at least two working days prior to the Bid/ Issue Opening 
Date. 

Pricing Date The date on which our Company in consultation with the BRLM, will finalize the Offer Price. 

Prospectus The Prospectus, to be filed with the Registrar of Companies in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 26 & 32 of the Companies Act, 2013, containing, inter alia, the Offer Price, size of 
the Offer and certain other information. 

Public Offer Account Account to be opened with the Bankers to the Offer to receive monies from the SCSBs from 
the bank account of the Applicant, on the Designated Date. 

QIB Category/ QIB Portion The portion of the Net Offer (including the Anchor Investor Portion) being not more than 50% 
of the Net Offer, consisting of 11,04,000 Equity Shares aggregating to �[�] lakhs which shall 
be Allotted to QIBs (including Anchor Investors) on a proportionate basis, including the 
Anchor Investor Portion (in which allocation shall be on a discretionary basis, as determined 
by our Company in consultation with the BRLMs), subject to valid Bids being received at or 
above the Offer Price or Anchor Investor Offer Price (for Anchor Investors). 

Qualified Institutional Buyers/ 
QIBs 

A Mutual Fund, Venture Capital Fund and Foreign Venture Capital Investor registered with 
the SEBI, a foreign institutional investor and sub-account (other than a sub-account which is a 
foreign corporate or foreign individual), registered with SEBI; a public financial institution as 
defined in Section 2(72) of the Companies Act, 2013; a scheduled commercial bank; a 
multilateral and bilateral development financial institution; a state industrial development 
corporation; an insurance company registered with the Insurance Regulatory and Development 
Authority; a provident fund with minimum corpus of Rs. 25.00 Crore; a pension fund with 
minimum corpus of Rs. 25.00 Crore; National Investment Fund set up by resolution No. F. 
No. 2/3/2005 – DDII dated November 23, 2005 of the Government of India published in the 
Gazette of India, insurance funds set up and managed by army, navy or air force of the Union 
of India and insurance funds set up and managed by the Department of Posts, India and 
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systemically important non-banking financial companies. 

Red Herring Prospectus / RHP This Red herring prospectus dated February 08, 2023 issued in accordance with Section 32 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, which does not 
have complete particulars of the price at which the Equity Shares will be offered and the size 
of the Issue including any addenda or corrigenda thereto. 
The Red Herring Prospectus will be filed with the RoC at least three Working Days before the 
Bid/Issue Opening Date and will become the Prospectus upon filing with the RoC after the 
Pricing Date. 

Refund Account The ‘no-lien’ and ‘non-interest bearing’ account opened with the Refund Bank, from which 
refunds, if  any,  of the  whole  or part,  of the  Bid  Amount  to  the  Anchor  Investors  shall  
be made. 

Refund Bank/ Refund Banker Bank which is / are clearing member(s) and registered with the SEBI as Bankers to the Issue at 
which the Refund Account will be opened, in this case being Axis Bank Limited. 

Refund through electronic transfer 
of funds 

Refunds through NECS, direct credit, RTGS or NEFT, as applicable. 

Registrar/ Registrar to the Offer/ 
RTA/ RTI 

Registrar to the Offer, in this case being Bigshare Services Private Limited.  

Registrar Agreement The agreement dated January 16, 2023 entered into among our Company, selling shareholders 
and the Registrar to the Offer in relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar 
to the Offer pertaining to the Offer 

Registered Broker Individuals or companies registered with SEBI as “Trading Members”(except Syndicate/Sub-
Syndicate Members) who hold valid membership either BSE having right to trade in stocks 
listed on Stock Exchanges, through which investors can buy or sell securities listed on stock 
exchanges, a list of which is available on the website of the Stock Exchange. 

Regulations SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as amended from 
time to time. 

Reserved Category/ Categories Categories of persons eligible for making application under reservation portion. 

Regulation S Regulation S under the Securities Act  

Reservation Portion The portion of the Offer reserved for category of eligible Applicants as provided under the 
SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. 

Retail Portion The portion of the Issue being not less than 35% of the Net Offer, consisting of 7,75,200 
Equity Shares, available for allocation to Retail Individual Bidders. 

Retail Individual Bidders/ RIBs/ 
Retail Individual Investors/ RIIs 

Individual Bidders, submitting Bids, who have Bid for Equity Shares for an amount not more 
than � 2,00,000/- in any of the bidding options in the Net Offer (including HUFs applying 
through their Karta and Eligible NRIs and does not include NRIs other than Eligible NRIs). 

Revision Form The form used by the Applicants to modify the quantity of Equity Shares or the Application 
Amount in any of their Applications or any previous Revision Form(s). 

Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agents or RTAs 

Registrar and share transfer agents registered with SEBI and eligible to procure Applications 
at the Designated RTA Locations in terms of circular no. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 
DATED November 10, 2015 issued by SEBI. 

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the SEBI Act, 1992. 

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended from time to time. 

SEBI AIF Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternate Investments Funds) Regulations, 2012, as 
amended. 

SEBI (ICDR) Regulations /ICDR 
Regulation/ Regulation 

SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 issued by SEBI on 
September 11, 2018, as amended, including instructions and clarifications issued by SEBI 
from time to time. 

SEBI Insider Trading Regulations The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015 as amended, including instructions and clarifications issued by SEBI from time to time. 

SEBI SAST / SEBI (SAST) 
Regulations 

SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as amended  

SEBI SBEB Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014. 

SEBI LODR/SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulations/ Listing 
Regulations/ 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement), 
Regulations 2015, as amended from time to time. 
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SEBI (Venture Capital) 
Regulations  

Securities Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital) Regulations, 1996 as amended from 
time to time. 

Self-Certified Syndicate Bank(s) / 
SCSB(s) 

Shall mean a Banker to an Offer registered under Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Bankers to an Issue) Regulations, 1994, as amended from time to time, and which offer the 
service of making Application/s Supported by Blocked Amount including blocking of bank 
account and a list of which is available on 
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes  or at such other 
website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time. 

SEBI (Foreign Portfolio Investor) 
Regulations 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014. 

SEBI(PFUTP)Regulations/PFUTP 
Regulations  

SEBI (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices relating to Securities Markets) 
Regulations, 2003 

Specified Securities Equity shares offered through the Red Herring Prospectus. 

Sponsor Bank Sponsor Bank means a Banker to the Offer registered with SEBI, which is appointed by the 
Issuer to act as a conduit between the Stock Exchanges and NPCI (National Payments 
Corporation of India) in order to push the mandate, collect requests and / or payment 
instructions of the Retail Investors into the UPI. 

Securities laws Means the Act, the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, the Depositories Act, 1996 
and the rules and regulations made thereunder and the general or special orders, guidelines or 
circulars made or issued by the Board thereunder and the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 or any previous company law and any subordinate legislation framed thereunder, which 
are administered by the Board.  

Selling Shareholders Collectively Jayesh Jain, Atul Maruti Dumbre, Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan and Binod 
Prasad. 

Stock Exchange Unless the context requires otherwise, refers to, BSE Limited  

Share Escrow Agent The  share  escrow  agent  appointed  pursuant  to  the  Share  Escrow  Agreement,  namely, 
Hem Securities Limited 

Share Escrow Agreement The agreement dated January 20, 2023,entered into between our Company, the Selling 
Shareholders and the  Share  Escrow  Agent  in  connection  with  the  transfer  of  the  Offered  
Shares  by  the Selling  Shareholders  and  credit  of  such  Equity  Shares  to  the  demat  
account  of  the Allottees in accordance with the Basis of Allotment. 

Sponsor Bank Sponsor Bank means a Banker to the Issue registered with SEBI, which is appointed by the 
Issuer to act as a conduit between the Stock Exchanges and NPCI (National Payments 
Corporation of India) in order to push the mandate, collect requests and / or payment 
instructions of the Retail Investors into the UPI. In this case being, Axis Bank Ltd. 

Sub-Syndicate Members The  sub-syndicate  members,  if  any,  appointed  by  the  BRLMs  and  the  Syndicate 
Members, to collect ASBA Forms and Revision Forms. 

Syndicate Agreement The agreement dated January 20, 2023 entered into amongst our Company, the BRLM, selling 
shareholders and the Syndicate Members, in relation to the collection of Bids in this Issue. 

Syndicate Member(s) Syndicate members as defined   under   Regulation   2(1)(hhh)   of   the   SEBI   ICDR 
Regulations, namely, Hem Finlease Private Limited. 

Syndicate   or   Members   of   the 
Syndicate 

Includes the BRLM, Syndicate Members and Sub Syndicate Members. 

Transaction Registration Slip/ 
TRS 

The slip or document issued by the member of the Syndicate or SCSB (only on demand) as the 
case may be, to the Applicant as proof of registration of the Application. 

Underwriter The LM who has underwritten this Issue pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI (ICDR) 
Regulations, 2018 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Underwriters) 
Regulations, 1993, as amended from time to time. 

Underwriting Agreement The Agreement dated January 20, 2023 entered between the Underwriter, BRLM, selling 
shareholders and our Company.  

UPI UPI is an instant payment system developed by the NCPI, it enables merging several banking 
features, seamless fund routing & merchant payment into one hood. UPI allow instant transfer 
of money between any two bank accounts using a payment address which uniquely identifies a 
person’s bank account 

“UPI Circulars” The SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 1, 2018 and 
SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/50 dated April 3, 2019, SEBI circular no. 
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SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated June 28, 2019, SEBI circular no. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019, SEBI circular no. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/DCR2/CIR/P/2019/133 dated November 8, 2019, circular no. 
(SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/50) dated March 30, 2020, Circular number 
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/2480/1/M dated March 16, 2021, SEBI circular 
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47 dated March 31, 2021, SEBI circular 
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2021/570 dated June 2, 2021,SEBI circular no. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/P/2022/45 dated April 5, 2022, SEBI circular no. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/51 dated April 20, 2022, SEBI circular 
no.SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2022/75 dated May 30, 2022 any other circulars issued by 
SEBI or any other governmental authority in relation thereto from time to time and any 
subsequent circulars or notifications issued by SEBI or any other governmental authority in 
this regard from time to time 

UPI ID ID created on Unified Payment Interface (UPI) for single window mobile payment system 
developed by the National Payment Corporation of India (NPCI) 

UPI Mandate Request/ Mandate 
Request 

A request (intimating the RII by way of notification on the UPI application and by way of a 
SMS directing the RII to such UPI application) to the RII by sponsor bank to authorize 
blocking of funds equivalent to the application amount and subsequent debit to funds in case 
of allotment. 

UPI PIN Password to authenticate UPI transaction 

UPI Mechanism The mechanism that was used by an RIB to make a Bid in the Offer in accordance with the 
UPI Circulars on Streamlining of Public Issues 

U.S. Securities Act U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended 

Venture Capital Fund Foreign Venture Capital Funds (as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996) registered with SEBI under applicable laws in 
India. 

Wilful Defaulter(s) Company or person categorised as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as 
defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in accordance with the 
guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India and includes any company 
whose director or promoter is categorised as such and as defined under Regulation 2(1)(lll) of 
the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. 

Working Day In accordance with Regulation 2(1)(mmm) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018,working days 
means, all days on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business.  
However, in respect of– 
(a) announcement of Price Band; and 
(b) Issue period, working days shall mean all days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public 

holidays, on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business; 
(c) the time period between the Offer Closing Date and the listing of the Equity Shares on the 

Stock Exchange, working day shall mean all trading days of the Stock Exchange, 
excluding Sundays and bank holidays, as per circulars issued by SEBI. 

 

Technical and Industry Related Terms 

 

Term Description 

COD Cash on Delivery 

DIY learning kits Do it yourself learning kits 

E-bike/E-Vehicles Electric Bike / Electric Vehicle 

EBITDA EBITDA is calculated as Profit before tax + Depreciation + Interest Expenses - Other Income  

EBITDA Margin EBITDA Margin’ is calculated as EBITDA divided by Revenue from Operations 

ERP Enterprise Resource Planning 

FDM 3d Printing Fused Deposition Modeling 3d Printing 

FPV Cameras First-person view Camera 

IoT Internet of things 

IC Integrated Circuit  

LiDAR sensor Light Detection and Ranging sensor 
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Number of orders Number of orders indicates the count of sales orders which we have received from the 
customers for the year/period. 

Number of customers Number of customers indicates the count of customers who contributed to revenue from 
operations for the year/period.  

PAT PAT is calculated as Profit before tax – Tax Expenses 

PAT Margin PAT Margin is calculated as PAT for the period/year divided by Revenue from Operations 

PCB Printed circuit board 

RC Radio Control 

Return on Capital Employed Return on Capital Employed is calculated as EBIT divided by capital employed, which is 
defined as shareholders’ equity plus total borrowings {current & non-current} 

Return on Equity Return on Equity is ratio of Profit after Tax and Average Shareholder Equity 

SLA 3d printing Stereolithography 3d printing 

SKU Stock Keeping Unit 

R & D Research and development (R&D) 

Revenue from operations Revenue from operations is the total revenue generated by our Company from the sale of 

products 

UAV Unmanned Aerial Vehicle 

 

Conventional terms and Abbreviations 
 

Abbreviation Full Form 

Rs. / Rupees/ INR  Indian Rupees  

AS / Accounting Standard Accounting Standards as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

A/c Account 

ACS Associate Company Secretary 

AGM Annual General Meeting 

ASBA  Applications Supported by Blocked Amount 

AMT Amount 

AIF Alternative Investment Funds registered under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012, as amended.  

AY Assessment Year 

AOA Articles of Association 

Approx Approximately 

B. A Bachelor of Arts 

B. Com Bachelor of Commerce 

B. E Bachelor of Engineering 

B. Sc Bachelor of Science 

B. Tech Bachelor of Technology 

Bn Billion 

BG/LC Bank Guarantee / Letter of Credit 

BIFR Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction 

BSE Bombay Stock Exchange  

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited 

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate 

CAN Confirmation of Allocation Note 

Companies Act, 2013 Companies Act, 2013 to the extent in force pursuant to the notification of sections of the 
Companies Act, 2013 along with the relevant rules made thereunder as amended. 

CA Chartered Accountant 

CAIIB Certified Associate of Indian Institute of Bankers 

CB Controlling Branch 

CC Cash Credit 

CIN Corporate Identification Number 

CIT Commissioner of Income Tax 
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CS Company Secretary 

CS & CO Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

CFO Chief Financial Officer 

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility 

C.P.C.  Code of Civil Procedure, 1908  

CrPC Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 

CENVAT Central Value Added Tax  

CST Central Sales Tax 

CWA/ICWA Cost and Works Accountant 

CMD Chairman and Managing Director 

DIN Director Identification Number 

DIPP Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion, Ministry of Commerce, Government of India 

DP Depository Participant 

DP ID  Depository Participant’s Identification Number 

EBITDA Earnings Before Interest, Taxes,  Depreciation & Amortization 

ECS Electronic Clearing System 

ESIC Employee’s State Insurance Corporation 

EPFA Employee’s Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,1952 

EMI Equated Monthly Installment 

EPS Earnings Per Share 

EGM /EOGM Extraordinary General Meeting 

ESOP Employee Stock Option Plan 

EXIM/ EXIM Policy Export – Import Policy 

FCNR Account Foreign Currency Non Resident Account 

FIPB Foreign Investment Promotion Board 

FY / Fiscal/Financial Year Period of twelve months ended March 31 of that particular year, unless otherwise stated 

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 as amended from time to time, and the regulations 
framed there under. 

FCNR Account Foreign Currency Non Resident Account 

FBT  Fringe Benefit Tax 

FDI Foreign Direct Investment 

FIs Financial Institutions 

FIIs Foreign Institutional Investors (as defined under Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or 
Issue of Security by a Person Resident outside India) Regulations, 2000) registered with SEBI 
under applicable laws in India 

FPIs “Foreign Portfolio Investor” means a person who satisfies the eligibility criteria prescribed 
under regulation 4 and has been registered under Chapter II of Securities And Exchange Board 
of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014, which shall be deemed to be an 
intermediary in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Act, 1992 

FTA Foreign Trade Agreement 

FVCI Foreign Venture Capital Investors registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors) Regulations, 2000. 

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, including the rules and regulations thereunder 

FEMA Rules Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019 

Finance Act Finance Act, 1994 

Fraudulent Borrower A fraudulent borrower as defined in Regulation 2(1)(lll) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

FV Face Value 
Fugitive Economic Offender An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of the Fugitive 

Economic Offenders Act, 2018 
GoI/Government Government of India 

GDP Gross Domestic Product 

GST Goods and Services Tax 

GVA Gross Value Added 

HUF Hindu Undivided Family 

HNI  High Net Worth Individual 
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HSL Hem Securities Limited 

IBC The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 

ICAI  The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

ISIN  International Securities Identification Number  

IST Indian Standard Time 

ICWAI The Institute of Cost Accountants of India 

IMF International Monetary Fund 

IIP Index of Industrial Production 

IPO  Initial Public Offer 

ICSI The Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
IT Information Technology 
IT Act InformationTechnologyAct,2000 
IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards 

INR / �/ Rupees Indian Rupees, the legal currency of the Republic of India 

I.T. Act Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time to time 

IT Authorities Income Tax Authorities 

IT Rules Income Tax Rules, 1962, as amended, except as stated otherwise 

Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India 

Ind AS Rules The Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 

IRDA Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority 

KMP Key Managerial Personnel 

Lac/Lakh/Lakhs Lakh 

LM Book Running Lead Manager 

LLB Bachelor of Law 

Ltd. Limited 

LLP Limited Liability Partnership 

MAT Minimum Alternate Tax 

MCA/ Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs  

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, GoI 

Mn/mn  Million 

MoF Ministry of Finance, Government of India 

MoU Memorandum of Understanding  

M. A Master of Arts 

MCA Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India 

M. B. A Master of Business Administration 

MAT Minimum Alternate Tax 

M. Com Master of Commerce 

Mn Million 

M. E Master of Engineering 

M. Tech Masters of Technology 

Merchant Banker Merchant Banker as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant 
Bankers) Regulations, 1992 

MSME Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

MAPIN  Market Participants and Investors Database 

NA Not Applicable 

NCLT National Company Law Tribunal  

Networth The aggregate of paid up Share Capital and Share Premium account and Reserves and 
Surplus(Excluding revaluation reserves) as reduced by aggregate of Miscellaneous 
Expenditure(to the extent not written off) and debit balance of Profit & Loss Account 

NACH National Automated Clearing House 

NEFT  National Electronic Funds Transfer 

NECS National Electronic Clearing System 

NAV Net Asset Value  

NCT National Capital Territory 
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NPV Net Present Value 

NRIs Non-Resident Indians 

NRE Account Non Resident External Account  

NRO Account Non Resident Ordinary Account 

NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

NOC No Objection Certificate 

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited 

OCB or Overseas Corporate Body A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or indirectly to the 
extent of at least 60% by NRIs including overseas trusts in which not less than 60% of the 
beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs directly or indirectly and which was in existence 
on October 3, 2003 and immediately before such date was eligible to undertake transactions 
pursuant to the general permission granted to OCBs under the FEMA. OCBs are not allowed 
to invest in the Issue. 

P.A. Per Annum 

PF Provident Fund 

PG Post Graduate 

PLR  Prime Lending Rate  

PAC Persons Acting in Concert 

P/E Ratio Price/Earnings Ratio 

PAN Permanent Account Number 

PAT Profit After Tax 

P.O. Purchase Order 

PBT Profit Before Tax 

PLI Postal Life Insurance 

POA Power of Attorney 

PSU Public Sector Undertaking(s) 

Pvt. Private 

RoC Registrar of Companies 

RBI The Reserve Bank of India 

Registration Act Registration Act, 1908 

ROE Return on Equity 

RaD Report Reports and Data Report 

R&D  Research & Development 

Rs. or Rs. Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India  

RONW Return on Net Worth 

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement 

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, as amended from time to time 

SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended from time to time 

SME Small and Medium Enterprises 

SCSB Self-Certified syndicate Banks 

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended 

SEBI AIF Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternate Investments Funds) Regulations, 2012, as 
amended. 

SEBI FII Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Institutional Investors) Regulations, 1995, as 
amended from time to time. 

SEBI FPI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014, as 
amended from time to time. 

SEBI FVCI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investor) Regulations, 2000, 
as amended from time to time. 

SEBI Insider Trading 
Regulations 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as 
amended 

SEBI (PFUTP) Regulations / 
PFUTP Regulations  

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices 
relating to Securities Markets) Regulations, 2003 

SEBI Regulations/ SEBI ICDR 
Regulations  

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018, as amended. 
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SEBI SBEB Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014. 

SEBI Takeover Regulations / 
Takeover Regulations / Takeover 
Code  

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011, as amended. 

SEBI VCF Regulations  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996 as 
amended from time to time. 

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India 

STT Securities Transaction Tax 

Sub-Account Sub-accounts registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Foreign Institutional Investor) 
Regulations, 1995, other than sub-accounts which are foreign corporate or foreign individuals. 

Sec. Section 

SPV  Special Purpose Vehicle 

TAN  Tax Deduction Account Number 

TRS Transaction Registration Slip 

Trade Marks Act Trade Marks Act, 1999 

TIN Taxpayers Identification Number 

UIN  Unique identification number 

U.N. United Nations 

US/United States United States of America 

USD/ US$/ $ United States Dollar, the official currency of the Unites States of America 

U.S. GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America 

VAT Value Added Tax 

VCF / Venture Capital Fund Venture Capital Funds (as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture 
Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996) registered with SEBI under applicable laws in India. 

Wilful Defaulter(s) Company or person categorised as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as 
defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in accordance with the 
guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India and includes any company 
whose director or promoter is categorised as such and as defined under Regulation 2(1)(lll) of 
the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. 

WDV Written Down Value 

WTD Whole Time Director 

w.e.f. With effect from 

-, (�) Represent Outflow 

 
The words and expressions used but not defined in this Red Herring Prospectus will have the same meaning as assigned to such 
terms under the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (the “SEBI Act”), the SCRA, SEBI 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 the Depositories Act and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder. 
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CERTAIN CONVENTIONS, USE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND MARKET DATA AND CURRENCY OF 

FINANCIAL PRESENTATION 
 
Certain Conventions 
 
All references in the Red Herring Prospectus to “India” are to the Republic of India. All references in the RHP to the “U.S.”, “USA” 
or “United States” are to the United States of America. 
 
In this RHP, unless the context otherwise requires, all references to one gender also refers to another gender and the word “Lac / 
Lakh” means “one hundred thousand”, the word “million (mn)” means “Ten Lac / Lakh”, the word “Crore” means “ten million” and 
the word “billion (bn)” means “one hundred crore”. In this RHP, any discrepancies in any table between total and the sum of the 
amounts listed are due to rounding-off. All figures in decimals have been rounded off to the second decimal and all percentage 
figures have been rounded off to two decimal places. In certain instances, (i) the sum or percentage change of such numbers may not 
conform exactly to the total figure given; and (ii) the sum of the numbers in a column or row in certain tables may not conform 
exactly to the total figure given for that column or row. 
 
Use of Financial Data 
 
Unless stated otherwise, throughout this RHP, all figures have been expressed in Rupees and Lakh. Unless stated otherwise, the 
financial data in the RHP is derived from our restated financial information prepared for the half year ended September 30, 2022 
and the financial year ended 31st March 2022, 2021 and 2020 in accordance with Indian GAAP, the Companies Act and SEBI 
(ICDR) Regulations, 2018 included under Section titled “Financial Information of the Company” beginning on page 122 of this 
RHP. 
 
There are significant differences between Indian GAAP, the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). Accordingly, the degree to which the Indian 
GAAP financial statements included in this RHP will provide meaningful information is entirely dependent on the reader’s level of 
familiarity with Indian accounting practice and Indian GAAP. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian accounting practices 
on the financial disclosures presented in this RHP should accordingly be limited. We have not attempted to explain those differences 
or quantify their impact on the financial data included herein, and we urge you to consult your own advisors regarding such 
differences and their impact on our financial data. 
 
Any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors”, “Our Business”, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations” and elsewhere in the RHP unless otherwise indicated, have been calculated on the basis of the 
Company‘s restated financial statements prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, Indian GAAP 
and restated in accordance with SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as stated in the report of our Peer Review Auditor, set out in 
section titled “Financial Information of the Company” beginning on page 122 of this RHP.We do not have any Subsidiary Company 
as on date of the RHP.Our fiscal year commences on April 1 of every year and ends on March 31st of every next year. 
 
For additional definitions used in this RHP, see the section “Definitions and Abbreviations” on page 1 of this RHP  In the section 
titled “Main Provisions of the Articles of Association”, on page 239 of the RHP defined terms have the meaning given to such 
terms in the Articles of Association of our Company. 
 
Use of Industry & Market Data 
 
Unless stated otherwise, industry and market data and forecast used throughout the RHP was obtained from internal Company 
reports, data, websites, Industry publications report as well as Government Publications. Industry publication data and website data 
generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but that their accuracy 
and completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured. 
 
Although, we believe industry and market data used in the RHP is reliable, it has not been independently verified by us or the 
BRLM or any of their affiliates or advisors. Similarly, internal Company reports and data, while believed by us to be reliable, have 
not been verified by any independent source. There are no standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in which we 
conduct our business and methodologies and assumptions may vary widely among different market and industry sources. 
 
In accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 the section titled “Basis for Offer Price” on page 68 of the RHP includes 
information relating to our peer group companies. Such information has been derived from publicly available sources, and neither 
we, nor the BRLM, have independently verified such information. 
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Currency of Financial Presentation  
 
All references to “Rupees” or “INR” or “Rs.” or “Rs.” are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India. Except 
where specified, including in the section titled “Industry Overview” throughout the RHP all figures have been expressed in Lakhs. 
  
Any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors”, “Our Business”, “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial 

Conditions and Results of Operations” on page 24, 84 and 174 respectively of this RHP, unless otherwise indicated, have been 
calculated based on our restated financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP. 
 
The RHP contains conversion of certain US Dollar and other currency amounts into Indian Rupees that have been presented solely 
to comply with the requirements of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. These conversions should not be construed as a 
representation that those US Dollar or other currency amounts could have been, or can be converted into Indian Rupees, at any 
particular rate.  
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS 

 
This RHP includes certain “forward-looking statements”. We have included statements in the RHP which contain words or phrases 
such as “will”, “aim”, “is likely to result”, “believe”, “expect”, “will continue”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “intend”, “plan”, 
“contemplate”, “seek to”, “future”, “objective”, “goal”, “project”, “should”, “will pursue” and similar expressions or variations of 
such expressions, that are “forward-looking statements”. Also, statements which describe our strategies, objectives, plans or goals 
are also forward-looking statements. 
 
All forward looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us that could cause actual results to differ 
materially from those contemplated by the relevant forward-looking statement. Forward-looking statements reflect our current 
views with respect to future events and are not a guarantee of future performance. These statements are based on our management’s 
beliefs and assumptions, which in turn are based on currently available information. Although we believe the assumptions upon 
which these forward-looking statements are based are reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate, and the 
forward-looking statements based on these assumptions could be incorrect. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ 
materially from our expectations include but are not limited to: 
 
1. General economic and business conditions in the markets in which we operate and in the local, regional, national and 

international economies; 
2. Changes in consumer demand;  
3. Failure to successfully upgrade our product portfolio, from time to time;  
4. Any change in government policies resulting in increases in taxes payable by us; 
5. Our ability to retain our key managements persons and other employees; 
6. Changes in laws and regulations that apply to the industries in which we operate. 
7. Our failure to keep pace with rapid changes in technology;  
8. Our ability to grow our business; 
9. Our ability to make interest and principal payments on our existing debt obligations and satisfy the other covenants contained in 

our existing debt agreements; 
10. general economic, political and other risks that are out of our control; 
11. Inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, equity prices or other rates or prices; 
12. Company’s ability to successfully implement its growth strategy and expansion plans ; 
13. failure to comply with regulations prescribed by authorities of the jurisdictions in which we operate;  
14. inability to successfully obtain registrations in a timely manner or at all; 
15. occurrence of Uninsured Losses; 
16. conflicts of interest with the promoter group and other related parties;  
17. any adverse outcome in the legal proceedings in which we are involved; 
18. Concentration of ownership among our Promoter; 
19. The performance of the financial markets in India and globally; 
20. Impact of covid-19 on our business and operations; and 
21. Global distress due to pandemic, war or by any other reason. 

 
For further discussion of factors that could cause our actual results to differ, see the Section titled “Risk Factors”, “Our Business” 

and “ Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” beginning on page 24, 84 and 
174 respectively of the RHP. By their nature, certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different 
from what actually occurs in the future. As a result, actual future gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been 
estimated.  
 
There can be no assurance to investors that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements will prove to be correct. 
Given these uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements and not to regard 
such statements to be a guarantee of our future performance. 
 
Neither our Company or our Directors or Selling Shareholders or our Officers or Book Running Lead Manager or Underwriter nor 
any of their respective affiliates have any obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising 
after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition. In 
accordance with SEBI requirements, our Company, Selling Shareholders and the BRLM will ensure that investors in India are 
informed of material developments until such time as the grant of listing and trading permission by the Stock Exchange for the 
Equity Shares allotted pursuant to this Offer. 
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SECTION II: SUMMARY OF RED HERRING PROSPECTUS 

 
SUMMARY OF BUSINESS 
 
We are primarily an e-commerce based Company focused on the marketing of a broad range of electronic components which finds 
application in basic and advanced engineering products & projects, including emerging technologies such as IoT, Robotics, 
Automations, Drone, Electric Vehicles, 3D Printing and Auto Guided Vehicles. Our broad portfolio consists of over +12,000 SKU’s 
of electronics components and parts that facilitate consumers such as manufacturers, electrical & mechanical engineering students, 
educational institutions, researchers and developers, to turn their ideas into reality as well as to speed up their product R&D and 
prototyping cycle. 
 
SUMMARY OF INDUSTRY 
 
The electronics market has grown at a CAGR of 14% from 2016-19 and is expected to accelerate at a CAGR of 16.6% in 2020-25, 
with the total demand likely to account for US$ 540 in FY25. India has been one of the largest consumers of electronic products 
specifically in Asia-Pacific due to factors such as rising per capita disposable incomes and consumption in the past decade. India’s 
e-commerce sector has transformed the way business is done in India and has opened up various segments of commerce ranging 
from business-to-business (B2B), direct-to-consumer (D2C), consumer-to-consumer (C2C) and consumer-to-business (C2B). The 
overall e-commerce market is also expected to reach US$ 350 billion by 2030, and will experience 21.5% growth in 2022 and reach 
US$ 74.8 billion. (Source – IBEF)  
 

NAME OF PROMOTERS 
 
The Promoters of our Company are Atul Maruti Dumbre, Binod Prasad and Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan. 
 

OFFER SIZE 
 
Offer of up to 23,28,000 Equity Shares of face value of � 10.00 each for cash at a price of �[�] per Equity Share including a share 
premium of � [�] per aggregating up to Rs. [�] lakhs by the Selling Shareholders, of which 1,16,400 equity shares of face value of � 
10.00 each for cash at a price of � [�] per equity share including a share premium of � [�] per equity share aggregating to � [�] 
Lakh will be reserved for subscription by market maker to the offer (the “Market Maker Reservation Portion”). The Offer less the 
Market Maker Reservation Portion i.e. Net offer of 22,11,600 equity shares of face value of � 10.00 each at a price of � [�] per 
equity share aggregating to � [�] Lakh are herein after referred to as the “Net Offer”. The Offer and the Net Offer will constitute 
26.35% and 25.03% respectively of the post offer paid up equity share capital of the company. 

 

OBJECTS OF THE OFFER 
 
The objects of the Offer are to (i) carry out the Offer for Sale of up to 23,28,000 Equity Shares by the Selling Shareholders 
aggregating up to Rs. [�] and (ii) achieve the benefits of listing the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges. For further details, see 
“Objects of the Offer” on page 66. 
 

PRE-OFFER SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS, PROMOTER GROUP & SELLING SHAREHOLDERS  
 
The aggregate pre-offer and post-offer shareholding of the promoter and promoter group as a percentage of the paid-up capital of 
the issuer is as below- 
 

Sr. No Names 
Pre-Offer Post-Offer* 

Shares Held % Shares Held Shares Held % Shares Held 

 
Promoters  

1. Binod Prasad** 22,08,850 25.00 21,69,150 24.55 

2. Atul Maruti Dumbre** 22,08,850 25.00 21,69,100 24.55 

3. Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan** 22,08,850 25.00 21,69,150 24.55 

 Promoter Group     

4. Jayesh Jain** 22,08,850 25.00 0 - 

5. Laxmi Kumari 4 negligible 4 negligible 

6. Manali Anilrao Pawar 4 negligible 4 negligible 
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7. Suvidha Atul Dumbre 4 negligible 4 negligible 

8. Amruta Avinash Dere 4 negligible 4 negligible 

9. Sakshi Garg 4 negligible 4 negligible 

 Total 88,35,420 100.00 65,07,420 73.65 

*Assuming full subscription to the offer. 

 

**Out of the above, Jayesh Jain, Binod Prasad, Atul Maruti Dumbre & Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan (“Selling 

Shareholders”)  are offering 22,08,850, 39,700, 39,750 and 39,700 equity shares respectively to public in this Offer. 
 
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
Following are details as per the restated financial statements for past 3 years and stub period in tabular format: 

Amt (� in Lakh) 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars Period ended/As 

at September 
30, 2022 

Year ended/As at March 31, 

2022 2021 2020 

1. Paid up Share Capital 1.01 1.01 1.01 1.00 

2.  Net worth 1,207.78 911.93 310.66 52.55 

3. Total Revenue 3,605.40 5,587.07 2,733.76 1,622.16 

4. Profit After Tax 295.85 601.27 158.31 32.97 

5. Earnings Per Share – Basic & Diluted* 3.35 6.81 1.82 0.38 

6. NAV per Equity Shares (based on weighted average 
shares) 

13.67 10.32 3.56 0.60 

7. Total Borrowings 938.00 603.26 350.13 433.12 

* Not annualized. 

 
AUDITORS QUALIFICATIONS WHICH HAVE NOT BEEN GIVEN EFFECT TO IN THE RESTATED FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS 
 
There are no such Auditor’s Qualifications in the Financial Statements of the Company which requires any effect to be given in the 
restated financial statement. 
 

OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS 

 

Tax Proceedings/Matters involving our Company:-   

     

Nature of Proceedings Number of cases Amount involved (Rs. in lakhs) 

Company 

Direct Tax 
(Income Tax) 

- - 

Indirect Tax - - 

Total - - 

 

Tax Proceedings/Matters involving our Promoter &Directors:-       

 

Nature of Proceedings Number of cases/ 
matters 

Amount involved (Rs. in lakhs) 

Direct Tax - - 

Indirect Tax - - 

Total - - 

 

 

RISK FACTORS 
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Please see “Risk Factors” beginning on page 24 of this Red Herring Prospectus. 
 

SUMMARY OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY 
 
There is the no such Contingent Liabilities of the Company for the six months period ended September 30, 2022 and financial years 
ended on March 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020. 
 
SUMMARY OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
Related Party Disclosure: 

 

a) List of Related parties 
Names of the related parties with whom transactions were carried out during the years and description of relationship: 

Sr. No. Name of the Person / Entity Relation 

1 Atul Dumbre Chairman & Managing Director 

2 Binod Prasad CFO & Whole Time Director 

3 Nileshkumar Chavhan Whole Time Director 

4 Jayesh Jain 
Director (ceased w.e.f. 03rd 

December, 2022) 

5 Sakshi Jain Wife of Mr Jayesh Jain 

6 Anil Jain Father of Mr Jayesh Jain 

7 Suvidha Waykar Wife of Mr Atul Dumbre 

     

(b) Transaction with related Parties :-  

 
Particulars  

As at Sept.30 As at March 31, 

2022 2022 2021 2020 

  Remuneration Paid to Directors 
    

  Atul Dumbre 12.00 18.00 12.00 11.29 

  Binod Prasad 12.00 18.00 12.00 11.29 

  Nileshkumar Chavhan  12.00 18.00 12.00 11.29 

  Jayesh Jain 12.00 18.00 12.00 11.29 

  Interest on Loan 
    

  Sakshi Jain 0.83 1.10 - - 

  Anil Jain - - 0.34 0.42 

  Atul Dumbre - - - 0.83 

  Renting Charges 
    

  Anil Jain - - 0.69 - 

  Suvidha Waykar - - 0.59 - 

  Transfer of Assets/Liabilities 
    

  Macfos –firm - - 0.10 12.86 

  Increase In Share Capital 
    

  Atul Dumbre - - 24.95 - 

  Binod Prasad - - 24.95 - 

  Nileshkumar Chavhan  - - 24.95 - 

  Jayesh Jain - - 24.95 - 

  Loans Received 
    

  Atul Dumbre - - 15.15 8.89 

  Binod Prasad - - 0.15 3.71 

  Nileshkumar Chavhan  - 2.14 2.51 3.53 

  Jayesh Jain - - 7.15 5.38 

  Sakshi Jain - 15.00 - - 

  Anil Jain - - - - 

  Loans Repaid/ Given 
    

  Atul Dumbre - 0.71 40.93 13.19 

  Binod Prasad - 0.71 25.94 - 

  Nileshkumar Chavhan  - 2.85 28.34 - 
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  Jayesh Jain - 0.71 32.92 - 

  Sakshi Jain - - - - 

  Anil Jain - - 2.75 - 

  Balances at the end of year  (LOAN) 
    

  Payables/ (Receivables) 
    

  Atul Dumbre 0.32 0.32 1.03 26.81 

  Binod Prasad 0.60 0.60 1.32 27.11 

  Jayesh Jain 1.74 1.74 2.45 28.22 

  Nilesh Chavan 0.59 0.59 1.30 27.13 

  Sakshi Jain 15.00 15.00 - - 

  Anil Jain - - - 2.77 

 
For detailed information on the related party transactions executed by our Company, please refer “Note – Y” appearing on page no. 
155 of this Red Herring Prospectus under Chapter titled “Restated Financial Information” beginning on page no 122 of this Red 
Herring Prospectus. 
 

FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS 

 
The promoters, members of the promoter group, the directors of the company which is a promoter of the issuer, the Directors of the 
issuer and their relatives have not financed the purchase by any other person of securities of the Company other than in the normal 
course of the business of the financing entity during the period of six months immediately preceding the date of this Red Herring 
Prospectus. 
 
Weighted average price at which the equity shares were acquired by each of our promoters/selling shareholders in the one 

year preceding the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus 

 
Weighted average price at which the Equity Shares were acquired by our Promoters in Last one year: 
 

Sr. No. Name of Promoters Total No. of Equity Shares Weighted Average Price* (in 

� per equity share) 

1. Mr. Atul Maruti Dumbre 22,06,320 Nil 

2. Mr. Binod Prasad 22,06,320 Nil 

3. Mr. Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan 22,06,320 Nil 

Sr. No. Name of Selling Shareholders Total No. of Equity Shares Weighted Average Price* (in 

� per equity share) 

1. Mr. Atul Maruti Dumbre 22,06,320 Nil 

2. Mr. Binod Prasad 22,06,320 Nil 

3. Mr. Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan 22,06,320 Nil 

4. Mr. Jayesh Jain 22,06,320 Nil 

*Except for the bonus issue of shares, which has been made by our Company on November 25, 2022, neither  our  Promoters  nor  
any  of  the  Selling  Shareholders,  have acquired/been allotted  any  Equity  Shares in  the  one  year immediately preceding the 
date of this RHP and accordingly due to bonus issue of shares, the weighted average price is Nil.  
 

Weighted Average cost of acquisition of shares for promoters/selling shareholders 

 

Sr. No. Name of the Promoter No. of Shares held Weighted Average cost of Acquisition (in �)* 

1 Mr. Atul Maruti Dumbre 22,08,850 1.14 

2 Mr. Binod Prasad 22,08,850 1.14 

3 Mr. Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan 22,08,850 1.14 

Sr. No. Name of the Selling Shareholder No. of Shares held Weighted Average cost of Acquisition (in �)* 

1 Mr. Jayesh Jain 22,08,850 1.14 

2 Mr. Binod Prasad 22,08,850 1.14 

3 Mr. Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan 22,08,850 1.14 

4 Mr. Atul Maruti Dumbre 22,08,850 1.14 
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* The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoters has been calculated by taking into account the amount paid by 

them to acquire, by way of fresh issuance or transfer, the Equity Shares less amount received by them for the sale of Equity Shares 

through transfer, if any and the net cost of acquisition has been divided by total number of shares held as on date. 

 

DETAILS OF PRE-ISSUE PLACEMENT 

 
Our Company does not contemplate any issuance or placement of Equity Shares from the date of this Red Herring Prospectus till 
the listing of the Equity Shares. 
 
ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES FOR CONSIDERATION OTHER THAN CASH IN THE LAST ONE YEAR 

 
Except for the details mentioned below, we have not issued Equity Shares for consideration other than cash in the preceding one 
year. 
 
Bonus Issue of 88,25,280 Equity Shares of Face Value of �10/- each in the ratio of 870:1 i.e. Eight Hundred Seventy Equity shares 

for every One equity shares held by shareholders as per details given below: 

 

S. No. Name of Subscribers Number of Shares Subscribed 

1. Mr. Atul Maruti Dumbre 22,06,320 

2. Mr. Binod Prasad 22,06,320 

3. Mr. Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan 22,06,320 

4. Mr. Atul Maruti Dumbre 22,06,320 

 Total 88,25,280 

 
EXEMPTION FROM COMPLYING WITH ANY PROVISIONS OF SECURITIES LAWS, IF ANY, GRANTED BY SEBI 

 
Our Company has not taken any exemption from complying with any provisions of the Securities Law from SEBI as on the date of 
this Red Herring Prospectus. 

 

SPLIT / CONSOLIDATION OF EQUITY SHARES IN THE LAST ONE YEAR 

 
Our Company has not undertaken a split or consolidation of the Equity Shares in the one (1) year preceding the date of this Red 
Herring Prospectus. 
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SECTION III: RISK FACTORS 

An investment in our Equity Shares involves a high degree of financial risk. Prospective investors should carefully consider all the 

information in the Red Herring Prospectus, particularly the “Financial Information of the Company” and the related notes, “Our 

Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on page 122, 84 and 

174 respectively of this Red Herring Prospectus and the risks and uncertainties described below, before making a decision to invest 

in our Equity Shares. 

 

The risk factors set forth below are not exhaustive and do not purport to be complete or comprehensive in terms of all the risk 

factors that may arise in connection with our business or any decision to purchase, own or dispose of the Equity Shares. This 

section addresses general risks associated with the industry in which we operate and specific risks associated with our Company. 

Any of the following risks, individually or together, could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations or 

prospects, which could result in a decline in the value of our Equity Shares and the loss of all or part of your investment in our 

Equity Shares. While we have described the risks and uncertainties that our management believes are material, these risks and 

uncertainties may not be the only risks and uncertainties we face. Additional risks and uncertainties, including those we currently 

are not aware of or deem immaterial, may also have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition 

and prospects. 

 

This Red Herring Prospectus contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could 

differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including the 

considerations described below and elsewhere in this Red Herring Prospectus. The financial and other related implications of risks 

concerned, wherever quantifiable, have been disclosed in the risk factors below. However, there are risk factors the potential effects 

of which are not quantifiable and therefore no quantification has been provided with respect to such risk factors. In making an 

investment decision, prospective investors must rely on their own examination of our Company and the terms of the Offer, including 

the merits and the risks involved. You should not invest in this Offer unless you are prepared to accept the risk of losing all or part 

of your investment, and you should consult your tax, financial and legal advisors about the particular consequences to you of an 

investment in our Equity Shares. 

 

Materiality 

 
The Risk factors have been determined on the basis of their materiality. The following factors have been considered for determining 

the materiality. 

 

1. Some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively. 

2. Some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively. 

3. Some events may not be material at present but may be having material impact in future. 

 

Note:  
 

The risk factors as envisaged by the management along with the proposals to address the risk if any. Unless specified or quantified 

in the relevant risk factors below, we are not in a position to quantify the financial implication of any of the risks described in this 

section.  

 
In this Red Herring Prospectus, any discrepancies in any table between total and the sums of the amount listed are due to rounding 

off. Any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors” on page 24 and “Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial 

Condition and Results of Operations” on page 174 of this Red Herring Prospectus unless otherwise indicated, has been calculated 

on the basis of the amount disclosed in the "Restated Financial Statements”. 

 

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS 
 

1. Our Company is dependent on external vendors for sourcing the product requirements. Any delay or failure on the part of 

such vendors to deliver products at acceptable prices, may adversely affect our business, profitability and reputation. 
 

We sell a broad range of electronic components which finds application in basic and advanced engineering products & projects, 
including emerging technologies such as IoT, Robotics, Automations, Drone, Electric Vehicles, 3D Printing and Auto Guided 
Vehicles. We do not manufacture any of the electronic items and parts that we sell. As on September 30, 2022, we are connected 
with over +140 overseas and domestic vendors for sourcing these electronic components. We rely on the various vendors for 
purchasing the products, which in turn, may rely on third-parties for sourcing of products. The contribution of our top five vendors 
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in our purchase of electronic components as a percentage of the total purchase during Fiscal 2022 and six months ended September 
30, 2022 are disclosed hereunder:- 
 

S. 

No. 

Supplier % contribution in the total 

purchase for Fiscal 2022 

% contribution in the total 

purchase for six months 

ended September’22 

1 Supplier 1 29.36% 23.57% 

2 Supplier 2 11.48% 9.61% 

3 Supplier 3 5.39% 8.17% 

4 Supplier 4 4.46% 6.18% 

5 Supplier 5 3.07% 4.66% 

Total 53.77% 52.19% 

 
Our reliance on a limited number of vendors for our business exposes us to risks, that may include, but are not limited to, 
reductions, delay or failure on the part of our vendors to deliver products in a timely manner, product quality issues, failure to 
negotiate favourable terms with our key vendors, vendors changing their sales strategy or shifting focus to some other channel 
which could have a material adverse effect on the business, financial condition, results of operations and future prospects of our 
Company. In addition, we do not have control over the quality of products which are sold by us. Our ability to remain competitive, 
maintain costs and profitability depend, in part, on our ability to source and maintain a stable and sufficient supply of quality 
products at acceptable prices. In addition, a large part of our success is dependent on our ability to offer certain key products within 
certain categories to our consumers. If we experience significant relationship attrition with key vendors and fail to attract new 
relationships, the quantity and variety of products that are offered through our platform may decline, consumers may use our 
platform less frequently or not at all, and our revenue and results of operations may be adversely affected. 
 
We do not have long term agreements with our vendors and we acquire such products pursuant to our purchase orders from vendors 
across many countries. Product supply and pricing can be volatile due to a number of factors beyond our control, including global 
demand and supply, general economic and political conditions, tariff disputes, transportation and labour costs, labour unrest, natural 
disasters, competition, import duties, the outbreak of infectious diseases such as COVID-19, tariffs and currency exchange rates and 
there are inherent uncertainties in estimating such variables, regardless of the methodologies and assumptions that we may use. 
Further, discontinuation of such supply or a failure of these vendors to adhere to the delivery schedule or the required quality could 
hamper our sales and therefore affect our business and results of operations. In case we are not able to pass on any increase in cost 
to the consumers because of competition or otherwise, it may affect the profitability of the Company. 
 
We may not be able to renegotiate our pricing or delivery terms on a reasonable basis or find suitable alternative vendors in the 
future, which may affect our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations. If we are required to identify 
alternative third parties for any of our required products, the process of qualification and approval could cause delays in providing 
services to clients. Any extended interruption in the supply of electronic components could disrupt our operations and can have a 
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition. Although we believe we have maintained stable 
relationships with these vendors in the past, we cannot assure you that, we will be able to source adequate quantities of products in a 
timely manner from our existing vendors in the future or we will be able to find alternative vendors at acceptable prices and quality 
levels or at all. Our inability to do so may adversely affect our reputation, business, results of operations and cash flows. 
 
In addition, any restrictions, either from the Central or state governments of India, or from countries which we import from, on the 
import of products or any adverse change in policies by India or other countries, in terms of tariff and non-tariff barriers, may 
adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations. There can be no assurance that such 
restrictions/ regulations would not be made more stringent which would consequently restrict our ability to import products from 
other jurisdictions. Further, there can be no assurance that, under these circumstances, we will be successful in identifying alternate 
vendors for products or we will be able to source the products at favourable terms in a timely manner. Any restriction on import of 
products could have an adverse effect on our ability to deliver products to our customers, business and results of operations. 
 

2. Our inability to promptly identify and respond to changing consumer preferences or evolving trends may decrease the 

demand for our products among our customers, which may adversely affect our business. 

 
The markets for the electronic components such as Robotics, Drone, Electric Vehicles are dynamic and are characterised by 
frequent changes, particularly customer preferences, new parts and parts variant introductions. We plan our inventory based on the 
forecast of customer buying patterns as well as on forecasted trends and customer preferences. Any mismatch between our forecasts, 
our planning and the actual purchase by customers can impact us adversely, leading to excess inventory or under stocking. For 
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further details, please refer to “Our Business – Business Process” on page 91 of this RHP. In such circumstances, we may lose 
consumers and be required to discount certain products, all of which could have an adverse effect on our business, results of 
operations, financial condition, cash flows and prospects. Decline in the demand for some of the products without a corresponding 
increase in demand for alternative products sold through our platforms could negatively impact our revenue temporarily or 
permanently. These trends may also cause fluctuations in our results of operations between different periods. 
 
Our success is also dependent on the ability of our vendor brands to anticipate, identify and respond to the latest technological 
trends and consumer demands and to translate such trends and demands into product offerings in a timely manner, adapt to customer 
preferences, and our ability to continue upgrading our platforms in a manner so as to cater to evolving consumer preferences. 
Further, we offer our consumers our owned brand products. The success of our owned brand products depends on consumer 
acceptance and our ability to recognise and adapt to consumer preferences. If we fail to recognise and adapt to such acceptance and 
preference, our revenue will be reduced, which could negatively affect our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of 
operations. 
 

3. Our business depends on the growth of the online commerce industry in India and our ability to effectively respond to 

changing user behaviour on digital platforms. 
 
In recent years India has experienced a boom in internet and smartphone penetration. The number of internet connections in 2021 
increased significantly to 830 million, driven by the ‘Digital India’ programme. (Source: IBEF) The smartphone base has also 
increased significantly and is expected to reach 1 billion by 2026. This has helped India’s digital sector and it is expected to reach 
US$ 1 trillion by 2030. This rapid rise in internet users and smartphone penetration coupled with rising incomes has assisted the 
growth of India’s e-commerce sector. (Source: IBEF). For further details, please refer to Chapter titled “Industry Overview” on page 
75 of this RHP. 
 
A large portion of our revenues depend substantially on the receptiveness of the value-seeking users to the internet as a way to 
purchase goods and to carry out financial transactions and we must hence effectively respond to changing user behaviour on such 
digital platforms. As the nature of e-commerce is dynamic and subject to risk of rapid disruption driven by technology innovations, 
we must continuously innovate to overcome the fact that potential users are presented with an increasingly large number of options 
to choose from. Such potential growth is dependent on the overall internet penetration in India. We cannot assure you that a more 
technologically sophisticated and reliable fixed telecommunications network or internet infrastructure will develop that would 
further facilitate the growth of online e-commerce in India. Should the telecommunications operators not sustain or invest in 
expanding and upgrading the telecommunications infrastructure in India, it may impact the growth of the e-commerce sector 
adversely. 
 
Other factors applicable to the industry that might prevent potential users from purchasing products from e-commerce platforms, 
including our platform, include: 
 
• concerns about buying products online without a physical storefront, face-to-face interaction with sales personnel and the ability to 
physically handle and examine products; 
 
• concerns about delayed shipments or the inconvenience/cost of returning or exchanging items purchased online; 
 
• concerns about the security of online transactions and the privacy of personal information; and 
 
• usability, functionality and features of online platforms. 
 
If the online commerce industry in India and in particular the online market for the electronic items listed on our platform does not 
develop and grow, our business will not grow and our results of operations, financial condition, cash flows and prospects could be 
adversely affected. 
 

4. If we fail to add new consumers or fail to do so in a cost-effective manner, we may not be able to increase revenue or 

maintain profitability. 
 
Our business has grown substantially in recent years, with the addition of new consumers playing a significant role. Our number of 
customers for the F.Y. ended March 31, 2020, 2021, 2022 were 40,433, 59,564 and 83,752 respectively and for the six months 
period ended September, 2022 were 50,662. Our revenue from operations has grown from �1621.81 lakhs in Financial Year 2020 to 
�2711.92 lakhs and �5551.47 lakhs in Financial Year 2021 and Financial Year 2022, respectively. However, we cannot assure you 
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that our historical growth rates will be sustainable or achieved at all in the future. If we fail to add new consumers, or fail to do so in 
a cost effective manner, we may not be able to increase our revenue or maintain profitability. 
 
Maintaining and improving our marketing strategies involve expenditures which may be disproportionate to the revenue generated 
and customers acquired. There is risk of increased cost of acquiring new consumers through marketing efforts due to heightened 
competition for digital traffic. If consumer conversion rates are not commensurate with our expenditure, our expenditure may be 
disproportionate to our returns on such marketing investments. In Financial Years 2020, 2021 and 2022 and for the six months 
ended September 30, 2022, our advertisement expenses was �83.94 lakhs, �84.30 lakhs, �131.40 lakhs and �57.35 lakhs, 
respectively, aggregating to 5.18%, 3.11%, 2.37% and 1.60%, respectively, as a percentage of revenue from operations. 
 
Our ability to provide an engaging consumer experience is dependant in part on third party websites and search engines driving 
online consumers to our site which is not entirely within our control. If such sites choose not to send online consumers to us or 
search engines change their ranking algorithms such that we appear lower down the search list or not at all, our consumer base may 
not grow and may reduce and as a result, our revenue may decrease, even if we seek to optimize our rankings. Furthermore, we may 
have to incur sustained advertising and promotional expenditures or offer more incentives than we anticipate in order to attract 
consumers to our platform and websites and convert them into purchasing consumers, and such advertising and promotional 
expenditures may increase in the future. If one or more of our marketing efforts fails to deliver the expected outcome, our business, 
financial position and results of operations may be adversely affected. 
 

5. One of our co-founder, Mr. Jayesh Jain has recently stepped down from the directorship of our Company, and thus is no 

more involved in the day to day operations of our Company.  
 

One of our co-founder, Mr. Jayesh Jain has recently stepped down from the directorship of our Company, and thus is no more 
involved in the day to day operations of the Company. We may not be  able  to  locate  suitable  or  qualified  replacement of Mr. 
Jayesh Jain and  may  have to incur  additional  expenses  and time to  recruit  and  train  new personnel,  which  could  temporarily  
affect  our  business operations  and  growth. Our success heavily depends upon the continued services of our Promoters and Key 
managerial personnel. Any loss of members of our senior management team or key personnel could significantly delay or prevent 
the achievement of our business objectives and could harm our business and consumer relationships. If  any  of  our  key  
managerial  personnel  joins  a competitor  or  forms  a  competing  business,  we  may  lose  customers,  know-how  and  key  
professionals  and  staff members. Also, our Company has obtained secured loans from the banks on the security of personal 
properties and guarantee of the Promoters and Promoter Group (including Mr. Jayesh Jain). In case any of the Promoter or Promoter 
Group member demands for release of guarantee, we may not be successful in procuring alternate guarantees/ alternate security 
satisfactory to the lenders, as a result may need to repay outstanding amounts under such facilities or seek additional sources of 
capital, which could affect our financial condition and cash flows. For further details regarding loans availed by our Company, 
please refer “Statement of Financial Indebtedness” on page 167 of this Red Herring Prospectus. For further details of our Directors 
and key managerial personnel, please refer to Section “Our Management” on page 107 of this Red Herring Prospectus. 
 

6. If we are unable to manage our growth or execute our strategies effectively, our business plan and expansion may not be 

successful, and our business and prospects may be adversely affected. 

 
In order to continue to grow our business, we will need to continuously and efficiently invest in warehousing infrastructure, 
managing existing and future relationship with vendors and delivery companies and other participants in our network to establish 
and maintain mutually beneficial relationships with them. We have recently obtained a property on lease at Chakan Industrial Area, 
Phase I, Mhalunge, Khed, Pune, which we plan to use it as fulfillment centre in future. We have been sanctioned a term loan of Rs. 
6.50 crores from bank for procurement of land on lease and building construction.  Our ability to arrange financing and the costs of 
capital of such financing are dependent on numerous factors, including general economic and capital market conditions, credit 
availability from banks, investor confidence, the continued success of our operations and other laws that are conducive to our 
raising capital in this manner. Any downgrade in our credit ratings could increase our borrowing costs and adversely affect our 
access to capital. Further, in case we decide to raise additional funds through the issuance of equity or equity-linked instruments, the 
interests of our shareholders may be diluted. Further, if we decide to meet our capital requirements through debt financing, our 
interest obligations shall increase and we may be subject to additional restrictive covenants under our respective financing 
arrangements. If we are unable to raise adequate capital in a timely manner and on acceptable terms, or at all, our business, results 
of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected. Additionally, on account of such expansion, our finance cost, 
depreciation and other related expenses shall increase in the near future which can adversely impact our results of operations, cash 
flows and financial condition. 
 
Our expansion plans remain subject to the potential problems and uncertainties that construction projects face including cost 
overruns or delays, labour shortages, increased costs of equipment or manpower, inadequate performance of the equipments 
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installed at the fulfillment centre, delays in completion, defects in design or construction, the possibility of unanticipated future 
regulatory restrictions, delays in receiving governmental, statutory and other regulatory approvals, incremental pre-operating 
expenses, environment and ecology costs and other external factors which may not be within the control of our management. There 
can be no assurance that our budgeted costs may be sufficient to meet our proposed capital expenditure requirements. If our actual 
capital expenditures significantly exceed our budgets, or even if our budgets were sufficient to cover these projects, we may not be 
able to achieve the intended economic benefits of these projects, which in turn may materially and adversely affect our financial 
condition, results of operations, cash flows, and prospects.  
 
In addition, to support our business growth, we may have to implement a variety of new and upgraded managerial, operating, 
technology, logistics, financial and human resource systems, procedures and controls, which in turn may lead to higher costs and 
oversight by management. It cannot be assured that we will be able to successfully implement all or some of the managerial, 
operating, financial and human resource systems, procedures and control. If we are unable to manage our growth through the online 
platform or the offline sales or if we are unable to execute any of our strategies effectively, our business and prospects may be 
adversely affected. 
 
We may also experience a decline in our revenue growth rate due to factors such as insufficient growth in the number of brands and 
consumers on our platform, increasing competition from both online and offline companies, a decrease in the growth of our overall 
market, failure to capitalize on growth opportunities, a slowdown in the Indian economy, which may lead to a decrease in consumer 
demand of our products which would have an adverse impact on our cash flows, financial condition and results of operations. 
 

7. We operate in a highly competitive industry and our failure to compete effectively could have a negative impact on the 

success of our business and/or impact our margins 

 
Our industry is highly competitive and we expect that competition will continue to increase. Our competitors include a number of 
online marketplaces, retailers with physical stores, and brands that take a direct-to-consumer approach, effectively removing us 
from the distribution and sales process. The internet and mobile networks provide new, rapidly evolving and competitive channels 
for the sale of all types of goods and services. Consumers who purchase goods and services through us have other alternatives, and 
sellers have other channels to reach consumers. We expect competition to continue to intensify. 
 
Online and offline competitors may offer goods and services that we do not offer and which may be more attractive and devote 
more resources to marketing and promotional campaigns. In addition, competitors may innovate faster and more efficiently, and 
new technologies may increase competitive pressures by enabling competitors to offer more efficient or lower-cost services or offer 
products direct to the consumer. If we are unable to change our offerings in ways that reflect the changing demands of offline and 
online sellers and marketplaces or compete effectively with and adapt to such changes, our business, financial condition, cash flows 
and results of operations would be adversely affected. 
 
Some of our competitors have competitive advantages such as longer operating histories, more experience in implementing their 
business plan and strategy, better brand recognition, popular offline locations, greater negotiating leverage, established supply 
relationships and greater financial, marketing and other resources. The intense competition we face in our businesses, and general 
economic and business conditions may affect our ability to appropriately price our products. If our competitors offer deep discounts 
on certain products, we may be compelled to lower our prices or offer other favourable terms in order to compete effectively, which 
may adversely affect our margins and our operating results. As a result, there can be no assurance that we will not encounter 
increased competition in the future. Nor can there be any assurance that our Company will, in light of competitive pressures, be able 
to remain profitable or, if profitable, maintain its current profit margins. 
 

8. We require certain approvals, licenses, registrations and permits to operate our business, and failure to obtain or renew 

them in a timely manner or maintain the statutory and regulatory permits and approvals required to operate our business 

may adversely affect our operations and financial conditions. 
 

We require certain statutory and regulatory permits, licenses and approvals to operate our business. Though we believe that we have 
obtained those permits and licenses which are adequate to run our business, we cannot assure that there is no other 
statutory/regulatory requirement which we are required to comply with. Further, some of these approvals are granted for fixed 
periods of time and need renewal from time to time. We are required to renew such permits, licenses and approvals. There can be no 
assurance that the relevant authorities will issue any of such permits or approvals in time or at all. Failure by us to renew, maintain 
or obtain the required permits or approvals in time may result in the interruption of our operations and may have a material adverse 
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.  
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We are yet to apply for registration under the (a) Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970 and (b) Maharashtra Shops 
and Establishments (Regulation of Employment and Condition of Service) Act, 2017 for our fulfillment centre (Tung Warehouse 
and Purandar Warehouse). Also, we are yet to amend the existing registration certificate of the Maharashtra Shops and 
Establishments (Regulation of Employment and Condition of Service) Act, 2017 in respect of number of employees for the 
Registered Office. For details relating to location of our properties, please refer section “Our Business – Properties” on page 93.  
Further, subsequent to our conversion into limited Company on January 06, 2023, we need to apply for change in name in all our 
registrations and statutory approvals which are in previous name of our Company. For further details, please refer to chapter titled 
“Government and Other Approvals” on page 186 of this RHP. Any delay or failure to do so could have an adverse effect on our 
business and results of operations. 
 
The approvals required by our Company are subject to numerous conditions and there can be no assurance that these would not be 
suspended or revoked in the event of non-compliance or alleged non-compliance with any terms or conditions thereof, or pursuant 
to any regulatory action. If there is any failure by us to comply with the applicable regulations or if the regulations governing our 
business are amended, we may incur increased costs, be subject to penalties, have our approvals and permits revoked or suffer a 
disruption in our operations, any of which could adversely affect our business. 
 

9. We rely upon the services of third-party data center for hosting facilities and other third party providers for our business and 

operations. 

 
We rely on services from third parties, such as telecommunications services, credit card processors, payment gateways, logistics 
provider and SMS service providers, and those services may be subject to outages and interruptions that are not within our control. 
In addition, we may experience down periods when our third-party credit card or payment mobile applications processors are unable 
to process the online payments of our consumers, disrupting our ability to receive consumer orders. 
 
We also rely on cloud infrastructure service providers and systems maintained by third-party service providers. Our operations 
depend on the virtual cloud infrastructure and its configuration, architecture and interconnection specifications, as well as the 
information stored in these virtual data centers. We have no physical access or control over our virtual cloud infrastructure services 
and we cannot quickly or easily switch our operations to another third party cloud infrastructure service provider. Any technical 
glitch in services of third party service providers, termination or suspension of our arrangements with our technology vendors would 
interrupt our business by affecting our ability to access our data and infrastructure. 
 
With respect to our marketing channels, we rely heavily on relationships with providers of search engines, social media etc. to 
provide significant sources of traffic to our website. Search engine companies change their natural search engine algorithms 
periodically, and our ranking in natural searches may be adversely affected by those changes, as has occurred from time to time. If 
search engines change their algorithms, terms of service, display and featuring of search results, or if competition increases for 
advertisements, we may be unable to cost-effectively drive consumers to our mobile applications and websites. 
 
In addition, our technology infrastructure and the technology infrastructure of our third-party providers are vulnerable to damage or 
interruption as a result of software or hardware malfunctions, system implementations or upgrades, computer viruses, third-party 
security breaches, employee error, misuse, war, natural calamities, power loss, telecommunications failures, cyber-attacks, human 
error, and other similar events could lead to extended interruptions of our operations, a corresponding loss of revenue and profits, 
cause breaches of data security, loss of intellectual property or critical data, or the release and misappropriation of sensitive 
information, or otherwise impair our operations.. If any such event were to occur, our business, financial condition, cash flows and 
results of operations may be adversely affected. 
 

10. We derive a significant portion of our revenue from our top three product categories, and our business may be adversely 

affected if products in these categories do not perform as well as expected. 

 
The revenue contribution of our top three product categories i.e. (a) Sensors; (b) Raspberry Pi (Single board computer) and 
peripherals  & Modules and (c) Batteries, Chargers and Accessories accounted for a significant portion of our total revenue in the 
last three Financial Years and six months ended September 30, 2022 constituting 40.14% in FY 2020, 38.14% in F.Y. 2021, 36.67% 
in F.Y. 2022 and 36.34% in six months ended September 30, 2022. For more details, please refer to chapter titled “Our Business” 
beginning on page 84 of this RHP. In case of increased competition, pricing pressures, fluctuation in the demand or supply of 
products within our top three categories or other factors, our revenue from these products may decline in the future. Any adverse 
developments with respect to the sale of products within our top three categories could adversely affect our revenue. 
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11. Our business depends on our ability to maintain and scale our technology. Any interruptions or delays in service on our 

mobile applications or websites or any undetected errors or design faults could result in limited capacity, reduced demand, 

processing delays, and loss of consumers or suppliers 

 
A key element of our strategy is to generate a high volume of traffic on our mobile application and website. Our reputation and 
ability to attract, retain and serve our consumers depend upon the reliable performance of our mobile application and website and 
the underlying network infrastructure. We have experienced interruptions in these systems in the past, including server failures that 
temporarily slowed down or interfered with the performance of our mobile applications and websites, and we may experience 
interruptions in the future.  As our consumer base and the amount of information shared on our mobile applications and websites 
continue to grow, we will need an increasing amount of network capacity and computing power. Any interruption or inadequacy 
that causes performance issues or interruptions in the availability of our mobile applications or websites could reduce consumer 
satisfaction and result in a reduction in the number of consumers purchasing our products and services, adversely affecting our 
business and financial position. 

 

12. Our Company had negative operating cash flow in recent fiscals, details of which are given below. Sustained negative cash 

flow could adversely impact our business, financial condition and results of operations 

 
The detailed break up of operating cash flows is summarized in below mentioned table and our Company has reported negative 
operating cash flow in F.Y. 2021-22. Sustained negative cash flow could adversely impact our business, financial condition and 
results of operations. 
 

Particulars Six months period 

ended September 

30, 2022 

F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21 F.Y. 2019-20 

Net Cash flow from 
Operating Activities 

75.72 (45.63) 30.08 47.84 

 

13. Security breaches and any disruption to our information technology could adversely impact our business.  

 
Our business generates, stores and processes a large quantity of personal, transaction, demographic and behavioral information and 
data and as such we may experience disruptions, failures or breaches of our technology platforms. We also face risks inherent in 
handling large volumes of data and in protecting the security of such data, such as protecting the data in and hosted on our system, 
including against attacks on our system by outside parties or fraudulent behavior by our employees; addressing concerns related to 
privacy and sharing, safety, security and other factors. Any failure, or perceived failure, by us to comply with our posted privacy 
policies or with any regulatory requirements or privacy and data protection-related laws, rules and regulations could result in 
proceedings or actions against us by governmental entities or others, which could have an adverse effect on our results of 
operations, cash flows and business. 
 
We seek to protect our IT systems and network infrastructure from security breaches and other disruptive problems caused by our 
increased internet connectivity. We employ security systems, including firewalls and password encryption, designed to minimize the 
risk of security breaches but there can be no assurance that these security measures will be successful. Breaches of our security 
measures could affect the security of information stored in and transmitted through these computer systems and network 
infrastructure. A failure in security measures could have a material adverse effect on our business and our future financial 
performance. Our business relies on information technology to operate on a daily basis. The success of our businesses depends in 
part upon the ability to store, retrieve, process and manage substantial amounts of information. Any disruption in our information 
technology systems could render us unable to operate our business. This could adversely affect our business, reputation and 
revenues.  
 

14. We do not own the registered office and fulfilment center from which we carry out our business activities. In case of non- 

renewal of rent agreements or dispute in relation to use of the said premise, our business and results of operations can be 

adversely affected.  
 

Our registered office and fulfilment center are situated at Pune, which are being taken by us on rent from third parties. In the event 
of termination/non-renewal of said agreements, we may be required to vacate the said premises which may cause disruption in our 
inventory management, corporate affairs and business and impede our effective operations which could lead temporarily impact our 
business operations until we get suitable alternative warehouse. However, in order to mitigate this risk, we have recently obtained a 
property on lease for 95 years (from 2008) at Chakan Industrial Area, Phase I, Mhalunge, Khed, Pune, which we plan to use in 
construction of fulfillment centre. For further details, please refer “Our Business – Properties” on page 93 of this RHP. 
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In addition, the agreements pertaining to the fulfilment centre has irregularities of enforceability, such as non-registration of 
agreement and inadequate payment of stamp duty, which may affect the evidentiary value of the relevant agreements in specific 
performance or other injunctive procedures in a court of law, and could impair our operations. Further, it may result in levy of penal 
charges, in case cognizance being taken by concerned Authorities. For details on the duration of existing rent agreements for our 
premises, please refer to the section titled “Our Business-Properties” beginning on page 93 of this Red Herring Prospectus. 
 
There can be no assurance that we will, in the future, be able to renew the agreements for the existing locations on same or similar 
terms, or will be able to find alternate locations for the offices on similar terms favorable to us, or at all. We may also fail to 
negotiate the renewal of our rent agreements for our premises, either on commercially acceptable terms or at all, which could result 
in increased rental rates for subsequent renewals or searching of new premises, affecting our financial condition and operations. In 
the event that the rent agreement is terminated or they are not renewed on commercially acceptable terms, we may suffer a 
disruption in our operations which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. 
 

15. We purchase inventory in anticipation of sales, and if we fail to manage our inventory effectively, our business and results 

of operations could be adversely affected. 

 
We purchase inventory from multiple vendors, distributors and manufacturers based on our projected sales and as such, if we fail to 
manage our inventory effectively, our business and results of operations may be adversely affected. For example, excess inventory 
procurement may lead to interest costs and also liquidation cost or loss of sales, markdowns or write-offs, where products sold under 
the key business verticals are subject to expiry. Further, any damage or destruction to our inventory at our fulfilment center may 
impact our operating results. 
 

16. We have made certain non-compliances of provisions of Companies Act, 2013. Any penalty or action taken by any 

regulatory authorizes in future, for non-compliance with provisions of corporate or any other law could impact the financial 

position of the Company to that extent. 

 
Our company has not complied with certain Accounting Standards in the past such as AS -15 (Accounting for Employee Benefits) 
in respect of actuarial valuation of gratuity and leave encashment, however the same have been duly complied by us in the restated 
financial statements. Although, no show cause notice in respect of the above has been received by the Company till date, any 
penalty imposed for such non-compliance in future by any regulatory authority could affect our financial conditions to that extent. 
 
Further, due to inaccessibility of various ROC forms on MCA portal from January 07, 2023 to January 22, 2023, our Company is 
unable to file various forms with Registrar of Companies for appointment of Company Secretary, change in designation of Directors 
and appointment of Independent Director. In case the forms are not filed within the prescribed time limit, we could be charged with 
the penalty from ROC, which may affect our financial conditions to that extent.  
 

17. Our insurance coverage may not be adequate to protect us against certain operating hazards and this may have a material 

adverse effect on our business. 

 
As on date of this Red Herring Prospectus, we have obtained various insurance policies such as insurance coverage in respect of 
certain risks related to stock at warehouse, furniture & fixtures, fittings, other equipments and marine cargo insurance policy. Also 
we have obtained insurance policies in respect of Group mediclaim policy for employees. We face the risk of loss resulting from 
product liability, intellectual property, contractual, warranty, and other lawsuits, whether or not such claims are valid. Moreover, our 
insurance coverage may not be adequate to cover such claims or may not be available to the extent we expect. Although, we attempt 
to obtain coverage for and mitigate our liability for damages arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions through insurance 
policies, our liability may sometimes not be covered as a result of the limitations of liability set forth in our insurance policies. For 
details of insurance policies we maintain, see “Business – Insurance” on page 92 of RHP. 
 
Our insurance policies are subject to annual review, and we cannot assure you that we will be able to renew these policies on similar 
or otherwise acceptable terms, or at all. If we were to incur a serious uninsured loss or a loss that significantly exceeds the limits of 
our insurance policies, it could have an adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. While we 
believe that insurance coverage will be available in the future, we cannot assure you that such coverage will be available at costs 
and terms acceptable to us or that such coverage will be adequate with respect to future claims that may arise. If we suffer a 
significant uninsured loss or if an insurance claim in respect of the subject matter of insurance is not accepted or any insured loss 
suffered by us significantly exceeds our insurance coverage, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be 
materially and adversely affected. Further, in the future, we may experience difficulty in obtaining insurance coverage for new and 
evolving product offerings at favorable prices, which could require us to incur greater costs. If we are not able to adequately insure 
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against the risks we face, or the insurance coverage we have taken is inadequate to cover our losses, our business, financial 
condition and results of operations could be adversely affected. 
 

18. We have incurred significant indebtedness towards working capital and capital expenditure, which exposes us to various 

risks which may have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations 
 
Our  business  requires  working  capital  expenditures  to  meet  our  day  to  day  business requirements. As on September 30, 
2022, our total outstanding indebtedness was � 938.00 lakhs. Out of the said indebtedness of Rs. 938 lakhs, we have obtained 
unsecured loan from bank and financial institutions of Rs. 362.79 lakhs, which are taken on high rate of interest ranging from 14% 
to 21%. Our finance cost for F.Y. 2019-20, 2020-21, 2021-22 and six months ended September 30, 2022 were Rs. 49.62 lakhs, 
52.33 lakhs, 80.05 lakhs and 50.08 lakhs which comprised of 3.06%, 1.91%, 1.43% and 1.39% respectively. We cannot be certain 
that our operations will be able to generate sufficient cash to fully meet the debt obligations and to fund  our  ongoing  operations  
along with  the  growth  of  our  business.  
 
We  may  need  additional  funding  for working capital or capital expenditure for which we might need  or  may  want  to  engage  
in  future  equity  or  debt  financings  to  secure  additional  funds. Additional financing may not be available on terms favorable to 
us, if at all. If we are unable to obtain  adequate  financing  or  financing  on  terms  satisfactory  to  us,  our  ability  to  support  our  
business  growth  and  respond  to  business  challenges  could be significantly  impaired,  and  our  business,  financial  condition,  
cash  flows  and  results  of operations may be adversely affected.  
 
In addition, management of our working capital requirements involves the timely payment of, or  rolling  over  of,  our  short-term 
indebtedness  and  securing  new  and  additional  loans  on acceptable terms, or re-negotiation of our payment terms for, our trade 
payables, collection of trade receivables and preparing and following accurate and feasible budgets for our business operations. The  
terms  of  any  additional  debt  we  may  incur  in  the  future  could  restrict  our ability  to  effectively  conduct  our  operations.  
As  our  decisions  to  raise  additional  capital  will depend on numerous considerations, including factors beyond our control, we 
cannot predict or estimate the amount, timing, or nature of any future debt or equity financings, or terms on which any such 
financings may be completed. Our ability to make repayments and refinance our  indebtedness  will  depend  on  our  continued  
ability  to  generate  cash  from  our  future operations. 
 
Our significant indebtedness in future may result in substantial amount of debt service obligations which could lead to: 
 

1. increasing our vulnerability to general adverse economic, industry and competitive conditions; 
2. limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry; 
3. affecting our credit rating; 
4. limiting our ability to borrow more money both now and in the future; and 
5. increasing our interest expenditure and adversely affecting our profitability. 

 
The occurrence of these events may have an adverse effect on our cash flow and financial conditions of the company. For further 
details regarding our indebtedness, see “Statement of Financial Indebtedness” on page 167 of this Red Herring Prospectus. 
 

19. We rely exclusively on third-party logistics service provider mainly Blue Dart for the deliveries of products to our buyers, 

and any disruption of or interference with their services could adversely affect our business, financial condition, cash flows 

and results of operations. 

 
We do not have an in-house transportation facility and we rely on third party transportation and other logistic facilities at every 
stage of our business activity including for procurement of products from our suppliers and for transportation of products to our 
consumers. We mainly engage Blue Dart to deliver orders from our fulfilment center to consumers. To the extent they are unable to 
provide satisfactory services to consumers, which may be due to events that are beyond our or their control, such as inclement 
weather or transportation disruptions, we may suffer reputational damage, and our business, financial condition, cash flows and 
results of operations may be adversely affected. 
 
The third-party logistics service provider that we rely on may also subject us to additional risks. For example, traffic accidents 
caused by such couriers in performing their services on our behalf may cause negative publicity in the local community and may 
negatively affect our brand image and reputation. In addition, as our third-party couriers interact directly with our consumers, we 
may suffer harm, including substantial reputational harm from any misconduct or illegal actions committed by them. If we are 
unable to effectively address these risks, our image, reputation, cash flows and financial performance may be adversely affected. 
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20. The geographical concentration of our warehousing facility and registered office in Pune, Maharashtra may restrict our 

operations and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial conditions.  

 
We presently operate our entire business through our fulfillment centre (warehouse) and registered office located at Pune, 
Maharashtra. Due to the geographical concentration of our warehouse and registered office in Pune, our operations are susceptible 
to local, regional and environmental factors, such as social and civil unrest, regional conflicts, civil disturbances, economic and 
weather conditions, natural disasters, demographic and population changes, and other unforeseen events and circumstances. Such 
disruptions could result in the damage or destruction of a significant portion of our warehousing abilities, significant delays in the 
transport of our products, loss of key managerial personnel, and/or otherwise adversely affect our business, financial condition and 
results of operations. 
 
Further, we generate major domestic sales through our customers situated in Maharashtra, Karnataka and Tamil Nadu. For Fiscal 
2022, our revenue from these states represented 52.40% of the total revenue for such fiscal year. Such geographical concentration of 
our business in this region heightens our exposure to adverse developments related to competition, as well as economic and 
demographic changes in this region, which may adversely affect our business prospects, financial conditions and results of 
operations.  
 
Below are the details of the state/Union territory wise revenue breakup for the fiscal year ending March 2022 (having more than 5% 
of total revenue):-  
 

State Name Revenue % 

Maharashtra 22.78% 

Karnataka 17.66% 

Tamil Nadu 11.96% 

Gujarat 7.99% 

Uttar Pradesh 5.97% 

Delhi 5.28% 

Telangana 5.26% 

TOTAL 76.90% 

 
Further, as we expand/enter into new markets and geographical areas, we are likely to compete with not only national players, but 
also the local players, who might have an established local presence, and are more familiar with local business practices and have 
stronger relationships with local customers, relevant government authorities, suppliers or are in a stronger financial position than us, 
all of which may give them a competitive advantage over us. Our inability to expand into other areas may adversely affect our 
business prospects, financial conditions and results of operations. While our management believes that the Company has requisite 
expertise and vision to grow and mark its presence in other markets going forward, investors should consider our business and 
prospects in light of the risks, losses and challenges that we face and should not rely on our results of operations for any prior 
periods as an indication of our future performance. 
 

21. Loans availed by Our Company has been secured on personal properties and guarantees of our Directors/Promoters. Our 

business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and prospects may be adversely affected in case of invocation 

of any personal guarantees provided by our Directors/Promoters. 
 
Loans availed by our Company has been secured on personal properties and guarantees of our Promoters, Directors and relatives of 
Directors. In the event of default on such borrowings, these personal guarantees may be invoked by our lenders thereby adversely 
affecting our Promoters’ ability to manage the affairs of our Company and this, in turn, could adversely affect our business, 
prospects, financial condition and results of operations. Further, if any of these personal guarantees are revoked by our Promoters, 
we may also not be successful in procuring alternate securities or guarantees satisfactory to the lenders, and as a result may need to 
repay outstanding amounts under such facilities or seek additional sources of capital, which could affect our financial condition and 
cash flows. For further details regarding loans availed by our Company, please refer “Statement of Financial Indebtedness” on page 
167 of this Red Herring Prospectus. 

 

22. Our Company is in use of certain trademarks, which are applied for registration under the Trademarks Act, 1999, but is not 

registered as on date of Red Herring Prospectus. Thus, we may be subject to claims alleging breach of third party 

intellectual property rights. 
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The trademark , along with our other trademarks related to brands, which we are using for our business, has 
been applied by us for registration under the Trademarks Act, 1999, but is currently open for objection/opposed. For further 
information, see “Our Business – Intellectual Properties” on page 92. As such, we do not enjoy the statutory protections accorded to 
a registered trademark as on date. There can be no assurance that we will be able to register the said trademarks and the logo in 
future or that, third parties who have filed objection will not infringe our intellectual property, causing damage to our business 
prospects, reputation and goodwill. Our efforts to protect our intellectual property may not be adequate and may lead to erosion of 
our business value and our operations could be adversely affected. We may need to litigate in order to determine the validity of such 
claims and the scope of the proprietary rights of others. Any such litigation could be time consuming and costly and the outcome 
cannot be guaranteed. We may not be able to detect any unauthorized use or take appropriate and timely steps to enforce or protect 
our intellectual property. 
 
Further, despite our efforts to protect and enforce our proprietary rights, unauthorized parties may in the future use, our trademarks 
or similar trademarks, copy aspects of our website images, features, compilation and functionality or obtain and use information that 
we consider as proprietary, such as the technology used to operate our website or our content, thereby undermining our position 
within the e-commerce electronics market. . Our competitors may adopt, service/website names similar to ours, thereby impeding 
our ability to build brand identity and possibly diluting our brand and leading to brand dilution or consumer confusion. In addition, 
there could be potential trade name or trademark ownership or infringement claims brought by owners of other rights, including 
registered trademarks, in our marks or marks similar to ours. Any such claims, brand dilution or consumer confusion related to our 
brands (including our trademarks) could damage our reputation and brand identity and substantially harm our business and results of 
operations. 
 
Domain names generally are regulated by internet regulatory bodies, and the regulation of domain names is subject to change. 
Regulatory bodies have and may continue to establish additional top-level domains, appoint additional domain name registrars or 
modify the requirements for holding domain names. As of the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, we have two domain name 
registered under our name i.e. “ROBU.IN” and “MACFOS.COM”. We may not be able to, or it may not be cost effective to, acquire 
or maintain all domain names that utilize the name “Robu” or our other business brands in all of the jurisdictions in which we 
currently conduct or intend to conduct business. If we lose the ability to use a domain name, or similar domain names are set up for 
fraudulent purposes, or fail to renew the domains registered on a timely basis, we could incur additional expenses and hardship to 
market our products, including the development of new branding or poor customer experience. This could substantially harm our 
business, results of operations, financial condition, cash flows and prospects. 
 

23. Our Company will not receive any proceeds from the Offer for Sale 
 
The Offer comprises an Offer for Sale by the Selling Shareholders. The Selling Shareholders will receive the entire proceeds from 
the Offer for Sale (after deducting applicable Offer expenses) and our Company will not receive any part of the proceeds of the 
Offer. For further information, see “The Offer”and “Objects of the Offer” on pages 40 and 66, respectively. 
 

24. Our Company has taken unsecured loans that may be recalled by the lenders at any time and our Company may not have 

adequate working capital to make timely payments or at all.  
 
Our Company has availed unsecured loans which may be recalled by its lenders at any time. As on September 30, 2022, the 
unsecured loans amounted to Rs. 381.05 lacs, out of which loan of Rs. 18.26 lakhs can be recalled at any time. In the event that any 
lender seeks a repayment of any such loan, our Company would need to find alternative sources of financing, which may not be 
available on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. As a result, any such demand may materially affect our business, cash flows, 
financial condition and results of operations. For further details, please see the section entitled “Statement of Financial 
Indebtedness” on page 167 of this RHP. 
 

25. Our lenders have imposed certain  restrictive  conditions  on  us  under  our  financing  arrangements.  This  may  limit our 

ability to pursue our business and limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business or industry. 

 
Certain of  our   financing   agreements   include   conditions   and   restrictive   covenants,   including   the  requirement  that  we  
obtain  consent  from  or  intimate  our  respective  lenders  prior  to  carrying  out certain activities and entering into certain 
transactions including, among others, declaring  or paying dividends, effecting any change in our Company’s capital structure, 
carrying out or  entering    into    any    amalgamation,    consolidation,    demerger,    merger,    restructuring and investing by way  
of share capital or lending or advancing funds to or placing deposits with any other concerns  except  in  normal  course  of  our  
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business.  These  restrictions  may  limit  our  flexibility  in  responding  to  business  opportunities,  competitive  developments  and  
adverse  economic  or  industry conditions. 
 
Our  financing  agreements  also  generally  contain  certain  financial  covenants  including  the requirement to maintain, among 
others, specified debt-to-equity ratios, total outside liabilities to tangible  net  worth  and  minimum  net  worth.  These  covenants  
vary  depending  on  the requirements  of  the  financial  institution  extending  the  loan  and  the  conditions  negotiated under  each  
financing  document.  Such covenants may restrict or delay certain actions or initiatives that we may propose to take from time to 
time. We cannot assure you that we will comply with the covenants with respect to our financing arrangements in the future or that 
we will  be  able  to  secure  waivers  for  any  non-compliance  in  a  timely  manner  or  at  all.  If  the obligations under any of our 
financing agreements are accelerated, we may have to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to make 
payments under such financing documents, thereby reducing the availability of cash for our working capital requirements and other  
general  corporate  purposes.  For  further  information  on  the  working  capital  facilities currently availed of by us, see “Financial 
Indebtedness” beginning on page 167 of this RHP. The occurrence of these events may have an adverse effect on our cash flow and 
financial conditions of the company. For further details regarding our indebtedness, see “Statement of Financial Indebtedness” on 
page 167 of this Red Herring Prospectus. 
 

26. We have in the past entered into related party transactions and may continue to do so in the future.  
 
Our Company has entered into various transactions with our Directors, Promoter and Promoter Group members/entities. These 
transactions, inter-alia includes, issue of shares, purchase, interest payments, remuneration, loans and advances, reimbursements etc. 
For details, please refer to Note Y - Related Party Transactions” under Section titled “Financial Information of the Company” 
and Chapter titled “Capital Structure” beginning on page 155 and 56 respectively of this Red Herring Prospectus. Although all 
related-party transactions that we may enter into in the future are subject to approval by our Audit Committee, Board or 
shareholders, as required under the Companies Act, we cannot assure you that such future transactions or any other future 
transactions, individually or in aggregate, will not have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations or that 
we could not have achieved more favorable terms if such transactions are not entered into with related parties. Such related party 
transactions in the future or any other future transactions may potentially involve conflicts of interest which may be detrimental to 
the interest of our Company and we cannot assure you that such transactions, individually or in the aggregate, will always be in the 
best interests of our minority shareholders and will not have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of 
operations. 
 

27.  The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoters, are lower than the face value of Equity Share.  
 
The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares of our Promoters are lower than the face value of Equity Shares i.e. � 10/-. For 
further details regarding the average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoter in our Company and build-up of Equity 
Shares of our Promoter in our Company, please see Chapter titled “Capital Structure” beginning on page 56 of this Red Herring 
Prospectus. 
 

28. Failure to effectively manage employees or failure to ensure availability of sufficient employees could affect the business 

operations of the Company.  

 
Our business activities are dependent on availability of skilled manpower including IT technicians. Non-availability of such 
employees at any time or any disputes with them may affect our services and timely delivery of our products to customers which 
may adversely affect our business and result of operations. Though we have not faced any employees shortage in the past we cannot 
assure that we will not experience disruptions to our operations due to disputes or other problems with our work force, which may 
lead to strikes or increased salary demands, which could have adverse effect on our business, and results of operations. 
 

29. The Promoters (including Promoter Group) and Directors hold almost 100% of the Equity Shares of our Company and are 

therefore interested in the Company's performance in addition to their remuneration and reimbursement of expenses.  
 
Our Promoter and Directors are interested in our Company, in addition to regular remuneration or benefits and reimbursement of 
expenses, to the extent of their shareholding in our Company or their relatives, dividend entitlement, or loans advanced by them to 
the Company, and benefits deriving from the directorship in our Company. There can be no assurance that our Promoter will 
exercise their rights as shareholders to the benefit and best interest of our Company. Our Promoter will continue to exercise 
significant control over us, including being able to control the composition of our Board of Directors and determine decisions 
requiring simple or special majority voting of shareholders, and our other shareholders may be unable to affect the outcome of such 
voting. For further information, please refer to the chapters/section titled “Our Business”, “Our Promoters and Promoter Group” 
and “Note Y - Related Party Transactions”, beginning on pages 84, 118 and 155 respectively of this Red Herring Prospectus. 
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30. We could be harmed by employee misconduct or errors that are difficult to detect and any such incidences could adversely 

affect our financial condition, results of operations and reputation. 
 
Employee misconduct or errors could expose us to business risks or losses, including regulatory sanctions and serious harm to our 
reputation. There can be no assurance that we will be able to detect or deter such misconduct. Moreover, the precautions we take to 
prevent and detect such activity may not be affective in all cases. Our employees may also commit errors that could subject us to 
claims and proceedings for alleged negligence, as well as regulatory actions on account of which our business, financial condition, 
results of operations and goodwill could be adversely affected. 
 

31. Any Penalty or demand raised by statutory authorities in future will affect our financial position of the Company. 
 
We sell a broad range of electronic components which finds application in basic and advanced engineering products & projects, 
including emerging technologies such as IoT, Robotics, Automations, Drone, Electric Vehicles, 3D Printing and Auto Guided 
Vehicles, which attracts tax liability such as Goods and Service tax and Income tax as per the applicable provisions of Law. We are 
also subject to the labour laws like depositing of contributions with Provident Fund & ESI. Any demand or penalty raised by the 
concerned authority in future for any previous years or current year will affect the financial position of the Company.  
 

32. Our ability to pay any dividends will depend upon future earnings, financial condition, cash flows, working capital 

requirements and capital expenditures. 

 
We may retain all our future earnings, if any, for use in the operations and expansion of our business. As a result, we may not 
declare dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future determination as to the declaration and payment of dividends will be at the 
discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on factors that our Board of Directors deem relevant, including among others, 
our results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements, business prospects and any other financing arrangements. 
Accordingly, realization of a gain on shareholders investments may largely depend upon the appreciation of the price of our Equity 
Shares. There can be no assurance that our Equity Shares will appreciate in value. For details of our Dividend history refer to the 
Section “Dividend Policy” on page 121 of the Red Herring Prospectus. 
 

33. This Red Herring Prospectus contains information in respect of industry from various publicly available sources. Investors 

are advised not to place undue reliance on such information. 
 
This Red Herring Prospectus includes information derived in respect of industry from various third party sources. Our Company, 
our Promoters, our Directors and the BRLM have not independently verified the information in the report and other information 
under “Industry Overview” on page 75. There are no standard data gathering methodologies in the markets in which we operate, and 
methodologies and assumptions vary widely among different industry sources. Such assumptions may change based on various 
factors. We cannot assure you that such assumptions are correct or will not change and, accordingly, our position in the market may 
differ from that presented in this Red Herring Prospectus. Further, the report or any other industry data or sources are not 
recommendations to invest in our Company. You are advised not to place undue reliance on the industry information as included in 
this Red Herring Prospectus, when making your investment decision. Also, see “Certain Conventions, Use of Financial Information 
and Market Data and Currency of Financial Presentation” and “Industry Overview” on pages 16 and 75 respectively. 
 

34. Our Promoter and the Promoter Group will jointly continue to retain majority shareholding in our Company after the offer, 

which will allow them to determine the outcome of the matters requiring the approval of shareholders.  
 

Our promoter along with the promoter group will continue to hold collectively upto 73.65% of the Equity share capital of the 
company. As a result of the same, they will be able to exercise significant influence over the control of the outcome of the matter 
that requires approval of the majority shareholders vote. Such a concentration of the ownership may also have the affect of delaying, 
preventing or deterring any change in the control of our company. In addition to the above, our promoter will continue to have the 
ability to take actions that are not in, or may conflict with our interest or the interest of some or all of our minority shareholders, and 
there is no assurance that such action will not have any adverse effect on our future financials or results of operations. 
 

35. We may require equity issuance, which will lead to dilution of equity and may affect the market price of our Equity Shares 

or additional funds through incurring debt to satisfy our capital needs, which we may not be able to procure and any future 

equity offerings by us.  
 
Our growth is dependent on having a strong balance sheet to support our activities. In addition to the internally generated cash flow, 
we may need other sources of financing to meet our capital needs which may include entering into new debt facilities with lending 
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institutions or raising additional equity in the capital markets. We may need to raise additional capital from time to time, dependent 
on business conditions. The factors that would require us to raise additional capital could be business growth beyond what the 
current balance sheet can sustain; additional capital requirements imposed due to changes in regulatory regime or significant 
depletion in our existing capital base due to unusual operating losses. Any fresh issue of shares or convertible securities would 
dilute existing holders, and such issuance may not be done at terms and conditions, which are favourable to the then existing 
shareholders of our Company. If our Company decides to raise additional funds through the incurrence of debt, our interest 
obligations will increase, and we may be subject to additional covenants, which could further limit our ability to access cash flows 
from our operations. Such financings could cause our debt to equity ratio to increase or require us to create charges or liens on our 
assets in favour of lenders. We cannot assure you that we will be able to secure adequate financing in the future on acceptable terms, 
in time, or at all. Our failure to obtain sufficient financing could result in the delay or abandonment of our expansion plans. Our 
business and future results of operations may be affected if we are unable to implement our expansion strategy.  
 
Any issuance of Equity Shares by our Company may dilute shareholding of investors in our Company; and hence affect the trading 
price of our Company‘s Equity Shares and its ability to raise capital through an issue of its securities. In addition, any perception by 
investors that such issuances or sales might occur could also affect the trading price of our Company’s Equity Shares. Additionally 
the disposal, pledge or encumbrance of Equity Shares by any of our Company‘s major shareholders, or the perception that such 
transactions may occur may affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. No assurance may be given that our Company will not 
issue Equity Shares or that such shareholders will not dispose of, pledge or encumber their Equity Shares in the future. 
 

36. The Offer price of our Equity Shares may not be indicative of the market price of our Equity Shares after the Offer and the 

market price of our Equity Shares may decline below the Offer Price and you may not be able to sell your Equity Shares at 

or above the Offer Price. 

 
The offer price of the equity shares have been based on many factor and may not be indicative of the market price of our Equity 
Shares after the Offer. For further information please refer the section titled “Basis for Offer Price” beginning on page 68 of the 
Red Herring Prospectus. The market price of our Equity Shares could be subject to significant fluctuations after the Offer, and may 
decline below the Offer Price. We cannot assure you that you will be able to sell your Equity Shares at or above the Offer Price.  
 

37. Investors other than retail (including non-institutional investors, QIBs and Corporate Bodies) are not permitted to withdraw 

or lower their Bids (in terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Amount) at any stage after submitting an Application.  
 

Pursuant to the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Investors other than retail (including non-institutional investors and Corporate Bodies) are 
not permitted to withdraw or lower their Application (in terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Amount) at any stage after 
submitting an Application. While our Company is required to complete Allotment pursuant to the Offer within six Working Days 
from the Offer Closing Date, events affecting the Bidders decision to invest in the Equity Shares, including material adverse 
changes in international or national monetary policy, financial, political or economic conditions, our business, results of operation or 
financial condition, may arise between the date of submission of the Application and Allotment. Our Company may complete the 
Allotment of the Equity Shares even if such events occur, and such events limit the Bidder’s ability to sell the Equity Shares 
Allotted pursuant to the Offer or cause the trading price of the Equity Shares to decline on listing. 
 

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS 

 

38. The continuing effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business, results of operations and financial condition is highly 

uncertain and cannot be predicted. 

 
The outbreak, or threatened outbreak, of any severe communicable disease (particularly COVID-19) could adversely affect the 
overall business sentiment and environment, particularly if such outbreak is inadequately controlled. The outbreak of COVID-19 
has resulted in authorities implementing several measures such as travel bans and restrictions, quarantines and lockdowns. These 
measures have impacted and may further impact our workforce and operations, the operations of our consumers. In case there is a 
rapid increase in severe cases of infections leading to deaths, where the measures taken by governments are not successful or are 
any bans imposed by the government in this regard are lifted prematurely, may cause significant economic disruption in India and in 
the rest of the world. If any of our employees were suspected of contracting COVID-19 or any other epidemic disease, this could 
require us to quarantine some or all of these employees or disinfect the facilities. In addition, our revenue and profitability could be 
impacted to the extent that a natural disaster, health epidemic or other outbreak harms the Indian and global economy in general. 
The outbreak has significantly increased economic uncertainty. It is likely that the current outbreak or continued spread of COVID-
19 will cause an economic slowdown and it is possible that it could cause a global recession. 
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39. A slowdown in economic growth in India may adversely affect our business, financial condition, cash flows, results of 

operations and prospects. 
 

The performance and growth of our business are necessarily dependent on economic conditions prevalent in India, which may be 
materially and adversely affected by centre or state political instability or regional conflicts, a general rise in interest rates, inflation, 
and economic slowdown elsewhere in the world or otherwise. There have been periods of slowdown in the economic growth of 
India. India’s economic growth is affected by various factors including domestic consumption and savings, balance of trade 
movements, namely export demand and movements in key imports (oil and oil products), global economic uncertainty and liquidity 
crisis, volatility in exchange currency rates and annual rainfall which affects agricultural production. Any continued or future 
slowdown in the Indian economy or a further increase in inflation could have a material adverse effect on the price of our raw 
materials and demand for our products and, as a result, on our business and financial results. The Indian financial market and the 
Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries, particularly in emerging market in Asian 
countries. Financial turmoil in Asia, Europe, the U.S. and elsewhere in the world in recent years has affected the Indian economy. 
Although economic conditions are different in each country, investors’ reactions to developments in one country can have adverse 
effects on the securities of companies in other countries, including India. A loss in investor confidence in the financial systems of 
other emerging markets may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets and, indirectly, in the Indian economy in general. 
Any worldwide financial instability, including the financial crisis and fluctuations in the stock markets in China and further 
deterioration of credit conditions in the U.S. or European markets, could also have a negative impact on the Indian economy. 
Financial disruptions may occur again and could harm our business and financial results. 
 

40. Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties in India, including adverse application of tax laws and 

regulations, may adversely affect our business and financial performance. 

 
Our business and financial performance could be adversely affected by changes in law or interpretations of existing, or the 
promulgation of new, laws, rules and regulations in India applicable to us and our business. For further details please refer to the 
chapter “Government and Other Approvals” on page 186 for details of the laws currently applicable to us. There can be no 
assurance that the central or the state governments in India may not implement new regulations and policies which will require us to 
obtain approvals and licenses from the central or the state governments in India and other regulatory bodies or impose onerous 
requirements and conditions on our operations. Any such changes and the related uncertainties with respect to the implementation of 
the new regulations may have a material adverse effect on all our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, 
we may have to incur capital expenditures to comply with the requirements of any new regulations, which may also materially harm 
our results of operations. For instance, the Government has proposed a comprehensive national goods and services tax (“GST”) 
regime that will combine taxes and levies by the Central and state Governments into a unified rate structure. Given the limited 
availability of information in the public domain concerning the GST, we are unable to provide any assurance as to the tax regime 
following implementation of the GST. The implementation of this new structure may be affected by any disagreement between 
certain state Governments, which could create uncertainty. Any such future amendments may affect our overall tax efficiency, and 
may result in significant additional taxes becoming payable. 

 

41. Instability in financial markets could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.  
 
The Indian economy and financial markets are significantly influenced by worldwide economic, financial and market conditions. 
Any financial turmoil, especially in the United States of America or Europe, may have a negative impact on the Indian economy. 
Although economic conditions differ in each country, investors’ reactions to any significant developments in one country can have 
adverse effects on the financial and market conditions in other countries. A loss in investor confidence in the financial systems, 
particularly in other emerging markets, may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets. The global financial turmoil, an 
outcome of the sub-prime mortgage crisis which originated in the United States of America, led to a loss of investor confidence in 
worldwide financial markets. Indian financial markets have also experienced the contagion affect of the global financial turmoil, 
evident from the sharp decline in SENSEX, BSE’s benchmark index. Any prolonged financial crisis may have an adverse impact on 
the Indian economy and us, thereby resulting in a material and adverse effect on our business, operations, financial condition, 
profitability and price of our Equity Shares. 

 

42. Natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy and cause Our Company’s business to suffer.  
 

India has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, tsunami, floods etc. In recent years, the extent and severity of these 
natural disasters determine their impact on the Indian economy. Prolonged spells of abnormal rainfall or other natural calamities 
could have a negative impact on the Indian economy, which could adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and 
results of operations as well as the price of the Equity Shares. 
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43. Government regulation of foreign ownership of Indian securities may have an adverse effect on the price of the Equity 

Shares. 

 
Foreign ownership of Indian securities is subject to government regulation. Under foreign exchange regulations currently in affect in 
India, transfer of shares between non residents and residents are freely permitted(subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with 
the pricing guidelines and reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are sought to be transferred, 
is not in compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or fall under any of the exceptions referred to above, 
then the prior approval of the RBI will be required. Additionally, shareholders who seek to convert the rupees proceeds from the 
sale of shares in India into foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from India will require a no objection/ tax clearance 
certificate from the Income Tax authorities. There can be no assurance that any approval required from the RBI or any other 
government agency can be obtained. 
 

44. Our performance is linked to the stability of policies and the political situation in India.  
 
The Government of India has traditionally exercised, and continues to exercise, a significant influence over many aspects of the 
economy. Our business, and the market price and liquidity of our Equity Shares, may be affected by interest rates, changes in 
government policy, taxation, social and civil unrest and other political, economic or other developments in or affecting India. Any 
political instability in India may adversely affect the Indian securities markets in general, which could also adversely affect the 
trading price of our Equity Shares. Any political instability could delay the reform of the Indian economy and could have a material 
adverse effect on the market for our Equity Shares. There can be no assurance to the investors that these liberalization policies will 
continue under the newly elected government. Protests against privatization could slow down the pace of liberalization and 
deregulation. The rate of economic liberalization could change, and specific laws and policies affecting companies in the industrial 
equipment manufacturing sectors, foreign investment, currency exchange rates and other matters affecting investment in our 
securities could change as well. A significant change in India’s economic liberalization and deregulation policies could disrupt 
business and economic conditions in India and thereby affect our business. 
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SECTION IV - INTRODUCTION 

THE OFFER 

 

PRESENT OFFER IN TERMS OF THIS RED HERRING PROSPECTUS 

Equity Shares Offered by way of Offer 
for Sale by the Selling Shareholders 

Offer of upto 23,28,000 Equity Shares aggregating up to Rs. [�] lakhs 

Out of which: 

Offer Reserved for the Market Makers Upto 1,16,400 Equity Shares aggregating up to Rs. [�] lakhs. 

Net Offer to the Public Upto 22,11,600 Equity Shares aggregating up to Rs. [�] lakhs. 

Out of which* 
 

A. QIB Portion (3)(4) Not more than 11,04,000 Equity Shares aggregating up to � [�] lakhs. 

Of which  

i) Anchor Investor Portion Upto 6,62,400 Equity Shares aggregating up to � [�] lakhs. 

ii) Net QIB Portion (assuming Anchor 
Investor Portion is fully subscribed) 

Upto 4,41,600 Equity Shares aggregating up to � [�] lakhs. 

Of which  

(a) Available for allocation to Mutual 
Funds only (5% of the Net QIB 
Portion) 

Upto [�] Equity Shares aggregating up to � [�] lakhs 

(b) Balance of QIB Portion for all 
QIBs including Mutual Funds 

Upto [�] Equity Shares aggregating up to � [�] lakhs 

B. Non-Institutional Portion Not less than 3,32,400 Equity Shares aggregating up to � [�] lakhs 

C. Retail Portion Not less than 7,75,200 Equity Shares aggregating up to � [�] lakhs 

Pre and Post – Offer Equity Shares 

Equity Shares outstanding prior to the 

Offer 
88,35,424 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10 each  

Equity Shares outstanding after the 

Offer 
88,35,424 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10 each 

Use of Proceeds of the Offer 
Our Company will not receive any portion of the proceeds from the Offer. Please see 
the chapter titled “Objects of the Offer” on page 66 of this Red Herring Prospectus. 

(1) This Offer is being made in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time to time. For 

further details please refer to section “Offer Structure” beginning on page 208 of this Red Herring Prospectus. Subject to 

finalisation of the Basis of Allotment, Number of shares may need to be adjusted for lot size upon determination of issue price.  

 

The present Offer has been authorized by our Board pursuant to a resolution passed at its meeting held on January 07, 2023 and by 

our Shareholders pursuant to a special resolution passed at the Extra Ordinary General meeting held on January 11, 2023. 

 
The Selling Shareholders have consented to participate in the Offer for Sale in the following manner:  

Selling Shareholders  Authorization 
Letter dated  

No of equity shares held  No of equity shares 
offered 

Jayesh Jain 12-Jan-2023 22,08,850 22,08,850 

Atul Maruti Dumbre 12-Jan-2023 22,08,850 39,700 

Binod Prasad 12-Jan-2023 22,08,850 39,700 

Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan 12-Jan-2023 22,08,850 39,750 

Total 88,35,400 23,28,000 

The Selling Shareholders has confirmed that the Equity Shares proposed to be offered and sold in the Offer are eligible in term of 
SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and that they have not been prohibited from dealings in securities market and the Equity Shares 
offered and sold are free from any lien, encumbrance or third-party rights. The Selling Shareholders have also severally confirmed 
that they are the legal and beneficial owners of the Equity Shares being offered by them under the Offer for Sale.  
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1) The SEBI ICDR Regulations permit the Offer of securities to the public through the Book Building Process, which states that, 
not less than 15% of the Net Offer shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Non-Institutional Bidders and 
not less than 35% of the Net Offer shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Retail Individual Bidders and 
not more than 50% of the Net Offer shall be allotted on a proportionate basis to QIBs, subject to valid Bids being received at or 
above the Offer Price. Accordingly, we have allocated the Net Offer i.e. not more than 50% of the Net Offer to QIB and not 
less than 35% of the Net Offer shall be available for allocation to Retail Individual Bidders and not less than 15% of the Net 
Offer shall be available for allocation to Non-institutional bidders. 
 

2) Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Offer Price, undersubscription, if any, in any category, except in the QIB 
Portion, would be allowed to be met with spill-over from any other category or combination of categories of Bidders at the 
discretion of our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Managers and the Designated Stock Exchange, subject 
to applicable laws. 

 
Our Company may, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, allocate up to 60% of the QIB Portion to Anchor 
Investors on a discretionary basis in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. One-third of the Anchor Investor Portion shall be 
reserved for domestic Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received from domestic Mutual Funds at or above the Anchor 
Investor Allocation Price. In the event of under-subscription in the Anchor Investor Portion, the remaining Equity Shares shall be 
added to the QIB Portion. Further, 5% of the Net QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Mutual 
Funds only, and the remainder of the QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to all QIB Bidders (other 
than Anchor Investors), including Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Offer Price. However, if the 
aggregate demand from Mutual Funds is less than 5% of the Net QIB Portion, the balance Equity Shares available for allotment in 
the Mutual Fund Portion will be added to the Net QIB Portion and allocated proportionately to the QIB Bidders (other than Anchor 
Investors) in proportion to their Bids. For further details, please refer section titled “Offer Procedure” beginning on page 212 of this 
Red Herring Prospectus. 
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SUMMARY OF OUR FINANCIALS 

ANNEXURE – I 

RESTATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

            (Rs. in lakhs) 

PARTICULARS NOTES 

As at the Year/Period ended 

30-09-2022 

 

31-03-2022 

 

31-03-2021 

 

31-03-2020 

 

A) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES      

1. Shareholders' Funds      

(a) Share Capital A 1.01 1.01 1.01 1.00 

(b) Reserves & Surplus A 1,206.76 910.91 309.64 51.55 

(c) Share Application Money  - - - - 

 
Total  1,207.78 911.93 310.66 52.55 

2. Non-Current Liabilities      

(a) Long Term Borrowings B 433.71 297.08 33.87 96.75 

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) C - - - - 

(c) Other Long Term Labilities  - - - - 

(d) Long Term Provisions G 21.11 15.08 10.96 2.73 

 
Total  454.82 312.16 44.83 99.48 

3. Current Liabilities      

(a) Short Term Borrowings D 504.29 306.19 316.27 336.37 

(b) Trade Payables E     

 
Due to Micro and small enterprises  29.73 100.52 29.80 - 

 
Due to Others  101.93 146.81 143.63 100.67 

(c) Other Current Liabilities F 69.64 43.80 13.43 10.40 

(d) Short Term Provisions G G 230.55 225.79 83.15 25.14 

 
Total  936.15 823.11 586.27 472.59 

  Total Equity and Liabilities  2,598.74 2,047.20 941.75 624.62 

B) ASSETS      

1. Non-Current Assets      

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets H     

 
i. Property, Plant and Equipment  495.91 77.48 69.16 98.63 

 
ii Intangible Assets  5.18 7.07 4.24 7.75 

 
iii Capital Work in progress      

 
iv.Intangible Assets under development  - - - - 

(b) Non-Current Investment  - - - - 

(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) C 20.54 19.44 14.86 6.55 

(d) Long Term Loans and Advances  - - - - 

(e) Other Non-Current Assets I 34.89 34.67 21.48 19.58 

 
  556.51 138.67 109.75 132.51 

2. Current Assets      

(a) Current Investment   - - - 

(b) Trade Receivables J 161.55 173.23 86.98 6.79 

(c) Cash and Cash equivalents K 71.31 145.64 63.92 78.91 

(d) Inventories L 1,585.11 1,184.88 529.40 310.39 

(e) Short-Term Loans and Advances M 202.79 385.81 147.63 93.56 

(f) Other Current Assets N 21.47 18.98 4.08 2.46 

 
   2,042.23 1,908.53 832.00 492.11 

  Total   2,598.74 2,047.20 941.75 624.62 
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ANNEXURE – II 

RESTATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS Note  

For the year/period ended on 

30-09-2022 

 

31-03-2022 

 

31-03-2021 

 

31-03-2020 

 

1 Revenue From Operations O 3,578.12 5,551.47 2,711.92 1,621.81 

2 Other Income P 27.28 35.60 21.84 0.35 

3 Total Revenue (1+2)   3,605.40 5,587.07 2,733.76 1,622.16 

4 Expenses   

(a) Cost of Material Consumed Q 11.42 26.06 21.11 19.22 

(b) Purchase of Stock in trade R 2,935.28 4,327.44 2,037.32 1,124.36 

(c) Change of Inventories of Work in progress and 
finished goods S (400.23) (655.48) (219.01) (98.56) 

(d) Employee Benefit Expenses T 208.66 292.89 187.73 127.04 

(e) Finance Costs U 50.08 80.05 52.33 49.62 

(f) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses V 20.33 38.75 43.64 43.00 

(g) Other Expenses W 381.25 672.53 398.77 315.87 

5 Total Expenses 4(a) to 4(g)   3,206.78 4,782.23 2,521.89 1,580.54 

6 
Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional & 

Extraordinary items & Tax  (3-5)   398.63 804.84 211.87 41.62 

7 Exceptional item   - - - 

8 
Profit/(Loss) Before Extraordinary items & 

Tax  (6-7)   398.63 804.84 211.87 41.62 

9 Prior Period Expenses   

10 Extraordinary items   

11 Profit/(Loss) Before Tax  (8-9-10)   398.63 804.84 211.87 41.62 

12 Tax Expense:   

(a) Current Tax    103.87 208.15 61.88 15.20 

(b) Deferred Tax    (1.09) (4.58) (8.31) (6.55) 

(c) MAT Credit entitlements   

(d) Prior period expenses   

(e) Excess/short provision written back/off   

Total   102.78 203.57 53.57 8.65 

13 Profit/(Loss) for the Year    295.85 601.27 158.31 32.97 
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ANNEXURE III 

RESTATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

(Rs. in Lakhs)  

PARTICULARS  For the period/ year ended on 

30-09-2022 31-03-2022 31-03-2021 31-03-2020 

A) Cash Flow From Operating Activities :      

Net Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit & 

Loss 

 398.63 804.84 211.87 41.62 

Adjustment for  :      

Depreciation and amortization Expenses  20.33 38.75 43.64 43.00 

Finance Cost  50.08 80.05 52.33 49.62 

Interest Income  (2.12) (4.10) (1.05) (0.29) 

Income Tax Adjustments    0.92 0.03 

Prior Period adjustments     (2.18) 

Opening Provision for Gratuity and Leave encashment     (1.86) 

Operating profit before working capital changes  466.91 919.54 307.71 129.94 

Changes in Working Capital      

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables  11.68 (86.25) (80.19) 13.42 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory  (400.23) (655.48) (219.01) (98.56) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances  158.21 (177.64) (16.06) (17.01) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current &Non-Current 
Assets 

 (2.74) (28.14) (3.58) (3.45) 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  (115.67) 73.91 72.75 24.31 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities  25.84 30.37 3.02 9.18 

Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions, etc  17.70 0.63 21.20 8.35 

Cash generated from operations  161.70 76.94 85.84 66.19 

Less:- Income Taxes paid  85.98 122.57 55.78 18.35 

Net cash flow from operating activities A 75.72 (45.63) 30.07 47.84 

B) Cash Flow From Investing Activities :      

Purchase of Fixed Assets including of CWIP  (436.84) (49.83) (10.61) (59.08) 

Investment made/Sold during the year  - - -  

Interest Income  2.12 4.10 1.05 0.29 

Net cash flow from investing activities B (434.72) (45.73) (9.56) (58.79) 

C) Cash Flow From Financing Activities :      

Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital  - - 99.80 - 

Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings  198.10 (10.08) (20.10) 271.94 

Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings  136.63 263.21 (62.88) (158.03) 

Finance Cost  (50.08) (80.05) (52.33) (49.62) 

Net cash flow from financing activities C 284.66 173.08 (35.52) 64.29 

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B
+C) 

(74.34) 81.73 (15.01) 53.33 

Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  145.64 63.92 78.91 25.58 

Cash equivalents at the end of the year  71.31 145.64 63.92 78.91 

Notes:- 

 
  30-09-2022 31-03-2022 31-03-2021 31-03-2020 

 1.  

 Component of Cash and Cash equivalents      

 Cash on hand  0.08 0.45 0.04 0.09 

 Balance With banks  11.23 85.18 3.88 78.82 

 Fixed Deposits  60.00 60.00 60.00 - 

 
 Total  71.31 145.64 63.92 78.91 

 
2. Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-
cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue 
generating, financing and investing activities of the company are segregated. 
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3. 
 The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies, restated notes to accounts and notes on adjustments for 
restated summary financial information (Annexure IV) are an integral part of this statement.  
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GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Our Company was incorporated as “Macfos Private Limited” on September 26, 2017 vide certificate of incorporation bearing CIN 
U29309PN2017PTC172718 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 issue by Central Registration Centre, Registrar of 
Companies. Subsequently, pursuant to Special Resolution passed by the Shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 
December 28, 2022, our Company was converted into a Public Limited Company and consequently the name of our Company was 
changed from “Macfos Private Limited” to “Macfos Limited” vide a fresh certificate of incorporation dated January 06, 2023 issued 
by the Registrar of Companies, Pune bearing CIN U29309PN2017PLC172718. 

 
For further details please refer to chapter titled “History and Corporate Structure” beginning on page 104 of this Red Herring 
Prospectus. 
 

Address of the Registered Office Address of the RoC 

Macfos Limited 

S. No. 78/1, Sumant Building, Dynamic Logistics Trade Park, Dighi, 

Bhosari Alandi Road, Pune – 411-015, Maharashtra, India 

Tel. No.: +91-20-68197600 

Email: info@robu.in 

Website: www.robu.in 

CIN: U29309PN2017PLC172718 

Registration Number: 172718 

Registrar of Companies, Pune, Maharashtra 

PCNTDA Green Building, Block A, 1st & 2nd Floor, 

Near Akurdi Railway Station, Akurdi, 

Pune – 411044, Maharashtra, India 

Phone: 020-27651375/1378 

Fax: 020-25530042 

Email id: roc.pune@mca.gov.in 

Website: www.mca.gov.in 

 

 

Board of Directors: 
 
The Board of Directors of our Company as on the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus consists of: 
 

Name of Directors Designation Address DIN 

Mr. Atul Maruti Dumbre  Chairman & Managing 
Director 

B-608, Destination Ostia, Alandi Road, Moshi, Pune, 
Maharashtra - 412105 

07938802 

Mr. Binod Prasad Whole Time Director 
& CFO 

B 502, Rajveer Galaxy, SR No 3, Samarth Nagar, Dighi, 
Dhanori Pune, Maharashtra – 411015 

07938828 

Mr. Nileshkumar P Chavhan Whole Time Director Survey No 03, B-601, Polite Panorama, Gaikwad Nagar, 
Alandi Road, Dighi, Pune, Maharashtra - 411015. 

07936897 

Mr. Ankit Rathi Independent Director 608-Balaji Heights, Inderlok Phase II, Bhyandar East, 
Thane, 401105, Maharashtra, India 

08456577 

Mr. Ravi Kant Jagetiya Independent Director B-303, Eklavya Co-operative Housing Society, N L 
Complex, Near Mugraneshwar Mahadev Mandir, 
Dahisar East, Mumbai – 400-068, Maharashtra 

08734797 

Ms. Anamika Ajmera Independent Director Ajmera Bhawan, Indra Colony, Goshala Road, 
Gulabpura, Bhilwara – 311-021, Rajasthan 

09748907 

 
For further details in relation to our Directors, please refer to chapter titled “Our Management” on page 107 of this Red Herring 
Prospectus. 
 

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Binod Prasad 

Macfos Limited 

Address: S. No. 78/1, Sumant Building, Dynamic Logistics 

Trade Park, Dighi, Bhosari Alandi Road, Pune – 411-015, 

Maharashtra, India 

Tel. No.: +91-20-68197600 

Email: binod@robu.in 

Sagar Subhash Gulhane 

Macfos Limited 

Address: S. No. 78/1, Sumant Building, Dynamic Logistics 

Trade Park, Dighi, Bhosari Alandi Road, Pune – 411-015, 

Maharashtra, India 

Tel. No.: +91-20-68197600 

Email:cs@robu.in 
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Website: www.robu.in Website: www.robu.in 

 
Investor Grievances: 
 
Investors may contact our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer and/or the Registrar to the Issue and/or the Book 

Running Lead Manager, in case of any pre-Offer or post-Offer related problems, such as non-receipt of letters of allotment, 

credit of allotted Equity Shares in the respective beneficiary account or refund orders, etc.  
 

All grievances in relation to the application through ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar to the Offer, with a copy to the 
relevant Designated Intermediary with whom the ASBA Form was submitted, giving details such as the full name of the sole or First 
Applicant, ASBA Form number, Applicants‘ DP ID, Client ID, PAN, number of Equity Shares applied for, date of submission of 
ASBA Form, address of Bidder, the name and address of the relevant Designated Intermediary, where the ASBA Form was submitted 
by the Applicant, ASBA Account number in which the amount equivalent to the Bid Amount was blocked and UPI ID used by the 
Retail Individual Bidders. Further, the Applicant shall enclose the Acknowledgment Slip from the Designated Intermediaries in 
addition to the documents or information mentioned hereinabove.  
 
For all Offer related queries and for redressal of complaints, Applicants may also write to the Book Running Lead Manager. All 
complaints, queries or comments received by Stock Exchange/SEBI shall be forwarded to the Book Running Lead Manager, who shall 
respond to the same.  
 
All grievances relating to the Anchor Investors may be addressed to the Registrar to the Offer, giving full details such as name of the 
sole or first Applicant, Bid cum Application Form number, Applicants DP ID, Client ID, PAN, date of the Anchor Investor 
Application Form, address of the Applicant, number of Equity Shares applied for, Bid Amount paid on submission of the Anchor 
Investor Application Form and the name and address of the relevant BRLM where the Anchor Investor Application Form was 
submitted by the Anchor Investor. For all Offer related queries and for redressal of complaints, investors may also write to the BRLM. 
 

Details of Key Intermediaries pertaining to this Offer and our Company:  

 

Book Running Lead Manager to the Offer Legal Advisor to the Offer 

Hem Securities Limited 
Address: 904, A Wing, Naman Midtown,  Senapati Bapat 
Marg, Elphinstone Road, Lower Parel,Mumbai-400013, 
Maharashtra, India  
Tel No.:+91-22-4906 0000 
Email: ib@hemsecurities.com 

Investor Grievance Email: redressal@hemsecurities.com 

Website:www.hemsecurities.com 
Contact Person: Mr. Akun Goyal 
SEBI Reg. No.: INM000010981 

MINDSPRIGHT LEGAL 
Address: 712-714, C-Wing, Trade World, Kamla City, Senapati 
Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (West), Mumbai - 400013, Maharashtra, 
India. 
Tel No.: +91-22-42197000 
Email: richa@mindspright.co.in 
Contact Person: Ms. Richa Bhansali 
Website: www.mindspright.co.in 

Registrar to the Offer Statutory Auditors 

Bigshare Services Private Limited 
Address: S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Next to 
Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East) 
Mumbai – 400093, India. 
Telephone: +91 22 6263 8200  
Facsimile: +91 22 6263 8299 
Email: ipo@bigshareonline.com 
Investor Grievance Email:investor@bigshareonline.com 
Website: www.bigshareonline.com 
Contact Person: Mr. Babu Raphel 
SEBI Registration Number: MB/INR000001385  
CIN: U99999MH1994PTC076534 

M/s. Kishor Gujar & Associates 

Chartered Accountants,  
Address: Off. No. 2, 1st Floor, Mahalaxmi Heights,Near Bank Of 
Maharashtra (Pimpri Branch),Mumbai-Pune Road, Pimpri, Pune – 
411018 
Telephone: +91-20 – 27472930 
Email info.kgapune@gmail.com 
Firm Registration No.: 116747W 
Peer Review Certificate Number: 014220 
MembershipNo: 156238 
Contact Person: Mrs. Sangita V Kumbhar 

Bankers to our Company  Bankers to the Offer/ Refund Banker/Sponsor Bank 
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ICICI Bank Limited 
Address: Shop No. 21A, Westend Riverview, Aundh – 
411007, Pune, Maharashtra, India  
Tel No.:+91-9765906666 
Email: shubham.ladda@icicibank.com 

Contact Person: Mr. Shubham Ladda 

 

Axis Bank Limited 
Address: Shop No. 3, Office No. 5, Shubh Complex PN SDC 6, 
Indrayani Nagar Road, Sector No. 1, Bhosari, Pune, Maharashtra – 
411-039 
Telephone: 8691924901 

Email: indrayaninagar.branchhead@axisbank.com 
Contact Person: Ms. Sunita More (AVP & Branch Head) 
Website: www.axisbank.com 

Syndicate Member 

Hem Finlease Private Limited 
Address: 203, Jaipur Tower, M I Road, Jaipur, Rajasthan 302001, India 

Telephone: 0141-4051000 
Email: ib@hemsecurities.com 

Website: www.hemsecurities.com 
Contact Person: Mr. Ashok Soni 

SEBI Registration Number: INZ000167734 

 

Designated Intermediaries: 

 

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks (SCSB’s) 

 
The list of SCSBs, as updated till date, is available on website of Securities and Exchange Board of India at below link. 
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34; and 
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=35 
Investors are requested to refer the SEBI website for updated list of SCSBs and their designated branches. 
 
Further, as notified by SEBI vide its circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019; the applications through 
UPI in IPOs can be made only through the SCSBs/ mobile applications whose name appears on the SEBI website www.sebi.gov. in at 
the following path: Home � Intermediaries/Market Infrastructure Institutions � Recognized intermediaries � Self Certified 
Syndicate Banks eligible as Issuer Banks for UPI.  
 
Investor shall ensure that when applying in IPO using UPI, the name of his Bank appears in the list of SCSBs displayed on the SEBI 
website which are live on UPI. Further, he/she shall also ensure that the name of the app and the UPI handle being used for making the 
application is also appearing in the aforesaid list. 
 
Self-Certified Syndicate Banks eligible as Sponsor Banks for UPI 
 
The list of Self Certified Syndicate Banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as Investors Bank or Issuer Bank for UPI mechanism 
are provide on the website of SEBI on https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=41 
 
Syndicate SCSB Branches 

 
In accordance with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated June 28, 2019 and SEBI Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019, Retail Individual Bidders Applying using the UPI Mechanism may apply 
through the SCSBs and mobile applications whose names appears on the website of the SEBI 
(https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=40)  and updated from time to time. A list of 
SCSBs and mobile applications, which are live for applying in public issues using UPI mechanism is provided as ‘Annexure A’ for the 
SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019, as amended.  
 

Registered Brokers 

 
The list of the Registered Brokers eligible to accept ASBA forms, including details such as postal address, telephone number and 
email address, is provided on the website of the SEBI at (https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes), 
respectively, as updated from time to time.  
 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents 
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The list of the Registrar to Issue and Share Transfer Agents (RTAs) eligible to accept Applications forms at the Designated RTA 
Locations, including details such as address, telephone number and e-mail address, are provided at 
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=10 , as updated from time to time.  
 

Collecting Depository Participants (CDP’s)  

 
The list of the Collecting Depository Participants (CDPs) eligible to accept Application Forms at the Designated CDP Locations, 
including details such as name and contact details, are provided at 
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=19  for NSDL CDPs and at 
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=18 for CDSL CDPs, as updated from time to 
time. The list of branches of the SCSBs named by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits of the Bid cum Application Forms from 
the Designated Intermediaries will be available on the website of the SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in) and updated from time to time. 
 

Brokers to the Offer 
 
All members of the recognized stock exchanges would be eligible to act as Brokers to the Offer. 
 

Expert Opinion 

 
Except the report of the Auditor on statement of special tax benefits and report on restated financial statements for the period ended on 
September 30, 2022 and financial year ended March 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 as included in this Red Herring Prospectus, our 
Company has not obtained any expert opinion. 
 
Inter-se Allocation of Responsibilities 

 
Since, Hem Securities Limited is the sole Book Running Lead Manager to this Offer, a statement of inter se allocation of 
responsibilities among Book Running Lead Manager is not applicable.  
 

Monitoring Agency 
 
As the Offer is through an Offer for Sale of Equity Shares, our Company is not required to appoint a monitoring agency for this Offer. 
 
Green Shoe Option  
 
No Green Shoe Option is applicable for this Offer.  
 
Appraising Entity 

 
As the Offer is through an Offer for Sale of Equity Shares, our Company is not required to appoint an appraising entity for this Offer. 
 

Credit Rating 

 
As this is an Offer of Equity Shares, there is no credit rating for the Offer. 
 

IPO Grading 

 
Since the Offer is being made in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 there is no requirement of appointing an 
IPO Grading agency. 
 
Debenture Trustees 

 
As this is an Offer of Equity Shares, the appointment of Debenture trustees is not required.  
 

Filing of Draft Red Herring Prospectus/ Red Herring Prospectus/Prospectus with the SEBI/ROC 

 
The Draft Red Herring Prospectus is being filed with SME platform of Bombay Stock Exchange, P. J. Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, 
Mumbai – 400001, Maharashtra, India. 
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The Draft Red Herring Prospectus has not been filed with SEBI, nor will SEBI issue any observation on the Offer Document in terms 
of Regulation 246(2) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. Pursuant to Regulation 246(5) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and SEBI 
Circular Number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011 dated January 19, 2018, a copy of RHP & Prospectus will be filed online 
through SEBI Intermediary Portal at https://siportal.sebi.gov.in. 
 
A copy of the Red Herring Prospectus & Prospectus, along with the documents required to be filed under Section 26 & 32 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 would be delivered for filing to the Registrar of Companies, Pune, PCNTDA Green Building, Block A, 1st & 

2nd Floor, Near Akurdi Railway Station, Akurdi, Pune - 411044 Maharashtra 

 

Book Building Process 
 
Book Building, with reference to the Offer, refers to the process of collection of Bids on the basis of the Red Herring Prospectus 
within the Price Band. The Price Band shall be determined by our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager 
in accordance with the Book Building Process, and advertised in in all editions of Business Standard, an English national 
newspaper, all editions of Business Standard, a Hindi national newspaper and Rashtrasanchar, a  Marathi daily  newspaper (Marathi 
being  the  regional  language  of Maharashtra,  where  our  Registered  Office  is located), at least two working days prior to the 
Bid/ Offer Opening date. The Offer Price shall be determined by our Company, in consultation with the Book Running Lead 
Manager in accordance with the Book Building Process after the Bid/ Offer Closing Date. Principal parties involved in the Book 
Building Process are:- 
 

• Our Company;  

• The Book Running Lead Manager in this case being Hem Securities Limited,  

• The Syndicate Member(s) who are intermediaries registered with SEBI/ registered as brokers with BSE Ltd. and eligible to act 
as Underwriters. The Syndicate Member(s) will be appointed by the Book Running Lead Manager;  

• The Registrar to the Offer and;  

• The Designated Intermediaries and Sponsor bank 
 
The SEBI ICDR Regulations have permitted the Offer of securities to the public through the Book Building Process, wherein 
allocation to the public shall be made as per Regulation 253 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.  
 
The Offer is being made through the Book Building Process wherein not more than 50% of the Net Offer shall be available for 
allocation on a proportionate basis to QIBs, provided that our Company may in consultation with the BRLM allocate upto 60% of 
the QIB Portion to Anchor Investors on a discretionary basis in accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations (the “Anchor 

Investor Portion”), out of which one third shall be reserved for domestic Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received from 
domestic Mutual Funds at or above the Anchor Investor Offer Price. 5% of the QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a 
proportionate basis to Mutual Funds only, and the remainder of the QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate 
basis to all QIB Bidders, including Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Offer Price. Further, not less 
than 15% of the Net Offer shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Non-Institutional Bidders and not less than 
35% of the Net Offer shall be available for allocation to Retail Individual Bidders, in accordance with the SEBI Regulations, subject 
to valid Bids being received at or above the Offer Price. All potential Bidders may participate in the Offer through an ASBA process 
by providing details of their respective bank account which will be blocked by the SCSBs. All Bidders are mandatorily required to 
utilize the ASBA process to participate in the Offer. Under-subscription if any, in any category, except in the QIB Category, would 
be allowed to be met with spill over from any other category or a combination of categories at the discretion of our Company in 
consultation with the BRLM and the Designated Stock Exchange. 
 

All Bidders, except Anchor Investors, are mandatorily required to use the ASBA process for participating in the Offer. In 

accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs bidding in the QIB Portion and Non-Institutional Bidders bidding in the 

Non-Institutional Portion are not allowed to withdraw or lower the size of their Bids (in terms of the quantity of the Equity 
Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage. Retail Individual Bidders can revise their Bids during the Bid/Offer Period and 

withdraw their Bids until the Bid/Offer Closing Date. Further, Anchor Investors cannot withdraw their Bids after the 

Anchor Investor Bid/Offer Period. Allocation to the Anchor Investors will be on a discretionary basis. 
 
Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Offer Price, allocation to all categories in the Net Offer, shall be made on a 
proportionate basis, except for Retail Portion where allotment to each Retail Individual Bidders shall not be less than the minimum 
bid lot, subject to availability of Equity Shares in Retail Portion, and the remaining available Equity Shares, if any, shall be allotted 
on a proportionate basis. Under – subscription, if any, in any category, would be allowed to be met with spill – over from any other 
category or a combination of categories at the discretion of our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager and 
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the Stock Exchange. However, under-subscription, if any, in the QIB Portion will not be allowed to be met with spill over from 
other categories or a combination of categories. 
 
In terms of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 and the SEBI (Issue of Capital and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, all the investors (except Anchor Investors) applying in a public Offer shall use only 
Application Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA) process for application providing details of the bank account which will be 
blocked by the Self Certified Syndicate Banks (SCSBs) for the same. Further, pursuant to SEBI Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 01, 2018, Retail Individual Bidders applying in public Offer may use either 
Application Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA) facility for making application or also can use UPI as a payment mechanism 
with Application Supported by Blocked Amount for making application. For details in this regards, specific attention are invited to 
the chapter titled “Offer Procedure” beginning on page 212 of the Red Herring Prospectus. 
 
The process of Book Building under the SEBI ICDR Regulations is subject to change from time to time and the investors are 
advised to make their own judgment about investment through this process prior to making a Bid or application in the Offer. 
 
 For further details on the method and procedure for Bidding, please see section entitled “Offer Procedure” on page 212 of this Red 
Herring Prospectus. 
 
Illustration of the Book Building and Price Discovery Process: Bidders should note that this example is solely for illustrative 
purposes and is not specific to the Offer; it also excludes Bidding by Anchor Investors. Bidders can bid at any price within the Price 
Band. For instance, assume a Price Band of �20 to � 24 per share, Offer size of 3,000 Equity Shares and receipt of five Bids from 
Bidders, details of which are shown in the table below. The illustrative book given below shows the demand for the Equity Shares 
of the Offerr at various prices and is collated from Bids received from various investors. 
 

Bid Quantity Bid Amount (�) Cumulative Quantity Subscription 

500 24 500 16.67% 

1,000 23 1,500 50.00% 

1,500 22 3,000 100.00% 

2,000 21 5,000 166.67% 

2,500 20 7,500 250.00% 

 
The price discovery is a function of demand at various prices. The highest price at which the Offer is able to Offer the desired 
number of Equity Shares is the price at which the book cuts off, i.e., � 22.00 in the above example. The Offer, in consultation with 
the BRLM, may finalise the Offer Price at or below such Cut-Off Price, i.e., at or below � 22.00. All Bids at or above this Offer 
Price and cut-off Bids are valid Bids and are considered for allocation in the respective categories. 
 
Steps to be taken by the Bidders for Bidding: 
 

• Check eligibility for making a Bid (see section titled “Offer Procedure” on page 212 of this Red Herring Prospectus); 

• Ensure that you have a demat account and the demat account details are correctly mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form;  

• Ensure correctness of your PAN, DP ID and Client ID mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form. Based on these 
parameters, the Registrar to the Offer will obtain the Demographic Details of the Bidders from the Depositories.  

• Except for Bids on behalf of the Central or State Government officials, residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the 
courts, who may be exempt from specifying their PAN for transacting in the securities market, for Bids of all values ensure 
that you have mentioned your PAN allotted under the Income Tax Act in the Bid cum Application Form. The exemption for 
Central or State Governments and officials appointed by the courts and for investors residing in Sikkim is subject to the 
Depositary Participant’s verification of the veracity of such claims of the investors by collecting sufficient documentary 
evidence in support of their claims.  

• Ensure that the Bid cum Application Form is duly completed as per instructions given in this Red Herring Prospectus and in 
the Bid cum Application Form; 

 

Bid/ Offer Program: 
 

Event Indicative Dates 

Bid/ Offer Opening Date(1) February 17, 2023 

Bid/ Offer Closing Date(2) February 21, 2023 

Finalization of Basis of Allotment with the Designated Stock Exchange February 24, 2023 
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Event Indicative Dates 

Initiation of Allotment / Refunds / Unblocking of Funds from ASBA Account or 
UPI ID linked bank account 

February 27, 2023 

Credit of Equity Shares to Demat accounts of Allottees February 28, 2023 

Commencement of trading of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange March 01, 2023 
 

(1) Our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager may consider participation by Anchor Investors in 

accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. The Anchor Investor Bid/Offer Period shall be one Working Day prior to the 

Bid/Offer Opening Date in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.  
 
(2) Our Company and the Selling Shareholders, in consultation with the BRLM, may decide to close the Bid/Offer Period for QIBs 

one Working Day prior to the Bid/Offer Closing Date, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

 
The above timetable is indicative and does not constitute any obligation on our Company or the Book Running Lead Manager. 
Whilst our Company shall ensure that all steps for the completion of the necessary formalities for the listing and the commencement 
of trading of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange are taken within 6 Working Days of the Bid/ Offer Closing Date, the 
timetable may change due to various factors, such as extension of the Bid/Offer Period by our Company, revision of the Price Band 
or any delays in receiving the final listing and trading approval from the Stock Exchange. The Commencement of trading of the 
Equity Shares will be entirely at the discretion of the Stock Exchange and in accordance with the applicable laws. 
 
Bid Cum Application Forms and any revisions to the same will be accepted only between 10.00 A.M. to 5.00 P.M. (IST) during the 
Offer Period (except for the Bid/ Offer Closing Date). On the Bid/ Offer Closing Date, the Bid Cum Application Forms will be 
accepted only between 10.00 A.M. to 3.00 P.M. (IST) for retail and non-retail Bidders. The time for applying for Retail Individual 
Applicant on Bid/Offer Closing Date maybe extended in consultation with the BRLM, RTA and BSE SME taking into account the 
total number of applications received up to the closure of timings. 
 
Due to the limitation of time available for uploading the Bid Cum Application Forms on the Bid/Offer Closing Date, Bidders are 
advised to submit their applications one (1) day prior to the Bid/ Offer Closing Date and, in any case, not later than 3.00 P.M. (IST) 
on the Bid/ Offer Closing Date. Any time mentioned in this Red Herring Prospectus is IST. Bidders are cautioned that, in the event 
a large number of Bid Cum Application Forms are received on the Bid/Offer Closing Date, as is typically experienced in public 
Offer, some Bid Cum Application Forms may not get uploaded due to the lack of sufficient time. Such Bid Cum Application Forms 
that cannot be uploaded will not be considered for allocation under this Offer. Applications will be accepted only on Working Days, 
i.e., Monday to Friday (excluding any public holidays). Neither our Company nor the BRLM is liable for any failure in uploading 
the Bid Cum Application Forms due to faults in any software/hardware system or otherwise. 
 
In accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs and Non-Institutional Applicants are not allowed to withdraw or lower the size 
of their Application (in terms of the quantity of the Equity Shares or the Application amount) at any stage. Retail Individual 
Applicants can revise or withdraw their Bid Cum Application Forms prior to the Bid/Offer Closing Date. Allocation to Retail 
Individual Applicants, in this Offer will be on a proportionate basis. 
 
In case of discrepancy in the data entered in the electronic book vis-à-vis the data contained in the physical Bid Cum Application 
Form, for a particular Applicant, the details as per the file received from Stock Exchange may be taken as the final data for the 
purpose of Allotment. In case of discrepancy in the data entered in the electronic book vis-à-vis the data contained in the physical or 
electronic Bid Cum Application Form, for a particular ASBA Applicant, the Registrar to the Offer shall ask the relevant SCSBs/ 
RTAs / DPs / stock brokers, as the case may be, for the rectified data. 

 

Withdrawal of the Offer 
 
Our Company and the Selling Shareholder in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, reserve the right to not to proceed 
with the Offer after the Offer Opening Date but before the Allotment. In such an event, our Company would Offer a public notice in 
the newspapers in which the pre-Offer advertisements were published, within two (2) days of the Offer Closing Date or such other 
time as may be prescribed by SEBI, providing reasons for not proceeding with the Offer. The Book Running Lead Manager 
through, the Registrar to the Offer, shall notify the SCSBs or the Sponsor Bank to unblock the bank accounts of the ASBA Bidders 
within one (1) working day from the date of receipt of such notification. Our Company shall also inform the same to the Stock 
Exchange on which Equity Shares are proposed to be listed. If the Offer is withdrawn after the designated Date, amounts that have 
been credited to the Public Offer Account shall be transferred to the Refund Account.  
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Offer is also subject to obtaining the final listing and trading approvals of the Stock Exchanges, 
which our Company shall apply for after Allotment and within six Working Days of the Bid/ Offer Closing Date or such other time 
period as prescribed under Applicable Law and also inform the Bankers to the Offer to process refunds to the Anchor Investors, as the 
case may be. If our Company withdraws the Offer after the Bid/ Offer Closing Date and thereafter determines that it will proceed with 
an issue or offer for sale of the Equity Shares, our Company shall file a fresh draft red herring prospectus with the Stock Exchanges. 
The notice of withdrawal will be issued in the same newspapers where the pre-Offer advertisements have appeared, and the Stock 
Exchanges will also be informed promptly. 
Underwriting 

 
The Company and the Book Running Lead Manager to the Offer hereby confirm that the Offer is 100% Underwritten by the 
Underwriter, Hem Securities Limited in the capacity of Underwriter to the Offer. 
 
Pursuant to the terms of the Underwriting Agreement dated January 20, 2023 entered into by Company, Underwriter, the obligations 
of the Underwriter are subject to certain conditions specified therein. The Details of the Underwriting commitments are as under:  
 

Details of the Underwriter 
No. of shares 
underwritten 

Amount Underwritten 
(� in Lakhs) 

% of Total Offer 
Size Underwritten 

Hem Securities Limited 
Address: - 904, A Wing, Naman Midtown, Senapati Bapat 
Marg, Elphinstone Road, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013, 
India 
Tel No.: +91-22-4906 0000 
Email: ib@hemsecurities.com 
Investor Grievance Email: redressal@hemsecurities.com 
Website: www.hemsecurities.com 
Contact Person: Mr. Akun Goyal 
SEBI Registration Number.: INM000010981 

23,28,000 [�] 100% 

*Includes 1,16,400 Equity Shares of the Market Maker Reservation Portion which are to be subscribed by the Market Maker, Hem 

Securities Limited in its own account in order to claim compliance with the requirements of Regulation 261 of the SEBI (ICDR) 

Regulations, 2018, as amended.  

 

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of our Company, the resources of the above mentioned Underwriter are sufficient to enable 
them to discharge their respective obligations in full.   
 

Change in Auditors during the last three (3) years  

There have been no changes in our Company‘s auditors in the last three (3) years: 

 

Details of the Market Making Arrangement for this Offer 
 
Our Company has entered into a Market Making Agreement dated January 20, 2023 with the following Market Maker for fulfilling 
the Market Making obligations under this Offer: 
 

Name Hem Securities Limited 

Correspondence Address: 203, Jaipur Tower, M I Road, Jaipur, Rajasthan 302001, India 

Tel No.: 0141-4051000 

E-mail: ib@hemsecurities.com 

Website: www.hemsecurities.com 

Contact Person: Mr. Rohit Sharma 

SEBI Registration No.: INZ000168034 

Market Maker Registration No. SMEMM0024801022013 

 
In accordance with Regulation 261 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, we have entered into an agreement with the Book Running Lead 
Manager and the Market Maker (duly registered with BSE to fulfil the obligations of Market Making) dated January 20, 2023 to 
ensure compulsory Market Making for a minimum period of three years from the date of listing of equity shares offered in this 
Issuer.  
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Hem Securities Limited, registered with BSE Limited (BSE) will act as the Market Maker and has agreed to receive or deliver of the 
specified securities in the market making process for a period of three years from the date of listing of our Equity Shares or for a 
period as may be notified by any amendment to SEBI ICDR Regulations.  
 
The Market Maker shall fulfil the applicable obligations and conditions as specified in the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended from 
time to time and the circulars issued by BSE and SEBI in this matter from time to time. 
 
Following is a summary of the key details pertaining to the Market Making arrangement:  
 
� The Market Maker(s) (individually or jointly) shall be required to provide a 2-way quote for 75% of the time in a day. The same 

shall be monitored by the stock exchange. Further, the Market Maker(s) shall inform the exchange in advance for each and every 
black out period when the quotes are not being offered by the Market Maker(s).  
 

� The prices quoted by Market Maker shall be in compliance with the Market Maker Spread Requirements and other particulars as 
specified or as per the requirements of the SME platform of BSE and SEBI from time to time. 
 

� The minimum depth of the quote shall be Rs.1,00,000/- . However, the investors with holdings of value less than Rs. 1,00,000/- 
shall be allowed to offer their holding to the Market Maker(s) (individually or jointly) in that scrip provided that he sells his 
entire holding in that scrip in one lot along with a declaration to the effect to the selling broker.  

 

� The Market Maker shall not sell in lots less than the minimum contract size allowed for trading on the SME platform of BSE 
(BSE SME) (in this case currently the minimum trading lot size is [•] equity shares; however the same may be changed by the 
BSE SME from time to time). 
 

� After a period of three (3) months from the market making period, the Market Maker would be exempted to provide quote if the 
Shares of Market Maker in our company reaches to 25% of Issue Size. Any Equity Shares allotted to Market Maker under this 
Offer over and above 25% of Offer Size would not be taken in to consideration of computing the threshold of 25% of Offer Size. 
As soon as the Shares of Market Maker in our Company reduces to 24% of Offer Size, the Market Maker will resume providing 
2 way quotes. 
 

� There shall be no exemption/threshold on downside. However, in the event the Market Maker exhausts his inventory through 
market making process, BSE may intimate the same to SEBI after due verification. 
 

� Execution of the order at the quoted price and quantity must be guaranteed by the Market Maker(s), for the quotes given by him.  
 

� There would not be more than five Market Makers for a script at any point of time and the Market Makers may compete with 
other Market Makers for better quotes to the investors.  
 

� On the first day of the listing, there will be pre-opening session (call auction) and there after the trading will happen as per the 
equity market hours. The circuits will apply from the first day of the listing on the discovered price during the pre-open call 
auction. 
 

� The Market maker may also be present in the opening call auction, but there is no obligation on him to do so. 
 

� There will be special circumstances under which the Market Maker may be allowed to withdraw temporarily/fully from the 
market – for instance due to system problems, any other problems. All controllable reasons require prior approval from the 
Exchange, while force-majeure will be applicable for non-controllable reasons. The decision of the Exchange for deciding 
controllable and non-controllable reasons would be final 
 

� The Market Maker(s) shall have the right to terminate said arrangement by giving a six months’ notice or on mutually acceptable 
terms to the Merchant Banker, who shall then be responsible to appoint a replacement Market Maker(s) and execute a fresh 
arrangement. In case of termination of the above mentioned Market Making agreement prior to the completion of the 
compulsory Market Making period, it shall be the responsibility of the BRLM to arrange for another Market Maker in 
replacement during the term of the notice period being served by the Market Maker but prior to the date of releasing the existing 
Market Maker from its duties in order to ensure compliance with the requirements of regulation 261 of the SEBI (ICDR) 
Regulations, 2018, as amended. Further our Company and the BRLM reserve the right to appoint other Market Makers either as 
a replacement of the current Market Maker or as an additional Market Maker subject to the total number of Designated Market 
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Makers does not exceed five or as specified by the relevant laws and regulations applicable at that particulars point of time. The 
Market Making Agreement is available for inspection at our office from 10.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. on working days.  
 

� Risk containment measures and monitoring for Market Makers: Stock Exchange will have all margins, which are applicable 
on BSE main board viz., Mark-to-Market, Value-At-Risk (VAR) Margin, Extreme Loss Margin, Special Margins and Base 
Minimum Capital etc. BSE can impose any other margins as deemed necessary from time-to-time. 

 
� Punitive Action in case of default by Market Makers: SME platform of BSE will monitor the obligations on a real time basis 

and punitive action will be initiated for any exceptions and/or non-compliances. Penalties / fines may be imposed by the 
Exchange on the Market Maker, in case he is not able to provide the desired liquidity in a particular security as per the specified 
guidelines. These penalties / fines will be set by the Exchange from time to time. The Exchange will impose a penalty on the 
Market Maker in case he is not present in the market (offering two way quotes) for at least 75% of the time. The nature of the 
penalty will be monetary as well as suspension in market making activities / trading membership. The Department of 
Surveillance and Supervision of the Exchange would decide and publish the penalties / fines / suspension for any type of 
misconduct/ manipulation/ other irregularities by the Market Maker from time to time. 
 

� Price Band and Spreads: The price band shall be 20% and the market maker spread (difference between the sell and the buy 
quote) shall be within 10% or as intimated by Exchange from time to time. 
 

� Pursuant to SEBI Circular number CIR/MRD/DSA/31/2012 dated November 27, 2012, limits on the upper side for market 
makers during market making process has been made applicable, based on the Offer size and as follows:  
 

Offer Size Buy quote exemption threshold (including 

mandatory initial inventory of 5% of the 

Offer Size) 

Re-Entry threshold for buy quote 

(including mandatory initial inventory of 

5% of the Offer Size) 

Up to �20 Crore 25% 24% 

�20 to �50 Crore 20% 19% 

�50 to �80 Crore 15% 14% 

Above �80 Crore 12% 11% 

 
The SEBI Circular bearing reference no: CIR/MRD/DP/ 02/2012 dated January 20, 2012, has laid down that for Offer size up to 
Rs. 250 crores, the applicable price bands for the first day shall be: 
 
i. In case equilibrium price is discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading session shall be 5% of the 

equilibrium price. 

 
ii. In case equilibrium price is not discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading session shall be 5% of 

the Offer price. 

 
Additionally, the securities of the Company will be placed in SPOS and would remain in Trade for Trade settlement for first 10 
days from commencement of trading. The following spread will be applicable on the SME platform.  
 

S. No. Market Price Slab (in Rs.) Proposed Spread (in % to sale price) 

1. Up to 50 9 

2. 50 to 75 8 

3. 75 to 100 6 

4. Above 100 5 

 
All the above mentioned conditions and systems regarding the Market Making Arrangement are subject to change based on changes 

or additional regulations and guidelines from SEBI and Stock Exchange from time to time. 
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

 
Set forth below are the details of the Equity Share Capital of our Company as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.  

(�in Lakhs, except share data) 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars Aggregate Value 

at Face Value 

Aggregate Value 

at Offer Price 

A 
Authorized Share Capital 
90,00,000 Equity Shares having Face Value of � 10/- each 

900.00 - 

B 
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Share Capital prior to the Offer 
88,35,424 Equity Shares having Face Value of �10/- each 

883.54 - 

C 

Present Offer in terms of this Red Herring Prospectus 
Offer for Sale of upto 23,28,000 Equity Shares having Face Value of � 10/-each 

at a Premium of � [
�

] per share1,2 

232.80 [�] 

 Which comprises     

 
upto 1,16,400 Equity Shares of Face Value of �10.00 each at a premium of �[�] 
per Equity Share reserved as Market Maker portion 

11.64 [�] 

 
Net Offer to Public of 22,11,600 Equity Shares of Face Value of �10.00 each at 
a premium of �[�] per Equity Share to the Public 

221.16 [�] 

D Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Equity Share Capital after the Offer  

 88,35,424 Equity Shares of face value of �10/- each 883.54 

E Securities Premium Account  

 Before the Offer (as on date of this Red Herring Prospectus) - 

 After the Offer - 
1. The Present Offer of upto 23,28,000 Equity Shares in terms of this Red Herring Prospectus has been authorized pursuant 

to a resolution of our Board of Directors dated January 07, 2023 and by special resolution passed at an Extra Ordinary 

General Meeting of the members held on January 11, 2023. 

 

2. Each Selling Shareholder, severally and not jointly, has confirmed and authorized its respective participation in the Offer 

for Sale. Each Selling Shareholder, severally and not jointly, specifically confirms and undertakes that its portion of the 

Offered Shares has been held by such Selling Shareholder for a continuous period of at least one year prior to the filing of 

this Red Herring Prospectus in terms of Regulation 8 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. For details, see “The Offer” and 

“Other Regulatory and Statutory Disclosures “beginning on pages 40 and 191 respectively.    

 

Classes of Shares:- 

 
Our Company has only one class of share capital i.e. Equity Shares of face value of � 10/- each only. All the issued Equity Shares 
are fully paid-up. Our Company has no outstanding convertible instruments as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus. 
 
NOTES TO THE CAPITAL STRUCTURE: 

 

1. Changes in Authorized Equity Share Capital of our Company: 

 

Sr. 

No. 
Particulars of increase 

Cumulative 

No. of Equity 

Shares 

Face 

Value of 

Equity 

Share 

Cumulative 

Authorized Share 

Capital ( � in lakhs) 

Date of 

Meeting 

Whether 

AGM/EGM 

1. On incorporation 50,000 10/- 5.00 
On 
Incorporation 

N.A. 

2. 
Increase in Authorized Share 
Capital from �5.00 Lakhs to � 
900.00 Lakhs 

90,00,000 10/- 900.00 
October 20, 
2022 

EGM 

 
2. Equity Share Capital History of our Company: 

 
a) The following table sets forth details of the history of the Equity Share capital of our Company: 
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Date of Allotment of 

Equity Shares 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

allotted 

Face 

Value 
(�) 

Issue Price 

(including 

Premium if 
applicable(�) 

Consideration 

Cash/ Other 

than Cash 

Nature of 

Allotment 

Cumulative No. 

of Equity Shares 

Upon Incorporation 10000 10/- 10/- Cash 
Subscription to 

MOA(i) 
10,000 

March 05, 2021 144 10/- 69303.35 Cash Right Issue(ii) 10,144 

November 25, 2022 88,25,280 10/- - Other than cash 
Bonus Issue of 

Shares(iii) 
88,35,424 

All the above mentioned shares are fully paid up since the date of allotment.   

 

(i) Initial Subscribers to the Memorandum of Association subscribed 10,000 Equity Shares of Face Value of � 10/- each, details of 

which are given below: 

 

Sr. No. Name of Subscribers Number of Shares Subscribed 

1. Binod Prasad 2,500 

2. Atul Maruti Dumbre 2,500 

3. Jayesh Jain 2,500 

4. Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan 2,500 

 Total 10,000 

 

(ii) Allotment of 144 Equity Shares of Face Value of � 10/- each as per details given below: 

 

Sr. No. Name of Subscribers Number of Shares Subscribed 

1. Binod Prasad 36 

2. Atul Maruti Dumbre 36 

3. Jayesh Jain 36 

4. Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan 36 

 Total 144 

 

(iii) Bonus issue of 88,25,280 Equity Shares of Face Value of � 10/-each in the ratio of 870:1 i.e. Eight Hundred Seventy(870) 

Bonus Equity Shares for every One (1) Equity Shares held by shareholders. (refer point no. 4 below for allottees list.) 

 

b) As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Company does not have any Preference Share Capital.  
 

3. Except as mentioned in point number 2(i) and 2(ii) below, the Company has not issued any Equity Shares in the last two years 
preceding the date of the Red Herring Prospectus. 
 

4. Issue of Equity Shares for consideration other than cash: 
 
Except as set out below we have not issued Equity Shares for consideration other than cash: 
 

Date of 
Allotment 

Number of 
Equity 

Shares 

Face 
Value 

(�) 

Issue 
Price 

(�) 

Reasons for 
Allotment 

Benefits 
Accrued to 

our Company 

Name of Allottees No. of Shares 
Allotted 

November 
25, 2022 

88,25,280 10/- Nil Bonus Issue 
in the Ratio 

of 870:1 

Capitalization 
of Reserves & 

Surplus 

Binod Prasad 22,06,320 

Atul Maruti Dumbre 22,06,320 

Jayesh Jain 22,06,320 

Nileshkumar Purshottam 
Chavhan 

22,06,320 

Total 88,25,280 
 

5. No Equity Shares have been allotted pursuant to any scheme approved under sections 230-234 of the Companies Act, 2013 
orunder the erstwhile corresponding provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. 
 

6. Our Company has not issued any shares pursuant to an Employee Stock Option Scheme. 
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7. Except for bonus issue made on November 25, 2022, our Company has not issued Equity shares at price below the Offer Price 

within last one year from the date of the Red Herring Prospectus. 
 

8. We have not revalued our assets since inception and have not issued any Equity Shares (including bonus shares) by capitalizing 
any revaluation reserves. 
 

9. Shareholding Pattern of the Company 

 
The table below represents the shareholding pattern of our Company in accordance with Regulation 31 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus: 
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I - Our Shareholding Pattern:- 

Catego

ry 

 

Category 

of 

sharehold

er 

 

Nos. of 

share 

holders 

No. of 

fully 

paid up 

equity 

shares 

held 
 

No. 

of 

Partl

y 

paid-

up 
equit

y 

share

s 

held 

 

No. 

of 

shar

es 

und

erlyi
ng 

Dep

osit

ory 

Rec

eipt
s 

 

Total 

nos. 

shares 

held 

 

Sharehold

ing as a % 

of total no. 

of shares 

(calculate

d as per 
SCRR, 

1957) 

As a % of 

(A+B+C2) 

Number of Voting Rights held in each 

class of securities* 

 

No. 

of 

Shar

es 

Unde

rlyin
g 

Outst

andin

g 

conve

rtible 

Shareholding 

, as a % 

assuming full 

conversion 

of convertible 

securities ( as 
a 

percentage of 

diluted share 

capital) 

As a % of 

(A+B+C2) 

Number 

of 

Locked 

in shares 

 

 

Number of 

Shares 

pledged or 

otherwise 

encumbere

d 

Num

ber of 

equit

y 

share

s held 
in 

dema

teriali

zed 

form 

 
 

No of Voting Rights Total as a 
% of 

(A+B+ C) 

N
o. 

(a

) 

As a 
% 

of 

total 

Sha

res 

held 
(b) 

No. 
(a) 

As a 
% of 

total 

Shar

e s 

held 

(b) 

Class 
Equity 

Shares 

of �10/- 

each^ 

Cla
ss 

eg: 

y 

Tot 
al 

I II III IV V VI VII = 

IV+V+

VI 

VIII IX X XI=VII+X XII XIII XIV 

(A) Promoters 
&Promote
r Group 

9 88,35,420 - - 88,35,420 100.00 88,35,420 - 88,35,420 100.00 - 100.00 - - 
88,35,

420 

(B) Public 1 4 - - 4 Negligible 4 - 4 Negligible - Negligible - - - 

I Non 
Promoter- 
Non 
Public 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

(C1) Shares 
underlying 
DRs 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

(C2) Shares 
held by 
Emp. 
Trusts 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 Total 10 88,35,424 - - 88,35,424 100.00 88,35,424 - 88,35,424 100.00 - 100.00 - - 
88,35,

420 

Notes- 
*As on date of this Red Herring Prospectus 1 Equity share holds 1 vote. 

We have only one class of Equity Shares of face value of � 10/- each. 

Our Company will file the shareholding pattern in the form prescribed under Regulation 31 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, one day  

prior to the listing of the Equity shares. The shareholding pattern will be uploaded on the Website of the BSE before commencement of trading of such Equity Shares. 
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10. List of Shareholders of the Company holding 1% or more of the paid up Share Capital of the Company:- 

 
a) As on the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus:- 

  

Sr.No. Names of Shareholders Shares held (Face Value of  � 10 

each) 

% Pre Offer paid up 

Share Capital (%) 

1.  Binod Prasad 22,08,850 25.00 

2.  Atul Maruti Dumbre 22,08,850 25.00 

3.  Jayesh Jain 22,08,850 25.00 

4.  Nileshkumar  Purshottam Chavhan 22,08,850 25.00 

 Total 88,35,400 100.00 

 
b) Ten days prior to the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus:- 

Sr.No. Names of Shareholders Shares held (Face Value of  � 10 

each) 

% Pre Offer paid up 

Share Capital (%) 

1.  Binod Prasad 22,08,850 25.00 

2.  Atul Maruti Dumbre 22,08,850 25.00 

3.  Jayesh Jain 22,08,850 25.00 

4.  Nileshkumar  Purshottam Chavhan 22,08,850 25.00 

 Total 88,35,400 100.00 

 
c) One Year prior to the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus:- 

 

Sr.No. Names of Shareholders Shares held (Face Value of  � 10 

each) 

% Pre Offer paid up 

Share Capital 

1. Binod Prasad 2,536 25.00 

2. Atul Maruti Dumbre 2,536 25.00 

3. Jayesh Jain 2,536 25.00 

4. Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan 2,536 25.00 

 Total 10,144 100.00 

*Details of shares held on February 08, 2022 and percentage held has been calculated based on the paid up capital of our 

Company as on February 08, 2022. 

 
d) Two Years prior to the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus:- 

 

Sr.No. Names of Shareholders Shares held (Face Value of  � 10 

each) 

% Pre Offer paid up 

Share Capital 

1. Binod Prasad 2,500 25.00 

2. AtulMarutiDumbre 2,500 25.00 

3. Jayesh Jain 2,500 25.00 

4. Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan 2,500 25.00 

 Total 10,000 100.00 

*Details of shares held on February 08, 2021 and percentage held has been calculated based on the paid up capital of our 

Company as on February 08, 2021. 

 
11.  Our Company has not made any Initial Public Offer of specified securities in the preceding two years. 

 
12. There will be no issue of capital, whether by way of issue of bonus shares, preferential allotment, Right issue or in any other 

manner during the period commencing from the date of the Red Herring Prospectus until the Equity Shares of our Company 
have been listed or application money unblocked on account of failure of Offer. Further, our Company does not intend to alter 
its capital structure within six months from the date of opening of the offer, by way of split / consolidation of the 
denomination of Equity Shares. However, our Company may issue Equity shares (including issue of securities convertible 
into Equity Shares) whether preferential or otherwise after the date of the listing of equity shares to finance an acquisition, 
merger or joint venture or for regulatory compliance or such other scheme of arrangement or any other purpose as the Board 
of Directors may deem fit, if an opportunity of such nature is determined by the Board of Directors to be in the interest of our 
Company. 
 

13. Capital Buildup in respect of Shareholding of our Promoters 
 

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, Our Promoters, Binod Prasad, Atul Maruti Dumbre and Nileshkumar Purshottam 
Chavhan collectively hold 66,26,550 Equity Shares of our Company. None of the Equity Shares held by our Promoters are subject 
to any pledge. 
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Set forth below is the build-up of the shareholding of our Promoters in our Company since incorporation. 
 

Date of Allotment and 

made fully paid up/ 
Transfer 

No. of Equity 

Shares 

Face 

Value 
Per 

Share 
(�) 

Issue/ 

Acquisition/ 
Transfer Price 

(�) 

Consideration Nature of 

Issue 

Pre-Issue 

Shareholding 
% 

(A) Binod Prasad 

September 26, 2017 
2500 10/- 10/- Cash 

Subscription to 
MOA 

0.03 

March 05, 2021 36 10/- 69293.35 Cash Right Issue Negligible 

November 25, 2022 22,06,320 10/- Nil Other than Cash Bonus Issue 24.97 

November 30, 2022 (6) 10/- 15 Cash 
Transfer of 

Shares(i) 
Negligible 

Total (A) 22,08,850     25.00 

(B) Atul Maruti Dumbre 

September 26, 2017 
2500 10/- 10/- Cash 

Subscription to 
MOA 

0.03 

March 05, 2021 36 10/- 69293.35 Cash Right Issue Negligible 

November 25, 2022 22,06,320 10/- Nil Other than Cash Bonus Issue 24.97 

November 30, 2022 (6) 10/- 15 Cash 
Transfer of 

Shares(ii) 
Negligible 

Total (B) 22,08,850     25.00 

(C) Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan 
September 26, 2017 

2500 10/- 10/- Cash 
Subscription to 

MOA 
0.03 

March 05, 2021 36 10/- 69293.35 Cash Right Issue Negligible 

November 25, 2022 22,06,320 10/- Nil Other than Cash Bonus Issue 24.97 

November 30, 2022 (6) 10/- 15 Cash 
Transfer of 
Shares(iii) 

Negligible 

Total (D) 22,08,850     25.00 

Grand Total 66,26,550  75.00 

Note: None of the Shares has been pledged by our Promoters. 

 

i. Details of transfer of Shares by Binod Prasad of 6 Equity Shares dated November 30, 2022. 

 

Sr. No. Date of Transfer  Name of Transferee No. of Share Transfer 

1. November 30, 2022 Laxmi Kumari 4 

2. Amruta Avinash Dere 1 

3. Prashant Deshpande 1 

 

ii. Details of transfer of Shares by Atul Maruti Dumbre of 6 Equity Shares dated November 30, 2022. 

 

Sr. No. Date of Transfer  Name of Transferor No. of Share Transfer 

1. November 30, 2022 Suvidha Atul Dumbre 4 

2. Amruta Avinash Dere 1 

3. Prashant Deshpande 1 

 

iii. Details of transfer of Shares by Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan of 6 Equity Shares dated November 30, 2022. 

 

Sr. No. Date of Transfer  Name of Transferor No. of Share Transfer 

1. November 30, 2022 Manali Anilrao Panwar 4 

2. Amruta Avinash Dere 1 

3. Prashant Deshpande 1 

 
14. The average cost of acquisition of or subscription of shares by our Promoters is set forth in the table below:  

 

Sr. No. Name of the Promoters No. of Shares held Average cost of Acquisition (in �) 

1. Binod Prasad 22,08,850 1.14 

2. Atul Maruti Dumbre 22,08,850 1.14 

3. Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan 22,08,850 1.14 
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15. Shareholding of Promoters &Promoter Group 

 
Following are the details of pre and post offer shareholding of persons belonging to the category “Promoters and Promoter 
group”: 
 

Sr.No Names 
Pre IPO Post IPO 

Shares Held % Shares Held Shares Held % Shares Held 

 
Promoters  

1. Binod Prasad 22,08,850 25.00 21,69,150 24.55 

2. Atul Maruti Dumbre 22,08,850 25.00 21,69,100 24.55 

3. Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan 22,08,850 25.00 21,69,150 24.55 

 Promoter Group     

4. Jayesh Jain 22,08,850 25.00 0 - 

5. Laxmi Kumari 4 negligible 4 negligible 

6. Manali Anilrao Pawar 4 negligible 4 negligible 

7. Suvidha Atul Dumbre 4 negligible 4 negligible 

8. Amruta Avinash Dere 4 negligible 4 negligible 

9. Sakshi Garg 4 negligible 4 negligible 

 Total 88,35,420 100.00 65,07,420 73.65 

 
16. Except as provided below, no Equity Shares were acquired/ purchased/ sold by the Promoters and Promoter Group, Directors 

and their immediate relatives within six months immediately preceding the date of filing of this Prospectus. 
 

Date of 
Allotment/ 

Transfer 

Name of 
Shareholder  

No. of 
Equity 

Share 

% of Pre 
Offer 

Capital 

Allotted/ 
Acquired/ 

Transferred 

Category of Allottees 
(Promoters/Promoters 

Group/ Director) 

November 25, 
2022 

Binod Prasad 22,08,850 25.00 

Allotment 
(Bonus issue of 

shares) 

Promoter & Director 

Atul Maruti Dumbre 
22,08,850 25.00 

Promoter & Director 

Nileshkumar 
Purshottam Chavhan 

22,08,850 25.00 
Promoter & Director 

Jayesh Jain 22,08,850 25.00 
Promoter Group 

November 30, 
2022 

Binod Prasad (6) negligible Transfer of Shares  Promoter & Director 

Atul Maruti Dumbre 
(6) 

negligible Promoter & Director 

Nileshkumar 
Purshottam Chavhan 

(6) 
negligible Promoter & Director 

Jayesh Jain (6) 
negligible Promoter Group 

November 30, 
2022 

Laxmi Kumari 4 negligible Acquisition of 
Shares 

Promoter Group 

Manali Anilrao 
Pawar 

4 negligible Promoter Group 

Suvidha Atul 
Dumbre 

4 negligible Promoter Group 

Amruta Avinash 
Dere 

4 negligible Promoter Group 

Sakshi Garg 4 negligible Promoter Group 

 
17. None of our Promoters, Promoter Group, our Directors and their relatives has entered into any financing arrangement or 

financed the purchase of the Equity Shares of our Company by any other person during the period of six months immediately 
preceding the date of filing of the Red Herring Prospectus. 
 

18. Details of Promoters’ Contribution Locked-in for Three Years 

 
Pursuant to Regulation 236 and 238 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, an aggregate of 20.00% of the post Offer capital held by 
our Promoters shall be considered as Promoter’s Contribution (“Promoters Contribution”)and shall be locked-in for a period of 
three years from the date of allotment of Equity shares issued pursuant to this Offer. The lock in of Promoter’s Contribution would 
be created as per applicable law and procedure and details of the same shall also be provided to the Stock Exchange before listing 
of the Equity Shares. 
 



63 

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Promoters collectively hold 66,26,550 Equity Shares constituting 75.00% of 
the Post-Issued, subscribed and paid up Equity Share Capital, which are eligible for the Promoters’ contribution. 
 
Our Promoters, Binod Prasad, Atul Maruti Dumbre and Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan have given written consents to include 
17,80,500 Equity Shares (details given below) held and subscribed by them as part of Promoters Contribution constituting 20.15% 
of the post Offer Equity Shares of our Company. Further, they have agreed not to sell or transfer or pledge or otherwise dispose of 
in any manner, the Promoters contribution, for a period of three years from the date of allotment in the Offer.  
 

Date of Allotment/ 

Transfer and made 
fully Paid Up 

No. of 

Equity 
Shares 

locked-in* 

Face Value 

Per Share 
(�) 

Offer/ 

Acquisition/ 
Transfer Price 

(�) 

Nature of transaction Post-Offer 

Shareholding 
% 

Lock in 

Period 

Binod Prasad 

October 20, 2022 5,93,500 10/- Nil 
Bonus Issue in the 

Ratio of 870: 1 
6.72% 3 years 

Atul Maruti Dumbre 

October 20, 2022 5,93,500 10/- Nil 
Bonus Issue in the 

Ratio of 870: 1 
6.72% 3 years 

Nileshkumar Purshottam Chavhan 

October 20, 2022 5,93,500 10/- Nil 
Bonus Issue in the 

Ratio of 870: 1 
6.72% 3 years 

Total 17,80,500    20.15%  

 
The minimum Promoter’s contribution has been brought in to the extent of not less than the specified minimum lot and from 
persons defined as “Promoter” under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. All Equity Shares, which are being locked in are not 
ineligible for computation of Minimum Promoters Contribution as per Regulation 237 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and are 
being locked in for 3 years as per Regulation 238(a) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations i.e. for a period of three years from the date 
of allotment of Equity Shares in this issue.  
 
The entire pre-issue shareholding of the Promoters and Promoter Group, other than the Minimum Promoters contribution which is 
locked in for three years, shall be locked in for a period of one year from the date of allotment in this Offer. 
 
Eligibility of Share for Minimum Promoters Contribution in terms of clauses of Regulation 237(1) of SEBI (ICDR) 

Regulations, 2018 

 

Reg. No. Promoters’ Minimum Contribution Conditions 
Eligibility Status of Equity Shares forming 
part of Promoter’s Contribution 

237(1) (a) (i) Specified securities acquired during the preceding three 
years, if they are acquired for consideration other than 
cash and revaluation of assets or capitalization of 
intangible assets is involved in such transaction 

The minimum Promoter’s contribution does not 
consist of such Equity Shares. Hence Eligible 

237 (1) (a) (ii) Specified securities acquired during the preceding three 
years, resulting from a bonus issue by utilization of 
revaluation reserves or unrealized profits of the issuer or 
from bonus issue against Equity Shares which are 
ineligible for minimum promoters’ contribution 

The minimum Promoter’s contribution does not 
consist of such Equity Shares. Hence Eligible 

237 (1) (b) Specified securities acquired by promoters during the 
preceding one year at a price lower than the price at 
which specified securities are being offered to public in 
the initial public offer 

The minimum Promoter’s contribution does not 
consist of such Equity Shares. Hence Eligible. 

237(1) (c) 
 
 
 
 
 

Specified securities allotted to promoter during the 
preceding one year at a price less than the Offer Price, 
against funds brought in by them during that period, in 
case of an issuer formed by conversion of one or more 
partnership firms, where the partners of the erstwhile 
partnership firms are the promoter of the issuer and there 
is no change in the management: Provided that specified 
securities, allotted to promoter against capital existing in 
such firms for a period of more than one year on a 
continuous basis, shall be eligible 

The minimum Promoter’s contribution does not 
consist of such Equity Shares. Hence Eligible. 

237 (1) (d) Specified securities pledged with any creditor. Our Promoters have not Pledged any shares with 
any creditors Accordingly, the minimum 
Promoter’s contribution does not consist of such 
Equity Shares. Hence Eligible. 
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Details of Promoters’ Contribution Locked-in for One Year 

 
In terms of Regulation 238(b) and 239 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, in addition to the Minimum Promoters contribution 
which is locked in for three years, as specified above, the entire pre-Offer equity share capital constituting 47,26,924 Equity 
Shares shall be locked in for a period of one year from the date of allotment of Equity Shares in this Offer.  
 
In terms of Regulation 241 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the Equity Shares which are subject to lock-in shall carry 
inscription ‘non-transferable’ along with the Ratio of specified non-transferable period mentioned in the face of the security 
certificate. The shares which are in dematerialized form, if any, shall be locked-in by the respective depositories. The details of 
lock-in of the Equity Shares shall also be provided to the Designated Stock Exchange before the listing of the Equity Shares. 
 
Other requirements in respect of lock-in: 

 
1. In terms of Regulation 242 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the locked in Equity Shares held by the Promoters, as 

specified above, can be pledged with any scheduled commercial bank or public financial institution or a systemically 
important non-banking finance company or a housing finance company as collateral security for loan granted by such 
bank or institution provided that the pledge of Equity Shares is one of the terms of the sanction of the loan. Provided that 
securities locked in as minimum promoters contribution may be pledged only if, in addition to fulfilling the above 
requirements, the loan has been granted by such bank or institution, for the purpose of financing one or more of the 
objects of the Offer. 
 

2. In terms of Regulation 243 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the Equity Shares held by persons other than the Promoters 
prior to the Offer may be transferred to any other person holding the Equity Shares which are locked in as per Regulation 
239 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, subject to continuation of the lock-in in the hands of the transferees for the 
remaining period and compliance with the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as 
applicable. 
 

3. Further in terms of Regulation 243 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the specified securities held by the promoters and 
locked-in as per regulation 238 may be transferred to another promoter or any person of the Promoter Group or a new 
promoter or a person in control of the issuer subject to continuation of the lock-in in the hands of the transferees for the 
remaining period and compliance with SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as 
applicable. 
 

19. Neither, we nor our Promoters, Directors and the BRLM to this Issue have entered into any buyback and/ or standby 
arrangements and/ or similar arrangements for the purchase of our Equity Shares from any person. 
 

20. As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, the entire Issued Share, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of our Company 
is fully paid up. Since the entire Offer Price in respect of the issue is payable on application, all the successful applicants will 
be allotted fully paid up Equity Shares. 
 

21. The BRLM i.e. Hem Securities Limited and their associates do not hold any Equity Shares in our Company as on the date of 
filing of  this Red Herring Prospectus. 
 

22. As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, we do not have any Employees Stock Option Scheme/ Employees Stock 
Purchase Scheme and we do not intend to allot any shares to our employees under Employee Stock Option Scheme/ 
Employee Stock Purchase Plan from the proposed Offer. As and when, options are granted to our employees under the 
Employee Stock Option Scheme, our Company shall comply with the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 
2014. 
 

23. We have 10(Ten) shareholders as on the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus. 
 

24. As on the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus, there are no outstanding warrants, options or rights to convert 
debentures, loans or other instruments which would entitle Promoters or any shareholders or any other person any option to 
acquire our Equity Shares after this Initial Public Offer 
 

25. Our Company has not raised any bridge loan against the proceeds of the Offer. 
 

26. As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, none of the shares held by our Promoters/ Promoter Group are subject to any 
pledge. 
 

27. We here by confirm that there will be no further issue of capital whether by way of issue of bonus shares, preferential 
allotment, rights issue or in any other manner during the period commencing from the date of the Red Herring Prospectusuntil 
the Equity Shares offered have been listed or application money unblocked on account of failure of Issue. 
 

28. None of our Equity Shares has been issued out of revaluation reserve created out of revaluation of assets. 
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29. Allocation to all categories shall be made on a proportionate basis subject to valid applications received at or above the Offer 
Price. Under subscription, if any, in any of the categories, would be allowed to be met with spill-over from any of the other 
categories or a combination of categories at the discretion of our Company in consultation with the BRLM and Designated 
Stock Exchange i.e. BSE. Such inter-se spill over, if any, would be affected in accordance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 
 

30. In case of over-subscription in all categories the allocation in the Offer shall be as per the requirements of Regulation 253 of 
SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and its amendments from time to time. 
 

31. The unsubscribed portion if any, after such inter se adjustments among the reserved categories shall be added back to the net 
Offer to the public portion. 
 

32. At any given point of time there shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares, unless otherwise permitted by law.  
 

33. Our Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms as may be specified by BSE, SEBI and other 
regulatory authorities from time to time. 
 

34. There are no Equity Shares against which depository receipts have been issued. 
 

35. Other than the Equity Shares, there is no other class of securities issued by our Company. 
 

36. There are no safety net arrangements for this public issue. 
 

37. As per RBI regulations, OCBs are not allowed to participate in this Offer. 
 

38. Except for the Selling Shareholders, our Promoters and Promoter Group will not participate in this Offer. 
 

39. This Offer is being made through Book Building Method. 
 

40. The Promoters and members of our Promoter Group will not receive any proceeds from the Offer, except to 
the extent of their participation as Selling Shareholders in the Offer for Sale. 
 

41. Our Company has not made any public issue of any kind or class of securities since its incorporation. 
 

42. In terms of Rule 19(2)(b)(i) of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended, (the SCRR) the Offer is being 
made for at least 25% of the post-issue paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company. Further, this Offer is being made in 
terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time to time. 
 

43. No person connected with the Offer shall offer any incentive, whether direct or indirect, in the nature of discount, 
commission, and allowance, or otherwise, whether in cash, kind, services or otherwise, to any Applicant. 
 

44. We shall ensure that transactions in Equity Shares by the Promoters and members of the Promoter Group, if any, between the 
date of filing the Prospectus with the Registrar of companies and the Offer Closing Date are reported to the Stock Exchanges 
within 24 hours of such transactions being completed. 
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OBJECTS OF THE OFFER 

 
The objects of the Offer are to achieve the benefits of listing the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges and the sale of up to 
23,28,000 Equity Shares by the Selling Shareholders in the Offer, aggregating to � [�] lakhs. For details of the Offer, see “The 
Offer” on page 40. For details of Offered Shares from each Selling Shareholder, see “Other Regulatory and Statutory Disclosures” 
on page 191.  
 
Further, the listing of Equity Shares will enhance our Company’s goodwill and provide liquidity to the existing Shareholders. Our 
Company expects that the proposed listing will also provide a public market for the Equity Shares in India. The Selling 
Shareholders will be entitled to the entire proceeds of the Offer after deducting the Offer expenses and relevant taxes thereon. Our 
Company will not receive any proceeds from the Offer. 
 
Offer expenses 
 
The Offer expenses are estimated to be approximately � [�] lakhs. The Offer expenses comprises of, among other things, listing 
fee, underwriting fee, selling commission and brokerage, fee payable to the Book Running Lead Manager, legal counsel, Registrar 
to the Offer, Escrow Bank, processing fee to the SCSBs for processing ASBA Forms submitted by ASBA Bidders procured by the 
Syndicate and submitted to SCSBs, brokerage and selling commission payable to Registered Brokers, RTAs and CDPs, fees 
payable to the Sponsor Banks for Bids made by RIBs using UPI mechanism, printing and stationery expenses, advertising and 
marketing expenses and all other incidental expenses for listing the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges. 
 
Other than the listing fees, which will be solely borne by our Company, all other costs and expenses directly attributable to the 
Offer shall be borne by the Selling Shareholders in proportion to the number of Equity Shares sold by each of them in the Offer. 
 
The details of the Offer Expenses are tabulated below: 
 

Activity Amt. (Rs. in 
Lakhs)  

As a % of 
Estimated 

Offer Expenses  

As a % of 
Offer Size  

 

Book Running Lead Manger Fees [�] [�] [�] 

Fees Payable to Registrar to the Offer [�] [�] [�] 

Fees Payable for Advertising and Publishing Expenses [�] [�] [�] 

Fees Payable to Regulators including Stock Exchanges [�] [�] [�] 

Payment for Printing & Stationery, Postage, etc. [�] [�] [�] 

Fees Payable to Legal Advisors  [�] [�] [�] 

Others (Fees payable for Marketing & distribution expenses, Selling 
Commission, Brokerage, Processing Fees, Underwriting fees and 
Miscellaneous Expenses) 

[�] [�] [�] 

Total [�] [�] [�] 

 
(1) Selling commission payable to the SCSBs on the portion for Retail Individual Bidders. Non-Institutional Investors, 

which are directly procured by the SCSBs, would be as follows 
 

Portion for Retail Individual Applicants* 0.10% of the Amount Allotted* (plus applicable taxes) 

Portion for Non-Institutional 

Applicants* 
0.10% of the Amount Allotted* (plus applicable taxes) 

*Amount allotted is the product of the number of Equity Shares Allotted and the Offer Price. The selling commission payable 

to the SCSBs will be determined on the basis of the bidding terminal ID as captured in the Bid Book of BSE 

 
(2) No uploading/ processing fees shall be payable by our Company to the SCSBs on the applications directly procured by them. 

Processing fees payable to the SCSBs on the portion for Retail Individual Applicants and Non-Institutional Applicants 

which are procured by the members of the Syndicate/ sub-Syndicate/ Registered Broker/ CRTAs/ CDPs and submitted to 

SCSB for blocking, would be as follows: 

 

Portion for Retail Individual 

Applicants 

�10 per valid Bid cum Application Form (plus applicable taxes) 

Portion for Non-Institutional 

Applicants 

�10 per valid Bid cum Application Form (plus applicable taxes) 

 

Notwithstanding anything contained above the total processing fee payable under this clause will not exceed �1 lakh (plus 

applicable taxes) and in case if the total processing fees exceeds �1lakh (plus applicable taxes) then processing fees will be 

paid on pro-rata basis. 

 
(3)  The processing fees for applications made by Retail Individual Applicants using the UPI Mechanism would be as follows: 
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Members of the Syndicate/ RTAs/ 

CDPs (uploading charges) 
�10 per valid application (plus applicable taxes) 

Sponsor Bank - Axis Bank 

Limited 
�7 per valid Bid cum Application Form* (plus applicable taxes) The Sponsor Bank 

shall be responsible for making payments to the third parties such as remitter bank, 

NPCI and such other parties as required in connection with the performance of its 

duties under the SEBI circulars, the Syndicate Agreement and other applicable laws. 

*For each valid application by respective Sponsor Bank 

 

Notwithstanding anything contained above in this clause the total Uploading charges/ Processing fees payable to Members of the 

Syndicate/ RTAs/ CDPs for applications made by RIIs (up to �200,000), Non-Institutional Applicants (for an amount more than 

�200,000 and up to �500,000) using the UPI Mechanism and in case if the total uploading charges/ processing fees exceeds Rs 1 

lakh (plus applicable taxes) then uploading charges/ processing fees using UPI Mechanism will be paid on pro-rata basis.  

 
(4) Selling commission on the portion for Retail Individual Applicants and Non-Institutional Applicants which are procured by 

members of the Syndicate (including their sub-Syndicate Members), Registered Brokers, CRTAs and CDPs or for using 3-in-

1 type accounts- linked online trading, demat & bank account provided by some of the Registered Brokers which are 

Members of the Syndicate (including their Sub-Syndicate Members) would be as follows: 
 

Portion for Retail Individual Applicants 0.10% of the Amount Allotted* (plus applicable taxes) 

Portion for Non-Institutional Applicants 0.10% of the Amount Allotted* (plus applicable taxes) 

*Amount Allotted is the product of the number of Equity Shares Allotted and the Offer Price 

 

Uploading charges payable to Members of the Syndicate (including their sub-Syndicate Members), CRTAs and CDPs on the 

applications made by RIBs using 3-in-1 accounts and Non-Institutional Applicants which are procured by them and submitted to 

SCSB for blocking or using 3-in- 1 accounts, would be as follows: �10 plus applicable taxes, per valid application bid by the 

Syndicate (including their sub-Syndicate Members), CRTAs and CDPs. 

Bidding charges payable to the Registered Brokers, CRTAs/ CDPs on the portion for RIBs and Non-Institutional Applicants which 

are directly procured by the Registered Brokers or CRTAs or CDPs and submitted to SCSB for processing, would be as 

follows: 

 

Portion for Retail Individual Applicants* �10 per valid application (plus applicable taxes) 

Portion for Non-Institutional Applicants* �10 per valid application (plus applicable taxes) 

* Based on valid applications 

 

Notwithstanding anything contained above the total uploading/ bidding charges payable under this clause will not exceed Rs.1 lakh 

(plus applicable taxes) and in case if the total uploading/ bidding charges exceeds Rs 1 lakh (plus applicable taxes) then uploading 

charges will be paid on pro-rata basis. 

 

The Selling Commission payable to the Syndicate/ Sub-Syndicate Members will be determined on the basis of the application 

form number/ series, provided that the application is also bid by the respective Syndicate/ Sub-Syndicate Member. For 

clarification, if a Syndicate ASBA application on the application form number/ series of a Syndicate/ Sub-Syndicate Member, is 

bid by an SCSB, the Selling Commission will be payable to the SCSB and not the Syndicate/ Sub-Syndicate Member. Bidding 

Charges payable to members of the Syndicate (including their sub-Syndicate Members), CRTAs and CDPs on the portion for 

RIBs and Non-Institutional Applicants which are procured by them and submitted to SCSB for blocking, would be as follows: 

�10 plus applicable taxes, per valid application bid by the Syndicate (including their sub-Syndicate Members), CRTAs and CDPs. 

 
The selling commission and bidding charges payable to Registered Brokers the CRTAs and CDPs will be determined on the 

basis of the bidding terminal ID as captured in the Bid Book of BSE. 

  
All such commissions and processing fees set out above shall be paid as per the timelines in terms of the Syndicate Agreement 
and Escrow and Sponsor Bank Agreement. Further, the processing fees for applications made by UPI Applicants using the UPI 
Mechanism may be released to the remitter banks (SCSBs) only after such banks provide a written confirmation on compliance 
with SEBI Circular No: SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2021/570 dated June 2, 2021 read with SEBI Circular No: 
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/2480/1/M dated March 16, 2021. 

 
Monitoring utilization of funds from the Offer 
 
Since the Offer is an offer for sale and our Company will not receive any proceeds from the Offer, our Company is not required to 
appoint a monitoring agency for the Offer. 
 
Other confirmations 

 
Except to the extent of proceeds received pursuant to the sale of the Offered Shares, there is no proposal whereby any portion of 
the Offer Proceeds will be paid to our Promoters, Promoter Group, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel. 
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BASIS FOR OFFER PRICE 

 
Investors should read the following summary with the section titled “Risk Factors”, the details about our Company under the 

section titled “Our Business” and its financial statements under the section titled “Financial Information of the Company” 

beginning on page 24, 84 and 122 respectively of the Red Herring Prospectus. The trading price of the Equity Shares of Our 

Company could decline due to these risks and the investor may lose all or part of his investment. 

 

Price Band/ Offer Price shall be determined by our Company and Selling Shareholders in consultation with the Book Running 
Lead Manager on the basis of the assessment of market demand for the Equity Shares through the Book Building Process and on 
the basis of the qualitative and quantitative factors as described in this section. The face value of the Equity Shares is � 10/- each 
and the Offer Price is [�] times of the face value at the lower end of the Price Band and [�] times of the face value at the upper 
end of the Price Band. 
 

For the purpose of making an informed investment decision, the investors should also refer “Risk Factors”, “Our Business” and 
“Financial Statement as restated” beginning on page 24, 84 and 122 respectively of this Red Herring Prospectus. 
 
QUALITATIVE FACTORS 

 
We believe the following business strengths allow us to successfully compete in the industry: 
 

a) Extensive and diverse portfolio of electronic items and parts along with content rich platform 
b) Strong, diverse and growing customer base 
c) Scalable and reliable technology platform 
d) Experienced Promoters with strong management team having domain knowledge 
e) Consistent track record of profitable growth and strong financial performance  

 
For a detailed discussion on the qualitative factors which form the basis for computing the price, please refer to sections titled 
“Our Business” beginning on page 84 of this Red Herring Prospectus. 
 
QUANTITATIVE FACTORS 

 
The information presented below relating to our Company is based on the Restated Financial Statements. For details, please refer 
section titled “Financial Information of the Company” on page 122 of this Red Herring Prospectus. 
 
Some of the quantitative factors which may form the basis for calculating the Offer Price are as follows: 
 
1. Basic & Diluted Earnings per share (EPS) (Face value of � 10 each): 

 
As per the Restated Financial Statements:- 
 

Sr. No Period Basic & Diluted (�) Weights 

1.  F.Y. ending March 31, 2022 6.81 3 

2.  F.Y. ending March 31, 2021 1.82 2 

3.  F.Y. ending March 31, 2020 0.38 1 

 
Weighted Average 4.07  

 Half year ending September 30, 2022* 3.35  

*Not Annualized 
 
Notes:  

i. The figures disclosed above are based on the Restated Financial Statements of the Company as adjusted with the effect of 

issue of Bonus shares. 

ii. The face value of each Equity Share is Rs.10.00. 

iii. Earnings per Share has been calculated in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 – “Earnings per Share” issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

iv. The above statement should be read with Significant Accounting Policies and the Notes to the Restated Financial 

Statements as appearing in Annexure IV. 

v. Basic Earnings per Share = Net Profit/(Loss) after tax, as restated attributable to equity shareholders / Weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding during the year/ period 

vi. There are no dilutive shares outstanding at the end of the half year ended September 30, 2022 and the Fiscal year ending 

March 31, 2020, March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2022. 
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2. Price Earning (P/E) Ratio in relation to the Price Band of � [�] to � [�] per Equity Share of Face Value of � 10/- each 

fully paid up: 

 

Particulars (P/E) Ratio at 
the Floor Price 

(P/E) Ratio at 
the Cap Price 

P/E ratio based on the Basic & Diluted EPS, as restated for Financial Year 2021-2022 [�] [�] 

P/E ratio based on the Weighted Average EPS, as restated. [�] [�] 

 

Industry Peer Group P/E ratio  
 

There  are  no  listed  companies  in  India,  the  business  portfolio  of  which  is  comparable  with  our business. 
 

3. Average Return on Return on Net worth (RoNW)*  
 

Sr. No Period RoNW (%) Weights 
1 F.Y. ending March 31, 2022 65.93 3 

2 F.Y. ending March 31, 2021 50.96 2 

3 F.Y. ending March 31, 2020 62.74 1 

4 Weighted Average 60.41  

Half year ending September 30, 2022 24.50  

*Restated Profit after tax/Net Worth 

Note: 
i. The RoNW has been computed by dividing net profit after tax (excluding exceptional items) with restated Net worth as at the end 

of the year/period. 

 

4. Net Asset Value (NAV) per Equity Share: 

 

Sr. No. NAV per Equity Share* (Amt. in Rs.) 

1.  As at March 31, 2022 10.32 

2.  As at March 31, 2021 3.56 

3.  As at March 31, 2020 0.60 

4.  As at September 30, 2022 13.67 

5.  NAV per Equity Share after the Issue 13.67 

6.  Offer Price [�] 

*The above NAV has been calculated giving the effect of Bonus Shares 

Note: - 
i. The NAV per Equity Share has been computed by dividing restated networth with weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding at the end of the year/period. 

 

5. Comparison of Accounting Ratios with Industry Peers: 

 
There  are  no  listed  companies  in  India,  the  business  portfolio  of  which  is  comparable  with  our business, accordingly it is 
not possible to provide an industry comparison in relation to our company. 
 
6. Key Performance Indicators 
 
The KPIs disclosed below have been used historically by our Company to understand and analyze the business performance, 
which in result, help us in analyzing the growth of our Company. 
 
The KPIs disclosed below have been approved by a resolution of our Audit Committee dated January 21, 2023 and the members 
of the Audit Committee have verified the details of all KPIs pertaining to our Company. Further, the members of the Audit 
Committee have confirmed that there are no KPIs pertaining to our Company that have been disclosed to any investors at any 
point of time during the three years period prior to the date of filing of this DRHP. The KPIs herein have been certified by Kishor 
Gujar & Assicoates, Chartered Accountants, by their certificate dated January 11, 2023. 
 
The KPIs of our Company have been disclosed in the sections titled “Our Business” and “Management’s Discussion and 

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Key Performance Indicators” on  pages 84 and 179, respectively. 
We have described and defined the KPIs, as applicable, in “Definitions and Abbreviations” on page 1. 
 
Our Company confirms that it shall continue to disclose all the KPIs included in this section on a periodic basis, at least once in a 
year (or any lesser period as determined by the Board of our Company), for a duration of one year after the date of listing of the 
Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange or for such other duration as may be required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Further, 
the ongoing KPIs will continue to be certified by a member of an expert body as required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 
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Key Performance Indicators of our Company 
                        (Rs. in lakhs except % and ratio) 

Key Performance Indicator Six months period ended 

September 30, 2022* 
FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20 

Revenue from operations(1) 3,578.12 5,551.47 2,711.92 1,621.81 

EBITDA(2) 437.39 873.14 273.57 127.83 

EBITDA Margin(3) 12.22% 15.73% 10.09% 7.88% 

PAT(4) 295.85 601.27 158.31 32.97 

PAT Margin(5) 8.27% 10.83% 5.84% 2.03% 

RoE(%)(6) 27.91% 98.36% 87.17% 87.08% 

RoCE (%)(7) 13.79% 39.68% 23.96% 6.79% 

Number of Orders(8) 1,00,859 2,05,550 1,24,976 82,007 

Number of Customers(9) 50,662 83,752 59,564 40,433 

* Not Annualized 
 
Notes: 
(1)Revenue from operations is the total revenue generated by our Company from the sale of products. 
(2)EBITDA is calculated as Profit before tax + Depreciation + Interest Expenses - Other Income  
(3)EBITDA Margin’ is calculated as EBITDA divided by Revenue from Operations 
(4)PAT is calculated as Profit before tax – Tax Expenses 
(5)PAT Margin is calculated as PAT for the period/year divided by Revenue from Operations. 
(6)Return on Equity is ratio of Profit after Tax and Average Shareholder Equity 
(7)Return on Capital Employed is calculated as EBIT divided by capital employed, which is defined as shareholders’ equity plus 

total borrowings {current & non-current}. 
(8)Number of orders indicate the count of sales orders which we have received from the customers for the year/period. 
(9)Number of customers indicate the count of customers who contributed to revenue from operations for the year/period.  

 
Explanation for KPI metrics 

 

KPI Explanations 

Revenue from Operations Revenue from Operations is used by our management to track the revenue profile of the business 
and in turn helps to assess the overall financial performance of our Company and volume of our 
business 

EBITDA EBITDA provides information regarding the operational efficiency of the business 

EBITDA Margin (%) EBITDA Margin (%) is an indicator of the operational profitability and financial performance of our 
business 

PAT Profit after tax provides information regarding the overall profitability of the business. 

PAT Margin (%) PAT Margin (%) is an indicator of the overall profitability and financial performance of our 
business. 

RoE(%) RoE provides how efficiently our Company generates profits from shareholders’funds. 

RoCE (%) ROCE provides how efficiently our Company generates earnings from the capital employed in the 
business. 

Number of Orders Number of orders indicate the count of sales orders which we have received from the customers for 
the year/period 

Number of Customers Number of customers indicate the count of customers who contributed to revenue from operations 
for the year/period 

 
7. Set forth below are the details of comparison of key performance of indicators with our listed industry peers: 

 
There are no listed companies in India that engage in a business similar to that of our Company. Accordingly, it is not possible to 
provide a comparison of key performance indicators of industry with our Company. 
 
8. Weighted average cost of acquisition 

 
a) The price per share of our Company based on the primary/ new issue of shares (equity / convertible securities) 

 
There has been no issuance of Equity Shares, other than Equity Shares issued pursuant to a bonus issue on November 25, 
2022 during the 18 months preceding the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, where such issuance is equal to or more 
than 5% of the fully diluted paid-up share capital of the Company(calculated based on the pre-issue capital before such 
transaction(s) and excluding employee stock options granted but not vested), in a single transaction or multiple 
transactions combined together over a span of 30 days. 
 

b) The price per share of our Company based on the secondary sale / acquisition of shares (equity shares) 
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There have been no secondary sale / acquisitions of Equity Shares, where the promoters, members of the promoter group 
or shareholder(s) having the right to nominate director(s) in the board of directors of the Company are a party to the 
transaction (excluding gifts), during the 18 months preceding the date of this certificate, where either acquisition or sale 
is equal to or more than 5% of the fully diluted paid up share capital of the Company (calculated based on the pre-issue 
capital before such transaction/s and excluding employee stock options granted but not vested), in a single transaction or 
multiple transactions combined together over a span of rolling 30 days. 

 
c) Since there are no such transactions to report to under (a) and (b) therefore, information based on last 5 primary or 

secondary transactions (secondary transactions where Promoter / Promoter Group entities or shareholder(s) having the 
right to nominate director(s) in the Board of our Company, are a party to the transaction), not older than 3 years prior to 
the date of this certificate irrespective of the size of transactions, is as below: 

 
Primary Transactions: 

 
Except as disclosed below, there have been no primary transactions in the last three years preceding the date of this Red Herring 
Prospectus: 
 

Date of 

Allotment 

No. of equity 

shares 

allotted 

Face 

value per 

equity 

share (�) 

Issue 

price per 

equity 

share (�) 

Nature of 

allotment 

Nature of 

consideration 

Total 

Consideration 

(in � lakhs) 

March 05, 
2021 

144 10/- 69303.35 Rights Issue 
Cash 99.80 

November 
25, 2022 

88,25,280 10 Nil Bonus Issue NA Nil 

 
Secondary Transactions: 
 
Except as disclosed below, there have been no secondary transactions by the Promoters, members of the Promoter Group or 
shareholder(s) having the right to nominate director(s) in the Board of Directors of our Company are a party to the transaction, in 
the last three years preceding the date of this Red Herring Prospectus: 
 
 

Date of 

transfer 

Name of 

transferor 

Name of 

transferee 

No. of 

Equity 

shares 

Face 

value 

of 

Equity 
Shares 

Price 

Per 

Equity 

Share 

Nature of 

transaction 

Nature of 

consideration 

Total 

Consider

ation 

(in �) 

November 
30, 2022 

Binod Prasad Laxmi Kumari 4 10 15 Sale Cash 60 

Amruta Avinash 
Dere 

1 10 15 Sale Cash 15 

Prashant 
Deshpande 

1 10 15 Sale Cash 15 

November 
30, 2022 

Atul Maruti 
Dumbre 

Suvidha Atul 
Dumbre 

4 10 15 Sale Cash 60 

Amruta Avinash 
Dere 

1 10 15 Sale Cash 15 

Prashant 
Deshpande 

1 10 15 Sale Cash 15 

November 
30, 2022 

Nileshkumar 
Purshottam 
Chavhan 

Manali Anilrao 
Panwar 

4 10 15 Sale Cash 60 

Amruta Avinash 
Dere 

1 10 15 Sale Cash 15 

Prashant 
Deshpande 

1 10 15 Sale Cash 15 

   Weighted average cost of acquisition and Offer Price 

 Types of transactions 
Weighted average cost of 

acquisition (� per Equity Shares) 
Floor price* (i.e. 

� [�]) 
Cap price* 

(i.e. � [�]) 

Weighted average cost of acquisition of primary / 
new issue as per paragraph 8(a) above. 

NA^ NA^ NA^ 

Weighted average cost of acquisition for secondary 
sale / acquisition as per paragraph 8(b) above. 

15 [�] [�] 

Weighted average cost of acquisition of primary 1.13 [�] [�] 
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issuances / secondary transactions as per paragraph 
8(c) above 

Note: 

^There were no primary / new issue of shares (equity/ convertible securities) as mentioned in paragraph 8(a) above other 

than Equity Shares issued pursuant to a bonus issue on November 25, 2022, in last 18 months and three years prior to the 

date of this Red Herring Prospectus. 

 
Macfos Limited is a Book Built Issue and the price band for the same shall be published 2 working days before opening of 
the Issue in all editions of the Business Standard, an English national newspaper, all editions of Business Standard, a Hindi 
national newspaper and Pune edition of Rashtrasanchar, a  Marathi daily  newspaper (Marathi being  the  regional  language  
of Maharashtra,  where  our  Registered  Office  is located),  each with wide circulation.   
 
The Price Band/ Floor Price/ Offer Price shall be determined by our Company in consultation with the BRLM and will be 
justified by us in consultation with the BRLM on the basis of the above information. Investors should read the above 
mentioned information along with “Our Business”, “Risk Factors” and “Restated Financial Statements” on pages 84, 24 
and 122 respectively, to have a more informed view. The trading price of the Equity Shares of our Company could decline 
due to the factors mentioned in “Risk Factors” or any other factors that may arise in the future and you may lose all or part 
of your investments. 
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STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS 

 

 
To, 

 
The Board of Directors 
Macfos Limited 

Sumant Building, Dynamic Logistics Trade Park,  

Survey No. 78/1, Dighi, Bhosari Alandi Road,  

Pune - 411015, 

Maharashtra 

 
Dear Sirs, 
 
Sub: Statement of Tax Benefits (‘The Statement’) available to Macfos Limited (“The Company”) and its shareholders 

under the Direct and Indirect Tax Laws in India 
 
We hereby report that the enclosed annexure prepared by the management of Macfos Limited, states the special tax benefits 
available to the Company and the shareholders of the Company under the Income-Tax Act, 1961, the Central Goods and Services 
Tax Act, 2017, the Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, the Union Territory Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, 
respective State Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 (collectively the “GST Act”) presently in force in India. Several of these 
benefits are dependent on the Company or its shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant provisions of the 
Act. Hence, the ability of the Company or its shareholders to derive the tax benefits is dependent upon fulfilling such conditions 
which, based on business imperatives which the Company may face in the future, the Company may or may not choose to fulfill. 
 
The benefits discussed in the enclosed Annexure cover only special tax benefits available to the Company and do not cover any 
general tax benefits available to the Company. Further, the preparation of enclosed statement and the contents stated therein is the 
responsibility of the Company’s management. We are informed that, this Statement is only intended to provide general 
information to the investors and is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the 
individual nature of the tax consequences and the changing tax laws, each investor is advised to consult his or her own tax 
consultant with respect to the specific tax implications arising out of their participation in the proposed initial public offering of 
Equity shares (“the Issue”) by the Company.  
 
We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to whether:  
 

a) The Company or its shareholders will continue to obtain these benefits in future; or 
b) The conditions prescribed for availing the benefits have been/would be met. 

 
The contents of the enclosed statement are based on information, explanations and representations obtained from the Company 
and on the basis of our understanding of the business activities and operations of the Company.  
 
Our views are based on facts and assumptions indicated to us and the existing provisions of tax law and its interpretations, which 
are subject to change or modification from time to time by subsequent legislative, regulatory, administrative, or judicial decisions. 
Any such changes, which could also be retrospective, could have an effect on the validity of our views stated herein.  
 
We assume no obligation to update this statement on any events subsequent to its issue, which may have a material effect on the 
discussions herein. This report including enclosed annexure are intended solely for your information and for the inclusion in the 
Offer document or any other issue related material in connection with the proposed initial public offer of the Company and is not 
to be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose without our prior written consent. 
 
 

For Kishor Gujar & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. - 116747W 

 

Sd/- 

 

CA Sangita V Kumbhar (Partner) 

Membership No.:- 156238 

Place:-Pimpri, Pune:- 411018 

Date.:11th January, 2023 

CERT No.: 220/2022-23 
UDIN:23156238BGWICY2785 
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ANNEXURE TO THE STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS  
 

The information provided below sets out the special tax benefits available to the Company and the Equity Shareholders under the 

Income Tax Act, 1961 presently in force in India. It is not exhaustive or comprehensive and is not intended to be a substitute for 

professional advice. Investors are advised to consult their own tax consultant with respect to the tax implications of an investment 

in Equity Shares particularly in view of the fact that certain recently enacted legislation may not have a direct legal precedent or 

may have a different interpretation on the benefits, which an investor can avail.  

 

A. SPECIAL DIRECT AND INDIRECT TAX BENEFITS TO THE COMPANY 
The Company is not entitled to any special tax benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961 and GST Act. 
 

B. SPECIAL DIRECT AND INDIRECT TAX BENEFITS TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 
The Shareholders of the Company are not entitled to any special tax benefits underthe Income Tax Act, 1961 and GST 
Act. 

 
Notes: 
 
1. For the purpose of reporting here, we have not considered the general tax benefits available to the company or shareholders. 

 
2. The above statement covers only certain relevant direct tax law benefits and indirect tax law benefits or benefit. 
 
3. No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our views are based on 

the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to changes from time to time. We do not assume 
responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes. We shall not be liable to any claims, liabilities or expenses 
relating to this assignment except to the extent of fees relating to this assignment, as finally judicially determined to have 
resulted primarily from bad faith or intentional misconduct. We will not be liable to any other person in respect of this 
statement. 

 

4. A new Section 115BAA has been inserted by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019 (‘the Amendment Act, 2019’) with 
effect from Financial Year 2019-20 granting an option to domestic companies to compute corporate tax at a reduced rate of 
25.168% (22% plus surcharge of 10% and cess of 4%), providedsuch companies do not avail specified exemptions/ 
incentives.  The option under section 115BAA of the Act once exercised cannot be subsequently withdrawn for any future 
financial year. The Amendment Act, 2019 further provides that domestic companies availing such option will not be required 
to pay Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) under Section 115JB. The CBDT has further issued Circular 29/2019 dated October 
02, 2019 clarifying that since the MAT provisions under Section 115JB itself would not apply where a domestic company 
exercises option of lower tax rate under Section 115BAA, MAT credit would not be available. 

 

In such a case, the Company is not allowed to claim any of the following deductions/ exemptions under the Act:  

• Deduction under the provisions of Section 10AA. 

• Deduction under clause (iia) of sub- section (1) of Section 32 (additional depreciation). 

• Deduction under section 32AD or Section 33AB or Section 33ABA 

• Deduction under section 35AD or Section 35CCC 

• Deduction under section 80G 
 

Lower corporate tax rate under Section 115BAA of the Act and Minimum Alternate Tax ('MAT’) credit under section 115JAA of 

the Act which are in general available and hence may not be treated as special tax benefits. 

The Company has evaluated and decidedto exercise the option permitted under Section 115BAA of the Act for the purpose of 
computing its income-tax liability from the Financial Year 2019-20 onwards. 
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SECTION V – ABOUT THE COMPANY 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 

The information in this section has been extracted from various websites and publicly available documents from various industry 

sources. The data may have been re-classified by us for the purpose of presentation. Neither we nor any other person connected 

with the issue has independently verified the information provided in this section. Industry sources and publications, referred to in 

this section, generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources generally believed to be 

reliable but their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured, 

and, accordingly, investment decisions should not be based on such information. 

Electronics Industry in India 

The Indian electronics system design and manufacturing (ESDM) sector is one of the fastest growing sectors in the economy and 
is witnessing a strong expansion in the country. The ESDM market in India is well known internationally for its potential for 
consumption and has experienced constant growth. 
 
The ESDM market in India is well known internationally for its potential for consumption and has experienced constant growth. 
Indian manufacturers are attracting the attention of multinational corporations due to shifting global landscapes in electronics 
design and manufacturing capabilities, as well as cost structures. Companies from all over the world are striving to develop local 
capacities in India not only to serve the domestic market but also to cater to international markets. 
 
The Government of India attributes high priority to electronics hardware manufacturing, as it is one of the crucial pillars of Make 
in India, Digital India and Start-up India programmes. 
 
The Electronics System Design & Manufacturing (ESDM) sector plays a vital role in the government’s goal of generating US$ 1 
trillion of economic value from the digital economy by 2025. With various government initiatives aiming to boost domestic 
manufacturing, India has already started witnessing initial movement with increased production and assembly activities across 
products such as mobile phones and other consumer electronics. 

 

 

Electronics market in India 

 

 

 

 

Overview of Electronics Market in India 

 

� The electronics market has grown at a CAGR of 14% from 2016-19 and is expected to accelerate at a CAGR of 16.6% in 
2020-25, with the total demand likely to account for US$ 540 in FY25.  
 

� In FY2021-22, imports of electronics goods stood at US$ 73.3 billion, whereas exports stood at US$ 15.67 billion. 
Imports of electronics goods stood at US$ 32,654.14 million from April-August 2022. 

 

� According to the IESA (India Electronics & Semiconductor Association), more than 90% semiconductor companies 
globally have their R&D centres in India. The semiconductor R&D generates about US$ 2.5 billion in revenue and 6 lakh 
jobs in India.  
 

� PLI scheme for large scale electronics manufacturing launched by Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology 
(MeitY) in April 2020 has been extended from existing five years band (FY21-FY25) to six years (FY21-FY26). 
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� As per Union Budget 2022-23, the Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology (MeitY) has been allocated Rs. 
14,300 crore (US$ 1.85 billion). In the allocated budget, revenue expenditure allocation is Rs. 13,911.99 crore (US$ 1.8 
billion) and capital expenditure allocation is Rs. 388.01 crore (US$ 50.4 million).  
 

� The Indian electronics manufacturing industry is projected to reach US$ 520 billion by 2025.  
 

� The key government initiatives such as ‘Make in India’ and ‘Digital India’ improved the country’s EoDB. For 2022-23, 
the total budget allocation towards the ‘Digital India’ programme is Rs. 10,676 crore (US$ 1.38 billion).  
 

� India has been one of the largest consumers of electronic products specifically in Asia-Pacific due to factors such as 
rising per capita disposable incomes and consumption in the past decade.  
 

� The ESDM sector is likely to generate US$ 100-130 billion in economic value by 2025.  
 

� In March 2022, Reliance announced that it would invest US$ 220 million in a joint venture with Sanmina Corp, a US- 
listed company for making electronic products in the Asian countries. 
 

� The Tata Group announced plans to enter the semiconductor manufacturing business as of August 2021—seeking a 
proportion of the US$ 1 trillion high-tech electronics manufacturing sector. 
 

� The Electronics System Design & Manufacturing (ESDM) market in India is anticipated to increase at a CAGR of 16.1% 
between 2019 and 2025, owing to strong demand, supportive government policies and increased digitalisation. 
 

� The ESDM sector plays a key role in the government’s goal of generating US$ 1 trillion of economic value from the 
digital economy by 2025.  
 

� The Government of India attributes high priority to electronics hardware manufacturing as it is an important pillar of 
Make in India, Digital India and Start-up India programmes. 
 

� In September 2021, the Indian government started working on policy roadmap to create champions in the design of 
electronic systems and semiconductors in India. The government has started working on chip manufacturing in India and 
is in discussion with Taiwan to bring a US$ 7.5 billion fab unit in India. 
 

� Exports of electronic goods stood at US$ 8,287.75 million from April-August 2022.  
 

 

Electronics market in India 

 

 

 
 

(Source - https://www.ibef.org/industry/electronics-system-design-manufacturing-esdm ) 

ADVANTAGE INDIA 

 

Robust Demand 
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• One of the largest consumers of electronic products in the Asia-Pacific region 
 

• Third largest start-up hub coupled with strong research & development (R&D) ecosystem. 
 

• Will be the fifth-largest consumers of electronic products by 2025. 
 

• Bengaluru has been ranked among the world's top 50 start-up cities in 2021. 
 

Competitive Advantage 

 

• Addressable market for domestic OEMs is projected to be >Rs. 10 lakh crore (US$ USD 131.99 billion) by 2025. 
 

• The Indian government's National Policy on Electronics (NPE 2019) aims to facilitate a turnover of US$ 400 billion in 
domestic manufacturing by 2025. 

 

Policy Support 

 

• The production-linked incentive (PLI) schemes will provide companies opportunities to establish manufacturing plants in 
India.  
 

• 100% FDI is allowed under the automatic route. In case of electronics items for defence, FDI up to 49% is allowed under 
automatic route and beyond 49%, government approval is required.  
 

• The electronics sector is expected to nearly double in contribution to the GDP in the next few years, owing to increased 
support from the government to domestic manufacturing.  
 

• Under the PLI scheme for IT Hardware, the approved enterprises are estimated to manufacture equipment worth >US$ 
21.62 billion over the next four years. Of the total production, foreign companies have suggested production worth US$ 
11.38 billion, whereas domestic enterprises have planned a production of US$10.20 billion. 

 

Increasing Investments 

 

• The government has set a target to get ~Rs. 18,000 crore (US$ 2.4 billion) investments in the electronics manufacturing 
segment by 2021-22. 
 

• New schemes, as a part of the National Policy on Electronics (NPE) 2019, outlay to spend ~US$ 6.7 billion in form of 
incentives. 
 

• Intel has invested over US$ 7 billion in design and R&D facilities in the country to date. 

 

OVERVIEW OF ELECTRONICS SYSTEM DESIGN & MANUFACTURING (ESDM) MARKET IN INDIA 

 

� The Electronics System Design & Manufacturing (ESDM) is broadly segregated into—Electronics System and 
Electronics Design.  
 

� With a spike in demand for electronic products, the ESDM sector in India is predicted to reach US$ 220 billion by 2025, 
rising at a 16.1% CAGR between 2019 and 2025.  
 

� To support the ESDM sector and its growth trajectory, the Government of India (GoI) made electronics production an 
important pillar of key initiatives such as Make in India, Digital India and Start-up India.  
 

� The ESDM sector plays a vital role in the government’s goal of generating US$ 1 trillion of economic value from digital 
economy by 2025. 
 

� Electronics system market is expected to witness 2.3x demand compared to FY19 to reach US$ 160 billion by FY25. 
 

� Electronics design segment, growing at 20.1%, accounted for 22% of ESDM market size in FY19; it is anticipated to be 
27% of the ESDM market size in FY25. 
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ESDM Market Demand    Segmentation of ESDM Market 

 

   

 

(Source - https://www.ibef.org/industry/electronics-system-design-manufacturing-esdm ) 

GROWTH DRIVERS 

 

1. POLICIES-  
i) Policy support to promote electronics manufacturing.  

 

ii) Initiatives such as ‘Make in India’ and ‘Digital India’. 
 

iii) Skill development initiatives.  
 

iv) The government notified 3 Schemes (PLI):-Production Linked Incentive(PLI) Scheme; Scheme for Promotion of 
Manufacturing of Electronic Components and Semiconductors (SPECS); and Modified Electronics Manufacturing 
Clusters Scheme (EMC 2.0). 
 

2. DEMAND-SIDE DRIVERS – 
i) Large consumer base.  

 

ii) Rollout of 5G, and industrial use of Internet of Things (IoT) technology. 
 

3. INVESTMENT- 
i) FDI inflows in the Electronics and Electrical Equipments reached US$ 14.28 billion between April 2000- March 

2022. 
 

ii) Third-largest start-up ecosystem.  
 

iii) Robust research & development (R&D) ecosystem. 
 

 

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES AND POLICY SUPPORT 

 

New schemes to promote electronics manufacturing 

 

• In April 2020, the Indian government approved three key schemes in order to position India as a global hub for 
Electronics System Design and Manufacturing (ESDM). This move is anticipated to attract minimum investments worth 
US$ 6 billion into the country. The initiative includes Production Linked Incentive Scheme (PLI), Scheme for Promotion 
of Manufacturing of Electronic Components and Semiconductors (SPECS) and Modified Electronics Manufacturing 
Clusters Scheme (EMC 2.0). 
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• Of these, Production Linked Incentive Scheme (PLI), one of the biggest incentive, is aimed at boosting domestic 
manufacturing of mobile phones and their components, including Assembly, Testing, Marking and Packaging (ATMP) 
units. 
 

• PLI package of ~ US$ 5.7 billion (Rs. 420 billion) will be extended as an incentive of 4-6% on incremental sales (of 
locally manufactured goods) for a period of five years. 
 

• This is in line with transforming India into a manufacturing hub of electronics and components, at par with established 
and more diversified countries such as China and Vietnam. 
 

• In December 2020, the Government of India issued expression of interest (EoI) to set up or expand the existing 
semiconductor wafer/ device fabrication (FAB) facilities in the country or acquire semiconductor FABs overseas.  
 

• As per Union Budget 2022-23, the Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology (MeitY) has been allocated Rs. 
14,300 crore (US$ 1.85 billion). In the allocated budget, revenue expenditure allocation is Rs. 13,911.99 crore (US$ 1.8 
billion) and capital expenditure allocation is Rs. 388.01 crore (US$ 50.4 million).  
 

•  Ministry of Electronics & Information Technology (MeitY) has announced “Scheme for Promotion of Semiconductor 
Eco-System” in India with a massive outlay of Rs. 76,000 crore (US$ 9.48 billion) in 2022.  
 

• Under the production-linked incentive (PLI) scheme for IT Hardware Products, the Ministry of Electronics and 
Information Technology has approved 14 qualified applicants. To manufacture these products in India, the government 
will offer incentives of US$ 983.76 million over the next four years. In this duration, production worth US$ 21.62 billion 
and exports of US$ 8.06 billion are expected. 

INVESTMENTS/ DEVELOPMENTS 

 
Some of the investments/ developments in the Electronics System Design & Manufacturing (ESDM) sector in the recent past are 
as follows: 
 

• FDI inflows in the Electronics and Electrical Equipment reached US$ 14.76 billion betweenApril 2000-June 2022. 
 

• Exports of electronic goods stood at US$ 2,009.07 million in September 2022. 
 

• Imports of electronics goods stood at US$ 7,142.3 million in September 2022. 
 

• In November 2022, Voltas entered into a technology license agreement with Denmark’s Vest frost Solutions to develop, 
manufacture, sell and service medical refrigeration and vaccine storage equipment including ice lined refrigerators, 
vaccine freezers and ultra-low temperature freezers to the India market. 
 

• Voltas announced plans of Rs. 400 crore (US$ 50.10 million) capex under PLI scheme to manufacture components for 
white goods in May 2022. 
 

• In March 2022, Reliance announced that it would invest US$ 220 million in a joint venture with Sanmina Corp, a US- 
listed company for making electronic products in the Asian countries. 
 

• According to sources, Apple Inc. in 2021 manufactures 70% of mobile phones sold in India, a sharp increase from 30% 
recorded two years ago. This is a significant push towards the “Make in India” initiative, following the government's 
Production-linked Incentive (PLI) plan, which began in FY21. 
 

• In September 2021, tech giant Lenovo announced plans to ramp up manufacturing capabilities in India across various 
product categories, such as PCs, notebooks and smartphones, due to rising consumer demand. However, details of the 
investment were not disclosed. 
 

• In September 2021, PG Electroplast, a contract manufacturer of electronic goods, announced that it had applied for a PLI 
scheme and pledged to invest Rs. 300 crore (US$ 40.47 million) towards the production of air conditioner components. 
 

• Intel has invested over US$ 7 billion in design and R&D facilities in the country to date. 
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• As of March 03, 2021, 19 companies have filed for the production-linked incentive (PLI) scheme for IT Hardware. The 
scheme was open for applications until April 30, 2021; its incentives will be available from April 01, 2021. Over the next 
four years, the scheme is expected to lead to total production of ~Rs. 160,000 crore (US$ 21.88 billion). Of the total 
production, IT hardware companies have proposed production of >Rs. 135,000 crore (US$ 18.46 billion); and domestic 
companies have proposed production of >Rs. 25,000 crore (US$ 3.42 billion). 
 

• The government has set a target to get ~Rs. 18,000 crore (US$ 2.4 billion) investments in the electronics manufacturing 
segment by 2021-22. 
 

• On February 16, 2021, Amazon announced that it will commence manufacturing of electronics products from India with 
Cloud Network Technology, a subsidiary of Foxconn in Chennai, later in the year. The device manufacturing programme 
will be able to produce ‘Fire TV Stick’ devices in large quantities every year, catering to demands of customers in India. 

 
(Source - https://www.ibef.org/industry/electronics-system-design-manufacturing-esdm ) 

OVERVIEW OF E-COMMERCE INDUSTRY 

 
In recent years India has experienced a boom in internet and smartphone penetration. The number of internet connections in 2021 
increased significantly to 830 million, driven by the ‘Digital India’ programme. Out of the total internet connections, ~55% of 
connections were in urban areas, of which 97% of connections were wireless. The smartphone base has also increased 
significantly and is expected to reach 1 billion by 2026. This has helped India’s digital sector and it is expected to reach US$ 1 
trillion by 2030. This rapid rise in internet users and smartphone penetration coupled with rising incomes has assisted the growth 
of India’s e-commerce sector. India’s e-commerce sector has transformed the way business is done in India and has opened up 
various segments of commerce ranging from business-to-business (B2B), direct-to-consumer (D2C), consumer-to-consumer 
(C2C) and consumer-to-business (C2B). Major segments such as D2C and B2B have experienced immense growth in recent 
years. India’s D2C market is expected to reach US$ 60 billion by FY27. The overall e-commerce market is also expected to reach 
US$ 350 billion by 2030, and will experience 21.5% growth in 2022 and reach US$ 74.8 billion. 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

• India e-commerce will reach US$ 99 billion by 2024, growing at a 27% CAGR over 2019-24, with grocery and 
fashion/apparel likely to be the key drivers of incremental growth. 
 

• In 2022, the Indian ecommerce market is predicted to increase by 21.5%, reaching US$ 74.8 billion. 
 

• India’s e-commerce market is expected to reach US$ 350 billion by2030, with grocery and fashion/apparel likely to be its key 
growth drivers. 
 

• For the 2021 festive season, Indian e-commerce platforms generated sales worth US$ 9.2 billion gross GMV (Gross 
Merchandise Value). 
 

• E-commerce sales is expected to increase at a CAGR of 18.2%between 2021-2025 to reach Rs 8.8 trillion (US$120.1 billion). 
 

• Online penetration of retail is expected to reach 10.7% by 2024. 
 

• India had the third-largest online shopper base of 150 million inFY21, which is expected to be 350 million in FY26. 
 

• India’s digital sector is expected to increase multi-fold and reach US$ 1 trillion by 2030. 
 

• Through its ‘Digital India’ campaign, the Government of India is aiming to create a trillion-dollar online economy by 2025. 
 

• The Indian online grocery market is estimated to reach US$ 26.93billion in 2027 from US$ 3.95 billion in FY21, expanding 
at a CAGR of 33%. 
 

• With a turnover of $50 billion in 2020, India became the eighth- largest market for e-commerce, trailing France and a position 
ahead of Canada. 

 

INVESTMENTS/DEVELOPMENTS 
 
Some of the major developments in the Indian e-commerce sector are as follows: 

 

• In June 2022, Amazon India signed an MoU with Manipur Handloom & Handicrafts Development Corporation Limited 
(MHHDCL), a Government of Manipur Enterprise to support the growth of artisans and weavers across the state. 



81 

• India’s eCommerce sector received US$ 15 billion of PE/VC investments in 2021 which is a 5.4 times increase year on year. 
This is the highest investment value received by any sector ever in India. 

• In February 2022 Xpressbees a logistics ecommerce platform become a unicorn valued at US$ 1.2 billion in 2022. The firm 
raised US$ 300 million in its Series F funding. 

• In February 2022, Amazon India launched One district One product (ODOP) bazaar on its platform to support MSMEs. 

• In February 2022, Flipkart launched the “sell back program” to enable trade in smartphones. 

• In January 2022, Walmart invites Indian sellers to join its US market place with an aim of exporting US$ 10 billion from 
India each year by 2027. 

• In January 2022, Flipkart has announced expansion in its grocery services and will offer services to 1,800 Indian cities. 

• In November 2021, XPDEL US- based ecommerce announced expansion in India. 

• In September 2021, CARS24, India's leading used car e-commerce platform, has raised US$ 450 million in funding, 
comprising a US$ 340 million Series F equity round and US$ 110 million in debt from various financial institutions. 

• In September 2021, Amazon launched Prime Video Channels in India. Prime Video Channels will give Prime members a 
seamless experience and access to a variety of popular video streaming services. 

• In September 2021, Bikayi, a mobile commerce enabler, raised US$ 10.8 million in a Series A funding round, led by Sequoia 
Capital India. 

• Flipkart, India's e-commerce powerhouse, announced in July 2021 that it has raised US$ 3.6 billion in new funding from 
various sources including sovereign funds, private equities and Walmart (parent company). 

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES 

 
Since 2014, the Government of India has announced various initiatives, namely Digital India, Make in India, Start-up India, Skill 
India and Innovation Fund. The timely and effective implementation of such programs will likely support growth of E-commerce 
in the country. Some of the major initiatives taken by the Government to promote E-commerce in India are as follows: 

• As of November 2022, the GeM portal has served 12.28 million orders worth Rs. 334,933 crores (US$ 40.97 billion) from 
5.44 million registered sellers and service providers for 62,247 buyer organisations. 
 

• In a bid to systematise the onboarding process of retailers on e-commerce platforms, the Department for Promotion of 
Industry and Internal Trade (DPIIT) is reportedly planning to utilise the Open Network for Digital Commerce (ONDC) to set 
protocols for cataloguing, vendor discovery and price discovery. The department aims to provide equal opportunities to all 
marketplace players to make optimum use of the e-commerce ecosystem in the larger interest of the country and its citizen. 
 

• National Retail Policy: The government had identified five areas in its proposed national retail policy—ease of doing 
business, rationalisation of the licence process, digitisation of retail, focus on reforms and an open network for digital 
commerce—stating that offline retail and e-commerce need to be administered in an integral manner. 
 

• The Consumer Protection (e-commerce) Rules 2020 notified by the Consumer Affairs Ministry in July directed e-commerce 
companies to display the country of origin alongside the product listings. In addition, the companies will also have to reveal 
parameters that go behind determining product listings on their platforms. 
 

• Government e-Marketplace (GeM) signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with Union Bank of India to facilitate a 
cashless, paperless and transparent payment system for an array of services in October 2019. 
 

• Under the Digital India movement, Government launched various initiatives like Umang, Start-up India Portal, Bharat 
Interface for Money (BHIM) etc. to boost digitisation. 
 

• In October 2020, Minister of Commerce and Industry, Mr. Piyush Goyal invited start-ups to register at public procurement 
portal, GeM, and offer goods and services to government organisations and PSUs. 

 

• In order to increase the participation of foreign players in E-commerce, Indian Government hiked the limit of FDI in E-
commerce marketplace model to up to 100% (in B2B models). 

Government and private initiatives influencing e-commerce 
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1. Bharat Net and Digital India 

� Bharat Net broadband aims to connect 361000 villages across 16 states by 2025. 
� In the Economic survey of 2021-22, 546,000 kilometres of optical fibre cable have been laid, with 173,000 

grammen panchayats connected. 
� Under the Digital India movement, Government launched various initiatives like Umang, Start-up India Portal, 

Bharat Interface for Money (BHIM) etc. to boost digitisation. 
 

2. E-commerce draft policy 

� The Government of India’s Draft National e-Commerce Policy encourages FDI in the marketplace model of E-
commerce. Further, it states that the FDI policy for E-commerce sector has been developed to ensure a level 
playing field for all participants. 

� According to the draft, a registered entity is needed for the E-commerce sites and apps to operate in India. 
� The telecom provider offered free high-speed internet access to users for first seven months. 

 

3. Permanent account numbers (PAN) mandated 

� In October 2020, amending the equalisation levy rules of 2016, the government mandated foreign companies 
operating e-commerce platforms in India to have permanent account numbers (PAN). It imposed a 2% tax in the 
FY21 budget on the sale of goods or delivery of services through a non-resident ecommerce operator. 

 

4. Udaan 

� Udaan is a B2B online trade platform to connect small and medium size manufacturers and wholesalers with 
online retailers. It also provide them logistics, payments and technology support. 

� The platform has sellers in over 80 cities of India and delivers to over 500 cities. 

 

5. Consumer Protection Rules 

� The Consumer Protection (E-Commerce) Rules, 2020, notified by the Consumer Affairs Ministry in July direct 
e-commerce companies to display the country of origin alongside product listings. In addition, they will also 
have to reveal the parameters that go behind determining product listings on their platforms. 

 

 

(Source- https://www.ibef.org/industry/ecommerce) 

 

Figure 6- Indian E- Commerce Market 

 

                                          (Source- https://www.ibef.org/industry/ecommerce) 

 

 

ADVANTAGE INDIA 

 

1. Attractive Opportunities 

• India’s ecommerce market experienced strong sales growth in 2021 and is expected to grow by 21.5% in 2022. 

• India’s ecommerce market is expected to reach US$ 99 billion by 2024 and US$ 300 billion by 2030. 
 

2. Growing demand 
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• India’s social commerce has a potential to expand to US $16-20 billion in FY25, implying a CAGR of 5560%. 

•  Driven by beauty and personal care (BPC), India's live commerce market is expected to reach a gross merchandise value 
(GMV) of US$ 4-5 billion by 2025. 

• Due to a surge in e commerce, annual warehousing space absorption in the top eight Indian cities will increase to 76.2 million 
sq. ft. by March 2026, up from 31.7 million sq. ft. in 2021. 

 

3. Increasing Investment 

• In the first quarter of the calendar year 2022, PE/VC investments in the Indian ecommerce sector stood at US$ 2.66 billion 
with a total deals of 47. 

•  In February 2022 Xpressbees a logistics ecommerce platform became a unicorn with a US$ 1.2 billion valuation after raising 
US$ 300 million in its Series F funding.  

• In September 2021, CARS24, India's leading used car ecommerce platform, has raised US$ 450 million in funding, Series F. 

•  Flipkart announced in July 2021 that it has raised US$ 3.6 billion in new funding from various sources including sovereign 
funds, private equities and Walmart (parent company). 
 

4. Policy Support 

• In India, 100% FDI is permitted in the B2B E commerce.  

• As per the new guidelines on FDI in E commerce, 100% FDI under automatic route is permitted in the marketplace model of 
E-- commerce.  

• Heavy investment made by the Government of India in rolling out fiber network for 5G will help boost E commerce in India. 
 

(Source https://www.ibef.org/industry/ecommerce) 

GROWTH DRIVERS FOR E-COMMERCE 

 

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES     

• Government initiatives like Digital India is constantly introducing people to online modes of commerce. 

• Favourable FDI policy is attracting. 

• The Government has proposed “National E-commerce Policy” and has set up a lawful agenda on cross-border data flow 
where no data will be shared with a foreign Government agency without prior authorization from the Indian Government. 
 

INCREASING AWARENESS 

• As the awareness of using internet is increasing, more and more people are getting drawn to Ecommerce. 

• Whether it’s sellers, buyers, users or investors, more and more people are adapting to the use doing commerce online. 
 

INVESTMENT 

• India is the land of occasions and Increasing FDI inflow, domestic investment, and support from key industrial players is 
helping the growth of E-commerce 

 

(Source https://www.ibef.org/industry/ecommerce) 
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OUR BUSINESS 
 

Some of the information contained in the following discussion, including information with respect to our plans and strategies, 

contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You should read the section “Forward-Looking 

Statements” for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties related to those statements and also the section “Risk Factors” for a 

discussion of certain factors that may affect our business, financial condition, or results of operations. Our actual results may 

differ materially from those expressed in or implied by these forward-looking statements. Our fiscal year ends on March 31 of 

each year, so all references to a particular fiscal are to the Twelve-month period ended March 31 of that year. In this section, a 

reference to the“Company” or “we”, “us” or “our” means Macfos Limited. 

 

All financial information included herein is based on our “Financial information of the Company” included on page 122 of this 

Red Herring Prospectus. 

 

Overview 

 
Driven by the motto, “Your Ideas, Our Parts”, we are primarily an e-commerce based Company focused on the marketing of a 
broad range of electronic components which finds application in basic and advanced engineering products & projects, including 
emerging technologies such as IoT, Robotics, Automations, Drone, Electric Vehicles, 3D Printing and Auto Guided Vehicles. Our 
broad portfolio consists of over +12,000 SKU’s of electronics components and parts that facilitate consumers such as 
manufacturers, electrical & mechanical engineering students, educational institutions, researchers and developers, to turn their 
ideas into reality as well as to speed up their product R&D and prototyping cycle. 
 
Through our e-commerce website and mobile application, Robu.in, we sell a broad range of electronic items, including: robotic 
parts, drone parts, E-bike parts, IoT & Wireless items, 3d printer & parts, DIY learning kits, development boards, raspberry Pi 
(Single board computers& Peripherals), sensors, motors, motor drivers, pumps, batteries, chargers, electronic modules & displays 
and various other mechanical and electronic components.  
 
As on September 30, 2022, we are connected with over +140 overseas and domestic vendors for sourcing the electronic items and 
parts. We also have a portfolio of 3 owned brands (details given hereunder), which are manufactured/procured from third parties 
based on the specifications built by us through our R&D efforts. With the dedicated fulfillment Centre in Pune, Maharashtra 
comprising of 7,900 sq. ft. area and third-party logistics services, we are capable to deliver the products across India as well as 
overseas. In F.Y. 2021-22, we have served over 2 lakh orders from all the 28 states of India and 6 Union Territories of India.  
 
For F.Y. 2021-22, our revenue from operations were Rs. 5551.47 lakhs of which 62.59% were from online mode (website and 
mobile application) and 37.41% were through offline channel. For six months period ended September’22, we derived 51.47% of 
the revenue from online mode (website and mobile application) and 48.53% through offline channel. Under the offline channel, 
we generally serve Corporates and large enterprises. Some of the esteemed customers which have been served by us include 
ONGC, M&M, Hindustan Aeronautics Ltd., Tata Power Solar Systems Ltd., Central Electronics Engineering Research Institute, 
Pilani, Wipro Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., Bharat Forge Ltd., Tata Communications Ltd., Schneider Electric India Private Limited etc. 
 
Detail of Orders, Customers and Average Revenue per Order for the periods/years indicated below: 

 

Particulars Six months period ended 

September 30, 2022* 
FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20 

Number of Orders 1,00,859 2,05,550 1,24,976 82,007 

Number of Customers served 50,662 83,752 59,564 40,433 

Revenue from operations  
(Rs. in lakhs) 3,578.12 5,551.47 2,711.92 1,621.81 

Average Revenue per Order (in Rs.) 3475.69 2700.79 2134.4 1952.01 

 
During the F.Y. 2021-22 and in the nine months period ended December’22, we expanded our offerings by introduction of six 
new customized products relating to metal laser cutting, non-metal laser cutting, SLA 3d printing, FDM 3d printing, PCB 
manufacturing service and custom Li-ion battery pack. These services are launched by us on our website (robu.in) and mobile 
application. We manage our website and mobile application through our dedicated in-house IT team, which works continuously to 
create and enhance personalized experience of our consumers across their journey on our website and mobile-app. We also have 
internally developed ERP software which is used for order processing, purchase, inventory management, shipping, billing, inter-
departmental functioning etc.  
 
Fueled by the desire to provide an easy access to hard-to-find electronic items under one roof and at a reasonable price to various 
consumers, our existing Promoters namely, Atul Maruti Dumbre, Binod Prasad and Nileshkumar Purushottam Chavhan along 
with Sachin Chandrashekhar Khante formed the partnership firm, MACFOS, in 2012 and started the electronics e-commerce store 
website Robu.in in 2014 and launched the Mobile application in 2017. Later in the month of Aug.’2014, Sachin Chandrashekhar 
Khante retired from the partnership firm and Jayesh Jain entered in the firm. Upon incorporation of our Company, the business of 
the partnership firm along with its assets and liabilities were acquired by our Company in the year 2018 and 2019.  
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Our sustainable growth in business has been achieved through our founders-led management team with relevant educational 
qualifications and complementary skill sets. Our founders have been the driving force in developing and growing our business. 
Their understanding of the consumer difficulty, intuitive entrepreneurship and involvement in key aspects of our business has 
helped accelerate and drive our profitable growth. Our existing promoters are complemented by a professional management team 
which shares the same vision and values as theirs to drive our growth. 
 
Our portfolio of electronic components & items: 
 
S. 

No. 
Product 
category 

Electronic components & items (on sample basis) 

1 Robotic parts(1) 

 
 
Niryo One Intelligent 
Collaborative Robotic Arm 

 

 
 
 
EasyMech Suspension Shock 
Absorber Chassis 

 
 
Cligo Smart Robot Car Kit 4WD 
for Kids 

2 Drone parts(2) 

 
Robocat 270 Racing Quadcopter 

Frame 

 
 
 

Lightweight 2-AXIS Brushless 
Gimbal 

 
 

ARF Quadcopter Advanced 
Combo Kit 

3 E-bike parts(3) 

 
Brushless DC Motor 

 
Brushless Controller 

 
LI-ION E-bike Battery Case 

4 
IoT & 

Wireless 
items(4) 

 

 
Mediatek LinkIt ONE IoT 

Development Board 

 
 

SparkFun Pro nRF52840 Mini – 
Bluetooth Development Board 

 
 

Arducam 12MP Pan Tilt Zoom 
Camera 

5 
Raspberry Pi 

items(5) 

 
Raspberry Pi 4 2GB Starter Kit 

 
 

7�  Raspberry Pi Display with 
Capacitive Touchscreen 

Raspberry Pi 16mm Telephoto 
Lens for Pi High Quality 

Camera 


























































































































































































































































































































































































